CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND

July 9, 2012 Special Meeting Agenda
25510 Lawson St., Black Diamond, Washington

7:00 P.M. — CALL TO ORDER, FLAG SALUTE, ROLL CALL

PUBLIC COMMENTS: Persons wishing to address the City Council regarding items of new business are encouraged to do so at this
time. When recognized by the Mayor, please come to the podium and clearly state your name and address. Please limit your comments to 3
minutes, If you desire a formal agenda placement, please contact the City Clerk at 360-886-5700. Thank you for attending this evening.

PUBLIC HEARINGS:
APPOINTMENTS, PRESENTATIONS, ANNOUNCEMENTS:

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:
NEW BUSINESS:

1.) AB12-050 — Resolution Authorizing Aquatic Weeds Vegetation Plan with King County Mr. Nix
2.) ABI12-051 —Resolution Authorizing Professional Services Agreement with Subterra, Inc.  Mr. Pilcher

3.) AB12-052 — Resolution Authorizing Professional Services Agreement with Parametrix, Mr. Pilcher
for Surveying Services
4.) AB12-053 - Resolution Approving Special Event Permit for XTERRA Mr. Pilcher

5.) AB12-054 — Resolution Accepting CDBG Funds for Watermain Replacement Mr. Williamson

6.) AB12-055—Resolution Authorizing Professional Services Agreement with Parametrix for
Rock Creek Bridge Engineering Study Mr. Williamson

DEPARTMENT REPORTS:
MAYOR’S REPORT:
COUNCIL REPORTS:
ATTORNEY REPORT:
PUBLIC COMMENTS:
CONSENT AGENDA:

7.) Claim Checks — July 9, 2012 Check No. 38434 through No. 38484 (void check 38448) in the amount of

$75,091.47
8.) Minutes — Council Workstudy Notes of June 13, 2012, Council Workstudy Notes of June 14, 2012, Council
Workstudy Notes of June 19, 2012, Council Workstudy Notes of June 21, 2012, Council Meeting of June 21,

2012, Special Meeting of June 28, 2012

EXECUTIVE SESSION:
ADJOURNMENT:

Americans with Disabilities Act — Reasonable Accommodations Provided Upon Request (360-886-5700)



CITY COUNCIL City of Black Diamond

AGENDA BILL Post Office Box 599
Black Diamond, WA 98010

ITEM INFORMATION

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 12-818, Agenda Date: July 9, 2012 AB12-050

allowing the Mayor to enter into a Department/Committee/Individual

Technical Services Agreement with the Mayor Rebecca Olness

King County Water and Land City Administrator — Pete Butkus

Resources Division (WLRD) in the City Attorney —Chris Bacha X

development and eventual submittal of City Clerk — Brenda L. Martinez

an Integrated Aquatic Vegetation Finance — May Miller

Management Plan, with the option to Public Works — Seth Boettcher

add additional services needed for
continued water quality sampling on
Lake Sawyer, if requested and
authorized by the City Council through
2016.

Cost Impact: $31,516.27 Economic Devel. — Andy Williamson

Fund Source: Washington State Department of Police — Jamey Kiblinger
Ecology Grant Agreement # G1200433 and
City Grant Matching funds.

Timeline: December of 2014, TAVMP Natural Resources — Aaron C, Nix X

Comim, Dev, — Steve Pilcher

Attachments: Resolution 12-818; Technical Services Agreement with King County (WLRD);
Resolution No. 12-796

At it’s May 3, 2012 meeting, the Black Diamond City Council gave approval for the Mayor to
enter into an agreement (Attached) with the Washington State Department of Ecology, accepting
grant funds in the amount of $25,000 for the development and eventual approval by Ecology of
an Integrated Aquatic Vegetation Management Plan. The attached Technical Services
Agreement will aide staff in the development of this plan with assistance from staff from the
King County Water and Land Resources Division. In addition, the Technical Services
Agreement will allow staff the opportunity to continue with water quality sampling services
provided by King County on Lake Sawyer into 2016, contingent on request and authorization of
these additional services by the Black Diamond City Council.

COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: The Parks and Cemetery Committee gave
their recommmendation to move forward with the Technical Services Agreement with King County
(WLRD) at their June 21, 2012 Committee Meeting,

RECOMMENDED ACTION: MOTION to adopt Resolution 12-818, authorizing the
Mayor fo enter into a Technical Services Agreement with the King County
Water and Land Resources Division in the development of an Integrated
Aquatic Vegetation Management Plan and the potential for additional water
quality sampling services on Lake Sawyer, contingent on request and
authorization by the City of Black Diamond City Council through 2016.

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION

Meeting Date Action Vote

July 9, 2012




RESOLUTION NO. 12-818

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A TECHNICAL
SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH KING COUNTY WATER
AND LAND RESOQURCES IN THE DEVELOPMENT OF AN
INTEGRATED AQUATIC WEEDS MANAGEMENT PLAN
FOR LAKE SAWYER AND POTENTIAL WATER QUALITY
SAMPLING SERVICES, CONTINGENT ON CITY COUNCIL
REQUEST AND APPROVAL THROUGH 2016

WHEREAS, in 2011, City Staff, in collaboration with King County Water and Land
Resources Staff, developed an application for acquiring funds in order to complete an
Aquatic Weeds Vegetation Management Plan for the waters of Lake Sawyer in Black
Diamond, WA; and

WHEREAS, in 2012, City staff received an award letter for $25,000 from the
Washington State Department of Ecology for funds to be used towards the development
of said plan and the Black Diamond City Council adopted Resolution 12-796 accepting
these funds; and

WHEREAS, this plan will help City staff, as well as the citizens of Black Diamond look at
alternatives and costs associated with controlling aquatic weeds in Lake Sawyer,
therefore helping improve water quality and improving boating opportunities on the lake;
and

WHEREAS, King County Water and Land Resources and City Staff have developed an
agreement for technical services to be provided by King County Water and Land
Resources staff, totaling $31,516.27; and

WHEREAS, the Technical Services Agreement aliows the City the option of requesting
additional water quality sampling services as it has received in the past from King
County Water and Land Resources Division upon request and authorization by the City
Council through the year 2016;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute a Technical Services Agreement
as aftached hereto as Exhibit A with King County Water and Land Services Division for
the development of an Integrated Aquatic Vegetation Management Plan and potential
future water quality sampling services, contingent on request and approval by the Black
Diamond City Council through 2016.

Page 1 0f2



PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, AT A SPECIAL MEETING THEREOF, THIS 9TH DAY OF JULY, 2012.

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND:

Rebecca Olness, Mayor

Altest:

Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk

Page 2 of 2



CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND

City Council Memorandum

TO: CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND CITY COUNCIL
FROM: AARON NIX, PARKS/NATURAL RESOURCES
SUBJECT: AGREEMENT WITH KING COUNTY ON THE

DEVELOPMENT OF AN INTEGRATED AQUATIC WEED
VEGETATION MANAGEMENT PLAN (IAVMP) AND
POTENIAL ADDITIONAL WATER QUALITY SAMPLING
SERVICES THROUGH 2016

DATE: JULY 9, 2012

HONORABLE COUNCIL MEMBERS,

The Parks and Cemetery Committee met on June 21, 2012 to review the attached, Draft
agreement with the King County, Water and Land Resources Division. At that time, the
Committee agreed that the agreement should be moved onto the full Council for your
review and potential approval.

The agreement covers two areas, the development of an Integrated Aquatic Weed
Management Plan (IAVMP) as outlined in Exhibit One and the potential for additional
water quality services, if requested and approved by the City and County. This contract
would run through December 31, 2016.

As | believe you all are aware of, the County currently provides lake sampling materials,
testing, reporting functions and training to volunteers as part of a two year existing
contract (2011-12) that was approved by Resoiution #11-746 by the previous Council.
It's a good program that gets the community involved and saves us money as much of
the water quality sampling is done by volunteers on Lake Sawyer and me. The County
lab does the lab certified testing and Sally Abelfa and her staff put the report together,
offer technical assistance when needed and leads the Weed Waicher's Program in the
spring/summer of each year. As these services are slated to end in December of 2012,
under Resolution #11-746, we added the additional services component (page 2, section
l1I(B)) to the agreement, so a simple scope approval by both the City and the County
would suffice in continuing the water quality testing, with no delays up top the end of
2016.



Since the meeting with the Parks/Cemetery Committee, staff and the County have
revisited the contract and felt that the annual cap of $20,000 per year for services should
be adjusted up to $30,000 as we could exceed the $20,000 threshold in 2013 as the
IAVMP development will be in full swing and water quality testing would be occurring,
potentially putting us over the $20,000 limit imposed by the previous draft of the
agreement. This change in the total dollar amount per year is on page 2, section IV (D).

Based on the Draft agreement, the IAVMP development would terminate at the end of
December 2014 (Page 2, section Ill {(A)) so that we can meet our submittal requirements
placed on us by the Department of Ecology when this council approved the award of the
grant money via Resolution #12-797.

I hope that this is not too confusing. Please, if you have any doubts or questions, please
call me and we can discuss as well as bring up any issues during the Council meeting on
the O of July.

| truly appreciate all your efforts and look forward to hearing from you in the near future or
at the meeting.

Regards,

Aaron Nix

City of Black Diamond
Parks/Natural Resources
360.886.5700

ACN



Technical Services Agreement
Between King County and the City of Black Diamond

This Agreement is made and entered into by King County, Washington, hereinafter
referred to as "King County" and the City of Black Diamond, hereinafter referred to as
the “City," collectively referred to as the "Parties," in order for King County to provide
surface water-related technical services to the City.

The Parties mutually agree as follows:

L. Purpose

This Agreement between King County and the City provides the terms under which
King County, through its Department of Natural Resources and Parks, Water and
Land Resources Division (WLRD), will provide to the City technical services to
support Black Diamond’s surface water management-related activities. Services to
be provided as of the execution date of this Agreement are described in Exhibit
One, attached to this Agreement and incorporated herein and made a part hereof.
This Agreement also provides a mechanism whereby the Parties may agree upon

additional services in the future, upon request by the City.

II. Management of Technical Services Provision

1. The provision of services under this Agreement will be managed for King
County by the WLRD Intergovernmental Relations Coordinator and for Black
Diamond by the Natural Resources Department Director or other staff as may
be designated by the City (“Project Administrators™).

2. Inthe event that a dispute arises under this Agreement, it shall be brought to the
the Project Administrators for resolution. If the dispute cannot be resolved by
the Project Administrators, it shall be referred to the Division Director of King
County WLRD and the Natural Resources Department Director of Black
Diamond for resolution. This dispute resolution provision shall not be
construed as prohibiting either Party from seeking enforcement of the terms of
this Agreement, or relief or remedy from a breach of the terms of this

Agreement, in law or in equity.



L. Responsibilities

A. King County shall provide services as described in Exhibit One for the years
2012-2014.

B. For any additional services that Black Diamond requests and WLRD agrees
to provide, King County and Black Diamond will prepare a mutually agreed
upon scope of work outlining tasks, timelines, and estimated costs. Scopes
will be signed by an authorized City official to indicate the City’s
authorization for services, and will be signed by the King County Project
Administrator to indicate acceptance of the additional tasks, timelines, and
estimated costs, Such authorized scopes of work shall constitute addenda to
this Agreement as further described in V.C. below.

C. The City will provide appropriate staff to coordinate with King County on
services to be provided under this Agreement.

D. The City will pay for service costs as provided in [V. below.

IV. Costs and Billing
A. The City will pay actual costs to provide services, including staff time, benefits

and equipment for the services described in Exhibit One, and for any additional
authorized scopes of work, as described in 1ILB. above.

B. King County will invoice the City for services provided per Exhibit One and any
other authorized scopes of work on a quarterly basis.

C. Payment to King County for submitted invoices will be made by the City within

forty-five (45) days of receipt of invoices.
D. Services to be provided under this Agreement will not exceed $30,000 per year,

unless agreed to by the Parties in a written amendment to this Agreement.

V. Effectiveness, Duration, Termination, and Amendment
A. This Agreement is effective upon signature by both Parties and will remain in
effect until December 31, 2016.
B. This Agreement may be terminated by cither Party upon 30 days written notice.
In the event of termination, payment will be made by the City for work performed

by the County prior to the date of termination.



C. This Agreement may be amended, altered, or clarified only by written agreement
of the Parties. Notwithstanding the foregoing, addenda to this Agreement, as
described in IIL.B. above, shall be incorporated into this Agreement and made a
part hereof upon execution by the WLRD Project Administrator and (position of
the authorized City official). All addenda are expressly subject to the condition
described in V.F. below

D. This Agreement is not assignable by either Party, either in whole or in part.

E. This Agreement is a complete expression of the intent of the Parties and any oral
or written representations or understandings not incorporated herein are excluded.
The parties recognize that time is of the essence in the performance of the
provisions of this Agreement. Waiver of any default shall not be deemed to be
waiver of any subsequent default. Waiver of breach of any provision of this
Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any other or subsequent breach
and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of the Agreement
unless stated to be such through written approval by the parties which shall be
attached to the original Agreement.

F. Funding or obligation under this Agreement beyond the current appropriation year
is conditional upon appropriation by the County Council of sufficient funds to
support the activities described in this Agreement. Should such appropriation not
be approved, this Agreement will terminate at the close of the appropriation year

that last funded these activities.

Indemnification and Hold Harmless

A. To the maximum extent allowable by law, King County shall protect, defend,
indemnify, and save harmless the City, its officers, officials, and employees,
while acting within the scope of their employment, from any and all costs,
claims, judgments, and/or awards of damages, arising out of or in any way
resulting from King County's own negligent acts or omisstons, in performing
its obligations pursuant to this Agreement.

B. To the maximum extent allowable by law, the City of Black Diamond shalt
protect, defend, indemnify, and save harmless King County, its officers,

officials, and employees, while acting within the scope of their employment,



from any and all costs, claims, judgments, and/or awards of damages, arising
out of or in any way resulting from the City of Black Diamond's own
negligent acts or omissions, in performing its obligations pursuant to this
Agreement.

Each Party agrees that its obligations under this Article VI extend to any
claim, demand, and/or cause of action brought by, or on behalf of, any of its
employees or agents. For this purpose, each Party, by mutual negotiation,
hereby waives, with respect to the other Party only, any immunity that would
otherwise be available against such claims under the Industrial Insurance
provisions of Title 51 RCW.

In the event that either Party incurs any judgment, award, and/or cost

arising therefrom, including attorney’s fees, to enforce the provisions of

this Article, all such fees, expenses, and costs shall be recoverable from

the responsible Party to the extent of that Party’s culpability.

E. King County's sole reporting obligations under the terms of this
Agreement are to provide to the City the results of any sampling and
laboratory analytical services provided per authorized scopes of work. The
Parties agree that King County's reporting obligations do not extend to any
third party, including any regulatory agency that may seek to obtain or require
the results of sampling or laboratory analyses. The Parties further agree that
any reporting obligations that may exist with regard to third parties, including
regulatory agencies, shall remain solely the responsibility of the City. King
County shall have no liability for any failure to meet any existing reporting
requirements and the City agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless

King County for any damages, suits or claims by third parties related to the



failure to report the results of the laboratory analyses.
F. The indemnifications provided for in this Article VI shall survive the

termination of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the

day of ,201

Approved as to Form King County:

By: By:

Title: Deputy Prosecuting Attorney Title: King County Executive
Approved as to Form City of Black Diamond:

By: By:

Title: City Attorney Title:



Exhibit One

Scope of Work 2012-2014
City of Black Diamond Support Services
Lake Sawyer Integrated Aquatic Vegetation Management Plan

King County Water and Land Resources will provide services through the King County
Lake Stewardship Program (KC — LSP) to the City of Black Diamond to support the City
in researching, writing, and conducting public outreach for an Integrated Aquatic
Vegetation Management Plan (IAVMP) for Lake Sawyer.

Lake Sawyer has infestations of a number of invasive aquatic weeds, including Eurasian
watermilfoil, yellow flag iris, fragrant water lilies, and possibly others. The watermilfoil is
becoming particularly problematic, and it can be spread to other nearby lakes as Lake
Sawyer is easily accessed by a public boat launch and is a popular recreational lake for
the region. Invasive weeds degrade the aesthetic, recreational, and habitat values of
lakes, and both the City and the State of Washington have strong incentives to control
them. Black Diamond has received a grant from the Washington Department of Ecology
(DOE) to produce the IAVMP, which will ultimately lead to a strategic plan for managing
aquatic weeds in the lake. King County will act as its qualified aquatic plant management
consultant.

Between summer 2012 and winter 2014, KC-LSP will assist Black Diamond by
researching the history of noxious invasive weed problems at Lake Sawyer, inventorying
the current extent of the problem through snorkel and boat surveys, writing the technical
portions of the text, and working with the City and public to decide on a preferred option
for controlling the Eurasian watermilfoil and other invasive weeds in and around the lake.

IAVMP Research and Writing:

KC-LSP will work with the City staff on gathering information and writing about Lake
Sawyer including, but not limited to: community characteristics and history; watershed
and lake characteristics; fish and wildlife communities; beneficial and recreational uses
of the lake and surrounding areas; and characterization of the aquatic plant community
present in the lake.

KC-LSP will coordinate with City staff on surveys of Lake Sawyer for invasive noxious
weeds. A two-day survey will be conducted during the late summer of 2012 for Eurasian
watermilfoil. During this survey, mapping and identifying other invasive weeds along the
lake shoreline will also be performed. Maps reflecting the locations and, when possible,
the extent of the invasive weed infestations will be shared with the City staff and possibly
be incorporated into the [AVMP. KC-LSP will provide technical expertise and equipment
for weed surveys, including but not limited to: a boat and safety equipment, a precision
GPS for mapping locations, weed rakes for collecting samples, and a digital camera.

King County will also work with the City to create the draft IAVMP. This will include
specific information about the lake and the watershed, as well as the background and
current condition of the invasive aquatic plant problem. In addition, the plan will review
the methods available to control (or possibly eradicate) the targeted invasive noxious



weeds. From these options a preferred control method will be chosen via feedback from
the City and the citizens interested in the work on Lake Sawyer.

A draft copy of the IAVMP in an electronic format will be given to Black Diamond for
edits and commenis. KC-L3P will incorporate comments and edits as they arise and
finalize the IAVMP for the City to submit to DOE by December 31%, 2014.

Public Qutreach

KC — LSP will help facilitate the public meetings associated with developing the IAVMP.
Meetings will be held in collaboration with the City and Citizens’ Advisory Committee
once it is established.

A minimum of one meeting will be held prior to the production of the draft IAVMP in the
summer or fall of 2012 to inform interested citizens about the noxious weeds in and
around Lake Sawyer and to explain the IAVMP process. After this meeting, the KC-LSP
will assist the City in establishing a Citizens’ Advisory Commiitiee to participate in the
IAVMP development.

A second meeting will be held in summer/fall of 2013 with the Citizens’ Advisory
Committee to discuss the different control methods available for noxious weed
treatment, with the intent of choosing a preferred option.

At least one additional meeting will be held after the draft plan is completed. The Lake
Sawyer community and the general public will have the opportunity to respond with
comments and suggestions, which will then been reviewed by the City and KC-LSP.

KC-LSP will produce public announcements and informational pieces regarding the
invasive aquatic weed problem at Lake Sawyer, provide power point presentations that
will help educate the citizens about each step of the [AVMP process, and provide
technical expertise when needed.

When public comments are filed for the draft plan, they will be compiled and discussed
between KC-LSP and City Staff. Where appropriate, KC-LSP will incorporate comments
into the IAVMP. KC-LSP will submit the completed draft to the City, which will then
submit it fo DOE.

Estimated Costs

The charges set out below are based upon staff salaries, indirect operating charges,
equipment, and materials.

Project Tasks Cost
Task 1- Problem Assesment and Preferred Opticn S 13,414.31
Task 2 - Survey and Mapping S  8,549.72
Task 3 - Public Qutreach S 9,552.24
Project Total 5 31,516.27




SIGNATURE AUTHORIZATION FORM
FOR GRANT/LOAN RECIPIENTS

DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY

MAY 142012

Department of Ecology
Water Quality Program
PO Box 47800

Olympia, WA 98504-7600
Phone: (360} 407-6600
FAX: (360)407-7151

Name of Organization Date Submitted
City of Black Diamond May 4, 2012
Project Titie Agreement Number

2013 Lake Sawyer IAVMP

G1200433

AUTHORIZING SIGNATORY

Signature

Print or Type

Title/Term of Office

B, O

Rabecca Olness

Mayor/2010-2013

AUTHORIZED TO SIGN AGREEMENT AMENDMENTS

Signature

Print or Type

Title

b Do

Rebecca Clness

Mayor

AUTHORIZED TO SIGN REQUEST FOR REIMBURSEMENT

Signature

Print or Type

Title

i

0. /,«/

Aaron Nix

Natural Resources/Parks Director

ECY 070-206 {Rev. 01/2006)

Ecology is an equal opportunity agency.

WATER QUALITY PROGRAM



Aquatic Weeds Management Fund fxOR lfCSLO\?YU;SE
Grant App[icaticn pplication Number

DEPARTMENT OF

ECOLOGY - PARTA-

State of Washingtan

General Information

1. PROJECT TITLE (five words or less):

Lake Sawyer [AVMP

2. APPLICANT NAME
Name: City of Black Diamond
Addrass (If different from Signatory): PO Box 589, Black Diamond, WA 98010

Federal Identification Number:91-8026204

3. AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY (The person whose name is listed hers must sign Box 9 of this application)
Mame: Rebecea Olness
Title: Mayor
Addrass: PO Box 599, Black Diamand, WA 88010

4, APPLICANT STAFF CONTACT
Name: Aaren Nix
Title: Parks/Matural Resources Direclor
Adddress: PO Box 589, Black Diamond, WA 98010

Telephone numbes: 360.886.2560 x220 Fax number: 360.886.2592 E-mal! address: anix@ecl.blackdiamond wa.us

5. PROJECT DATA (Actual PROJECT data, not data of applicant)

If the project is nat a statewide project, please Indicate the county(s), the water resource inventory area(s),
legislative districts, and congressional districts whera at least five percent of the PROJECT will be accomplished,
The total of each separate designation must equal 100 percent.

Counties Water Resource Areas Lagislative Districts Congrassionai Districts
Name Pergent Number Parcent Number Parcent Mumber Percent
King County | 100 8 100 5 100 8 100

ECY 070-28 (Rev. 05/09) Aquatic Weeds Management Funding Applicatioln Part 1- Page 1



& PROJECT DURATION
Project Length {months or years): 30 months
Anticipated Start Date: July 2012

Anticipated Project Completion Date: Deceniber 2014

7. PROJECT TYPE
Has an Integrated aquatic vegetation management plan been developed for this project? Yes O Mo

If yas, please provide the plan title and date that it was submitted to Ecology

8. COST BREAKDOWN

Total Project Cost
This amount is the total cost of the projecl and includes state and local costs $ 39,934

Ecology Grant Amount
This amount represents the Ecology grant request, at 75 percent of the total project cost for an
implementation or planning project or 87.5 percent of the maximum eligible project cost for a
pitat project. Planning grants are capped at $30,000 state share; Implementation

grants are capped at $75,000 state share. $ 29,951
Applicant Share

This amaunt is 25 percent of the total project cost for planning or Implementation projects and

12.5 percent of Ihe tofal project cost for pilat prejects, $ 9,984

9. SIGNATURE BOX

CORRECT AND THAT [ AM LEGALLY AUTHORIZED TO SUBMIT THIS INFORMATION ON BEHALF OF THE

APPLICANT.

| CERTIFY TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE THAT THE INFORMATION IM THIS APPLICATION 18 TRUE AND

. = e em - s . ar oLl PR | EIE | LUV S LS R T | Flaun 1



10. APPLICATION SUBMITTAL

Send seven copies, one of which contains an original signature, ta:

U.S. Postal Mailing Addrsss; Qvernight Mail or Hand Delivery Address:
Department of Ecolagy Cepariment of Ecolagy

Water Quality Program Water Quality Program

£.0. Box 47600 300 Desmond Drive

Olympla, WA 98504-7600 Lacey, WA 98503

NOTE; APPLICATIONS MUST BE RECEIVED AT THE DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY BY 5:00 P.M. ON THE CLOSING
DATE. NO FACSEVIILE OR ELECTRONIC APPLICATIONS WILL BE ACCEPTED. TO ENSURE DELIVERY OF
APPLICATION BY THE DEADLINE, YOU MAY WISH TO CONSIDER USING RETURN RECEIPT MAIL.

To ask abowr the availabllity of this document In a version for the visually impaired call the Water Qualtty Program at 360-407-6502.
Persons with hearing loss, call 711 for Washington Reluy Service. Persons with a speech disability, call 877-833-6341.

ECY 070-28 (Rev. 09/09) Aquatic Weeds Management Funding Application Part 1- Page 3




Aquatic Weeds Management Fund
Grant Application

-Part 2-
Project Proposal

This is the section of your application in which you describe your project. The information that you provide
here will be used to evaluate the merit of your project and will provide the basis for our evaluation, Before
describing your project, please carefully review the information in Chapter IV of the Aquatic Weeds

Management Fund Program Guidelines.

Contact Melanie Tyler of the Department of Ecology if you have specific questions: by e-mail at
metvd61{Pecy.wa.gov or by telephone at 360-407-7489. ONLY INFORMATION SUBMITTED BEFORE
THE APPLICATION DEADLINE WILL BE USED IN THE EVALUATION PROCESS.

Project Proposal
I[f your project implements an Integrated Aquatic Plant Management Plan, please enclose a copy of the plan
or a plan approval letter from Ecology.

Please provide an overview of the proposed project. Limit your answer to 250 words.
e Stale the aquatic plants species targeted for action. Invasive, non-native freshwater aquatic plants
are given priority for grant funding.
o Identify the water body or water bodies that will be involved and its relation to other infestations of
the target plant species.
» Please include a map of the targeted water body or water bodies with the application.

Lake Sawyer is & 279 acre lake located in Water Resource Inventory Area (WRIA) 9 in the City of Black
Diamond. [t is in the northern section of the city, just west of Highway 169 and north of the Green River. The
lake is surrounded by single-family homes but also has a city owned boat launch and a large, undeveloped
city park that is located on the south end of the lake. Lake Sawyer is heavily used for fishing, boating,
swimming and other recreational activities. [t provides habitat for fish and wildlife in the area, including
salmonids such as Coho, and ESA-listed steelhead.

Eurasian watermilfoil (Myriophyllum spicatum), yellow flag iris {Iis pseudacorus) and fragrant water lilies
(Nymphaea odorata) are documented as being present at the lake; Eurasian watermilfoil is becoming
particularly problematic. The lake is casily accessed by the public at the boat [aunch making milfoil casy to
spread to nearby lakes such as Lake Wilderness, Pipe-Lucerne Lakes, Lake Desite and Spring Lake, ¥
spicatum has been eradicated from Pipe and Lucerne Lakes and is curreatly managed in Lake Wilderness and
Spring Lake; reinfestation could negatively impact the management work done on these lakes, Mitfoil will
interfere with the recreational activities and decrsase the habitat quality Lake Sawyer provides.

An I[ntegrated Aquatic Vegetation Management Plan (IAVMP) is necessaty in order to have a strategic plan
for dealing with the several noxious weeds in and around the lake. It is important to survey the lake for

ECY 070-28 (Rev. 09/09) Aguatic Weeds Funding Application Part 2- Page 1




current distribution of invasive weeds while writing the IAVMP. In addition to Eurasian milfoil, other
invasive weeds such as Brazilian elodea, purple loosestrife and narrow leaf cattail will be mapped if found.
These surveys will provide a current, complete list and map of problematic weeds, ensuring 2 comprehensive
and effective management plan.

| 2. scorEOFWORK '"" ___' 7 |

Provide a scope of work for your project. List the tasks that you will undertake to complete the project,
including details. For example, if education is a component of the project, when describing that task, say
“we will produce and distribute two educational newsletters to the Lake X residents. In addition, we will
hold at least one public meeting to talk about the project, etc.” Describe how the project goals will be
achieved. Discuss specific methads to be used or describe how the project will be accomplished.

Task 1 is standard for all grant projects. Follow the format provided below for the additional tasks in your
scope of work :

Task 1- Project Administration/Management:

A. The RECIPIENT will administer and manage the project. Responsibilities will include, but not be
limited to: maintenance of project records; submittat of payment vouchers, fiscal forms, and progress
reports; compliance with applicable procurement and technical service agreement requirements;
attainment of all required permits, licenses, easements, or property rights necessary for the project;
conducting, coordinating, and scheduling of all project activities; quality control; and submittal of
required performance items.

B. The RECIPIENT will ensure that every effort is made to maintain effective communication with the
RECIPIENT's designees, the DEPARTMENT, all affected local, state, or federal jurisdictions, and any
interested individuals or groups. The RECIPIENT will carry out this project in accordance with
completion dates outlined in this Agreement,

C. The RECIPIENT shall submit all invoice requests and supporiive documentation to the Financial
Manager of the DEPARTMENT,

Required Performance:

l. Effective administration and management of this grant project.

2. Maintenance of all project records.

3. Submittal of all required performance items, including the Post Project Assessment Plan,
progress reports, financial vouchers, and maintenance of all project records.

Total Task Cost $ 2,308.00

Task 2: Problem Assessment and Preferred Option

A, The RECIPIENT will research and report on information regarding Lake Sawyer including but not
limited to: community make-up and history, watershed and waterbody characteristics; fish and wildlife
comrunities; beneficial and recreational uses of the waterbody and surrounding areas; and
characterization of aquatic plants present in the waterbody.

ECY 070-28 (Rev. 09/09) Aquatic Weeds Funding Application Part 2- Page 2



B. The RECIPIENT shall research and report on aquatlc plant control alternatives. This shall include but
not be limited to: project management goals; overview and discussion of the various aquatic plant
control methods available; and the advantages, disadvantages, necessary permits, costs, considerations

and appropriaieness for each method researched.

C. Based upon literature reviews and research the RECIPIENT shall determine the pret‘erred method of
control for Burasian waterrmilfotl, yellow flag iris and fragrant water lily in Lake Sawyer. Methods to
control other invasive, noxious weeds will be included based on what is discovered in surveys. This
will include a preferred option plan for all weeds containing a timeline, preferred control method,
budget, public input and funding,

Reguired Performarice:
1. Research of all existing information for the physical characteristics of Lake Sawyer and its

surrounding watershed.
2. Research all existing treatment methods for M. spicatum and the associated details for each

methad.
3. Determine the preferred treatment option for Lake Sawyer based on findings.
4. Include all research results and findings in a document entitled Lake Sawyer lntegrated Aquatic

Vegetation anagement Plan,
5. Submit Lake Sawyer [AVMP to the DEPARTMENT for approval by December 2014.

Totat Tagk Cost § 14,974

Task 3: Survey and ¥apping

A. The RECIPIENT shall map the locations of the Eurasian watermilfoil in Lake Sawyer. This will
include a two day survey effort in the late suramer/early fall of 2012 and 2013 by the RECIPIENT.
This survey will help determine the extent of the milfoil infestation and other plants present that might

have a bearing on chosen method of treatment.

B. The RECIPIENT shall map the locations of any other noxious, invasive weeds in or around Lake
Sawyer. This will be part of the two day survey effort for milfoil in the late summer/early fall of 2012
and 2013 by the RECIPIENT, This survey will help determine the extent of the invasive weed
infestation present that might have a bearing on chosen method of treatment

C. Tfdeemed necessary based on the visual survey done by the RECIPIENT, a contractor may be hired to
perform a dive survey to further focate plant populations in the lake.

Required Performance

1. Use GPS to locate all M. spicanan populations and other invasive weeds during surveys.
2. Using GPS information, generate a location map with ArcYiew to be included in the IAVMP,

Total Task Cost § 10,110

Task 4: Public Oufreach

A. The RECIPIENT shall hold a minimum of two public meetings for the shoreline property owners and
area residents at the beginning of the draft [AVMP effort to alert residents about the effort and

FCY 070-28 fRev. 09/09) Aquatic Weeds Funding Application Part 2- Page 3




methods being considered to achieve the goals of aquatic weed management.

B. In these first meetings an advisory comumittee of interested stakeholders will be established and may
inctude local jurisdictions, area residents and community groups. The advisory committes will provide
feedback on the IAVMP to the City of Black Diamond for consideration.

C. A minimum of two further meetings will be held after completion of the Draft IAVMP for comments.

D, Design and print any necessary materials to educate the Lake Sawyer community about the noxious
weeds present in the lake and the IAVMP process.

Required Performance
L. Form an advisory committee of interested parties to review and comment on the Draft [AVMP.

2. Hold a minimum of four public meetings for the public. Two will be done prior to the
completion of the Lake Sawyer Draft Integrated Aquafic Vegetation Management Plan and two
will be held upon completion of the draft report in December 2014, Other meetings wilf be held
as necessary both with the public and advisory committec depending on the needs of the project.

3. Solicit and respond to all comments for the Lake Sawyer IAVMP,

4. Design and print any materials deemed necessary to help educate the public about the noxious
weeds and IAVMP process at Lake Sawyer.

Total Task Cost $ 11,892

1. PROPOSED BUDGET

Please provide a budget, using one of the following formats. Provide the total cost of the project, not just the
state share.

Budget by Task

Task | — Project Management $ 2,808.

Task 2 — Problem Assessment and Preferred Option $ 14,974

Task 3 - Survey and Mapping $10,110

Task 4 — Public Outreach §12,042

Total $ 39,934
~-0OR--

Bundset by Budaet Oblect

Salaries, wages, and benefits (SWB): 5

ECY 070-28 (Rev. 09/09) Aquatic Weeds Funding Apglication Part 2- Page 4




Indirect cost up to 25% of SWB; $

Material, supplies $
Equipment 5
Coniracts 5 _
Other S
In-kind coniributions $
Total $

3. WATER QUALITY AND PUB IC HEALTH IMPROVEMENTS

At a minimum, your response should angwer these questions:
Do the plants in this water hody pose a threat of infestation to other neatby water bodies? fnclude a map
of the targeted water body with your application.

o How is this aquatic plant or plants affecting the targeted water body or water bodies? What is the
potential of the plant to impact the targeted water body or water bodies, and how will this project benefit

the public?
s What are the project goals? What will you accomplish by undertaking this project?

¢ Does this project have statewide or regional significance?

Eurasian watermilfoil (Myriophyllum spicatum) is a submersed aquatic noxious weed that proliferates,
forming dense mats of vegetation in the littoral zone of lakes and reservoirs. It reproduces by fragmentation
and i3 often spread as fragments that “hitch-hike™ on boat trailers from one lake o another. This noxious
weed can degrade the ecological integrity of a water body in just a few growing seasons. Dense stands of
milfoil crowd out native aquatic vegetation, which alter predator-prey relationships among fish and other
aquatic animals. M. spicatum can also reduce dissolved oxygen — first by inhibiting water mixing in areas
where it grows, and then as oxygen is consumed by bacteria during decomposition of dead plant material.
Decomposition of M.spicatum also adds nutrients to the water that could contribute to increased algal
prowth and related water quality problems. Further, dense mats of M. spicadm can increase the water
temperature by absorbing sunlight, create mosquito breeding areas, and negatively affect recreational
activities such as swimming, fishing, and boating.

Fragrant watetlily (Nymphaea odorata) is a problematic weed that when left uncontrolled can form dense
monospecific stands that persist until senescence in the fall, Mals of these floating leaves prevent wind
mixing and create extensive areas of low oxygen under the water lily beds in the summer. Water lilies can
restrict lakefront access and hinder swimming, boating, and other recreational activity. They may also limit
Washington's native water lily (Muphar futewm) as they overlap in disiribution. As patches of lily connect,
recrealional activities such as boating, fishing, and swiruming will become more difficult. Even canoes can
have great difficulty moving across dense floating mats of fragrant water [ily, not to mention entanglement

ECY 070-28 (Rev. 09/09) Aquatic Weeds Funding Application Part 2- Page 5



with propellers of boat motors. Lily stands can alse hide milfoil beneath the floating mats, making milfoil
contro! difficult and less effective,

Yellow flag iris can spread by rhizomes and typically forms dense stands that can exclude even the toughest
of the native wetland species, such as Typha latifolin (cattail). [ris has already colonized large portions of the
Lake Sawyer shoreline and threatens to disperse further if not controlled. In addition to fowering plant
diversity, this noxious weed can also alter hydrological dynamics through sediment accretion along the
shoreline. This species produces prolific seed that is easily transported downstream to invade other wetland

areas.

Milfoil is the weed of greatest concern in the Lake Sawyer because of its proximity to the popular highways
169 and 18. Boats are trailered in and out of the lake and may continue on to other nearby lakes such as Pipe
and Lucerne Lakes, Spring Lake, and Lake Wilderness, Eurasian watermilfoil has been eradicated from both
Pipe and Luceme Lakes and is currently being managed on Lake Wilderness and Spring Lake,
Reintroduction of &4 spicatum to these waterbodies would detrimentally affect the work that has been
ongoing in these lakes. 1t is important to write a Lake Sawyer IAVMP to create a comprehensive
management strategy that will target the the noxious weed infestations in the lake and give the City of Black
Diarond the opportunity to act quickly on the chosen management method to prevent further spreading of
milfoil to nearby lakes.

In addition to writing a plan that includes the three main invasive weeds at Lake Sawyer, the surveys will
also search for other possible noxious weeds such as purple loosestrife, brazillian efodea and narrow leaf
cattail that could be in early colonization phases.

The goals of the creation of an IVAMP for Lake Sawyer are:

1) Fully assess and map the extent of the Eurasian watermiifoil infestation and other invasive weeds in Lake
Sawyer.

2) Write a comprehensive plan that researches all available methods and costs for noxious, invasive aquatic
weed removal. This document will also serve as a guide for the city of Black Diamoud to make decisions and
help guide other potential projects dealing with invasive aquatic weed remowal,

3) Select an appropriate prefetred treatment option for Lake Sawyer based an the noxious weeds found and
create a comprehensive management plan around the selected treatment option.

4) Work with the Lake Sawyer property owners and other interested parties to educate them on the problem,
inctude them in the discussion, and ask for feedback on the Draft Integrated Aquatic Vegetation Management

Pian for Lake Sawyer,
5) Produce an IAVMP for the DEPARTMENT for approval.

The Lake Sawyer [AVMP project is a logical step in trying to combat the Eurasian milfoil problem in the
lake and the region. [t will allow for proper planning and research in trying to find the best milfoil
management option. M. spicatum, nymphaea odorata and iris pseudocora are the three most problematic
invasive, noxious weeds in Lake Sawyer. Beacsue the lake hay an enormous amount of boat traffic and public
recreation, the proper management of these weeds would henefit the ecosystem, the citizens who use the lake
for recreation, and the other regional lakes that are easily accessed by boaters visting multiple lakes in a day,

= = o e TG

"~ A PROJECT TEAM | T

Please list the key people who will make this project a success. List the people who will actually lead or work
on the project. Note their commitment to the project and any special skills they bring.

ECY 070-28 (Rev. 09/09) Aquatic Weeds Funding Application Part 2- Page 6



Beth leDoux, Water Quality Planner, King County: Ms. leDoux has been with King County Department of
Natural Resources and Parks since 2003, She received a BA from Western Washington University in
Environmental Studies and MEM from Yale University in watershed science. Her current work program
includes the Hydrilla Eradication project on Pips and Lucerne Lakes as well as Eurasian watermilfoil control
project on Bass Lake, She is a licensed herbicide applicator and has been working on noxious, invasive
aquatic weeds since 2003. In this project Ms. leDoux will be reseraching and writing the IAVMP, leading the

field surveys and helping to host the public meetings.

Sally Abella, Freshwater Program group lead at King County: Ms. Abella managed the Lake Stewardship
Program Manager from 2001 to 201 1. Prior to that, she was a Research Scientist specializing in freshwater
ecology at the University of Washington from which she received a BS in Geological Sciences and advanced
degrees in Zoology and Botany. Ms. Abella will provide technical and editing support for the document and

will participate in the public meetings.

Chris Knutson, Water Quality Planner, King County. Mr. Knhutson has been with the King County
Department of Natural Resources and Parks since 2009, He received his BA from Western Washington
University in Environmental Studies. His current work program includes working on the volunteer
monitoring program on the small lakes of King County, benthos sampling, fecal coliform studies and field
surveys for noxious weeds. Mr. Knutson will help with writing and reviewing the IAVMP, helping on field

surveys and participating in the public meetings.

Aaron Nix is a Parks/Natural Resources Director for the City of Black Diamond. He is a graduate of the
Evergreen State College and Seattle University with degrees in Environmental Science and Public
Administration respectively. M. Nix brings a tremendous amount of experience in state grant project
management and aquatic management {ssues. Mr. Nix will be project manager of this project and be involved

in all aspects of the project.

5. PROJECT DEVELOPMENT AND LOCAL SUPPORT

At 2 minimum, your response should answer these questions:

Do you have local citizen support for the project-—especially support of those citizens whe live on, use, ot
have an interest in managing the aquatic plants in the targeted water body?

What is your long-term commitment to this project? Are you prepared to continue implementation of
{ong-term objectives without grant support?

| The City of Black Diamond is committed to managing the project and providing the 23% match for this grant
if awarded. Black Diamond has a vested interest as this lake is in their stewardship and the City owns a large
protion of the south end of the lake in park land and the boat launch. Black Diamond is highly motivated to

keep this lake free of noxious, invasive aquatic and terrestrial weeds,

There are many property owners along the shores of Lake Sawyer, and there is a very active community
group that is involved in all different aspects of [ake stewardship. While outreach has not eccurred yet at this
point for the [AVMP work, the community is well aware of the weed problem and particpates in the King

ECY 070-28 {Rev. 09/09) Aquatic Weeds Funding Application Part 2- Page 7




County Weed Watcher and Lake Stewardship program. Meetings will be held throughout the IAVMP writing
to get the community to understand and support the [AVMP goal and startegies prior to being submitted to

the DEPARTMENT for approval.

As resources allow, the City of Black Diamond will continue with the recommendations and weed control
methods offered by the [AVMP.

To ask about the availability of this document in a version for the visually impaired call the Water Quality
Program at 360-407-6502. Persons with hearing loss, call 711 for Washington Relay Service. Persons with a
speech disability, call 877-833-6341.

ECY 070-28 (Rev. 05/09) Aquatic Weeds Funding Application Part 2- Page 8




STATE OF WASHINGTON

DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOQY

PO Box 47600 ¢ Olympia, WA 98504-7600 < 360-407-6000
71T for Washington Refay Service » Persons witfi a speech disability can call 877-833-6341

COMMUMITY DEVELGE,
March 1,2012
MAR 07 20
The Honarable Rebecca Olness, Mayor RECEIVED
Ciiy of Black Diamond
P.O. Box 599

Black Diamond, WA 98010

Re:  Aqguatic Weeds Management Fund

FY 2013 Fauding Cycle
Lake Sawyer Infegrated Aquatic Vegetation AWMEF Management Plan - App. #1307

Dear Mayor Olress:

[ am pleased to inform you that the Department of Ecology (Ecology) is offering up to $25,000 to the
City of Black Diamond for the Lake Sawyer Integrated Aquatic Vegetation Management Plan {IAVMP).
These funds are from the Aquatic Weeds Management Fund (AWME).

Enclosed is the AWMEF Final Offer and Applicant List (Offer List). The Offer List provides the priority
of projects and estimated funding for each project.

Ecology has assigned the following Project Manager for your project:

Lizbeth Seebacher Headquarters Office, Lacey Project Manager 360-407-6938

Lizbeth will contact you soon to schedule a negotiation date. Ecology is committed to negotiating and

signing a funding agreement by June 30, 2012. To meet this timeline, it is essential that negotiations and
funding agreement development begin as soon as possible. Special grant conditions may alse be required
to ensure that your project is consistent with applicable state and federal laws and program requirements.

Be aware that costs incurred before the date of the Witer Quality Program Manager®s signature on
the agreement, are nof eligible for reimbursement.

We appreciate your commitment to improving Washington’s wafter quality and look forward to working with
you to make your project a success.

It you bave any questions, please contact Lizbeth Seebacher at 360-407-6%38 or [seed61(@ecy. wa.gov.

Sincerely,

W/ 4’2
Kelty Susewind, P.E., P.G.

Water Quality Program Manager

Enclosure

ot Aaron Nix, City of Black DHamond
Lizbeth Seebacher, Ecology FMS/HQ

Eje

T o 1Y
=



AQUATIC WEEDS MANAGEMENT FUND
GRANT AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE
STATE OF WASHINGTON DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY
' AND
CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND

THIS is a binding agreement entered into, by, and between the state of Washington Depariment
of Ecology [DEPARTMENT] and City of Black Diamond [RECIPIENT]. The purpose of this
agrcement is to provide funds to the RECIPIENT to carry out the activities described herein.

PART I. GENERAL INFORMATION

Project Title: Lake Sawyer Integrated Aquatic Vegetation
Management Plan
Grant Number: (1200433
A. RECIPIENT Information
RECIPIENT Name and Address City of Black Diamond
Rebecea Olness, Mayor
P.O. Box 599
Black Diamond, Washington 98010
RECIPIENT Contact Aaron Nix
Telephone Number: (360) 886-2560 x220
Fax Number: (360) 886-2592
E-mail Address; anix@eci.blackdiamond.wa.us
RECIPIENT Billing Contact Tracey Redd
Telephone Number: (360) 886-5700
Fax Number: (300) 886-2592
E-mail Address: tredd@ci.blackdiamond.wa.us
RECIPIENT Federal ID Number: 91-6026204
B. DEPARTMENT Information
DEPARTMENT Address: Water Quality Program

DEFARTMENT Project Manager:
Telephone Number:

Washington State Department of Ecology

P.O. Box 47600
Olympia, WA 98504-7600

Lizbeth Seebacher
(360) 407-6938



Lake Sawyer IAVMP
City of Black Diamond
AWME Grant No. G1200433

Fax Number: (360) 407-7151

E-mail Address: Lizbeth.Seebacher@ecy.wa.gov
DEPARTMENT Funding Source: Aquatic Weeds Management Fund
DEPARTMENT Share: $ 25,000
RECIPIENT Shate: $ 14,934
Total PROJECT Cost: $39,934

DEPARTMENT Maximum Percentage: The DEPARTMENT will reimburse elipible
costs at 75 % up to the maximum
DEPARTMENT share shown,

The effective date of this agteement will be the date this agreement is signed by the
DEPARTMENT’s Water Quality Program Manager. Any work performed prior to the effective
date of this agreement will be at the sole expense and risk of the RECIPIENT.

This agreement will expire no later than December 31, 2014,

PART 1. POST PROJECT ASSESSMENT

The RECIPIENT agrees to submit a brief survey regarding the key project results or aquatic
plant management outcomes and the status of environmental resulis or goals from the project

three years after project completion.

The DEPARTMENT’s Water Quality Program Performance Measures Lead will contact the
RECIPIENT before the Post Project Assessment date to request this data.

The DEPARTMENT may also conduct site interviews and inspections, and may otherwise
evaluate the Project, as part of this assessment.

Post Project Assessment Date: December 31, 2016.

Aquatic plant management project outcomes to be evaluated at the Post Assessment include:

a) All physical chatacteristics of Lake Sawyer and surrounding watershed will be
researched and added to the IJAVMP.

b} The invasive aquatic and emergent species in Lake Sawyer will be surveyed and mapped.

c) The preferred treatment options for each species will be determined and added to the
TAVMP,

d) Four public meetings will be held educating the public about the IAVMP,

€) An Iniegrated Aquatic Vegetation Management Plan will be submitted to Ecology.

Page 2 of 10



Lake Sawyer JAVMP
City of Black Diamond
AWMEF Grant No. G1200433

PART III. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

An Integrated Aquatic Vegetation Management Plan (IAVMP) is necessary in order to have a
strategic plan for dealing with the several noxious weeds in and around Lake Sawyer. The
RECIPIENT will survey the lake for current distribution of invasive weeds while writing the
[IAVMP. In addition to Eurasian milfoil, other invasive weeds such as Brazilian elodea, purple
loosestrife and narrow leaf cattail will be mapped if found. These surveys will provide a current,
complete list and map of problematic weeds, ensuring a comprehensive and effective

management plan.

PART IV. PROJECT BUDGET

Project Title: Lake Sawyer TAVMP

TOTAL ELIGIBLE

TASKS COST (TEC)

FY1 Fy2 Totals
Task 1. Project Management $2,808 $2,808
Task 2. Lake Assessment 314,974 $14,974
Task 3. Survey & Mapping $10,110 $£10,110
Task 4. Public Ouireach $12,042 $12,042
Total* $39,934 $39,934
* The DEPARTMENT’s Fiscal Office will track to the Total Eligible Project Cost.
MATCHING REQUIREMENTS
DEPARTMENT Share : $25,000 $25,000
RECIPIENT Share $14,934 $14,934
Eligible costs may consist of
any combination of Cash,
Interlocal, or In-kind
confributions.

Adjustments to budget numbers between fiscal years must be approved by Ecology’s project
manager and are subject to funding availability.

1. Payment Request Submittals: Payment requests will not be submitted more often than
monthly, unless allowed by the DEPARTMENT’s Project Manager. The
DEPARTMENTs Project Manager may require the RECIPIENT to submit regular
payment requests to ensure efficient and timely use of funds,

2. Payment Schedule: Payments will be made on a cost reimbursable basis.

Page 3 of 10




Lake Sawyer IAVMP
City of Black Diamond
AWMEF Grant No. G1200433

PART V. SCOPE OF WORK

Task 1 - Project Administration/Management

A.

The RECIPIENT will administer the project. Responsibilities will include, but not be
limited to: maintenance of project records; submittal of payment vouchers, fiscal forms,
and progress reports; compliance with applicable procurement, contracting, and interfocal
agreement requirements; attainment of all required permits, licenses, easements of
property rights necessary for the project; and submittal of required performance items.

The RECIPIENT will manage the project. Efforts will include conducting, coordinating,
and scheduling of project activities, and assuring quality control. The RECIPIENT will
make every effort to maintain effective communication with the RECIPIENTs
designees, the DEPARTMENT, all affected local, state, or federal jurisdictions, and any
interested individuals or groups. The RECIPIENT will carry out this project in
accordance with any completion dates outlined in this Agreement.

The RECIPIENT will submit all invoice vouchers, correspondence, and project
documents, to the DEPARTMENT Project Manager. Invoice voucher submittals will
include a state of Washington Invoice Voucher Form A19-1A, the appropriate B and C
forms as described in the current edition of Administrative Requirements for Ecology
Grants and Loans, and Form D (when applicable). Copies of all applicable forms will be
included with an original A19-1A form, and will be submitted to the DEPARTMENT.
Blank forms are found in the curent edition of Administrative Requivements for Ecology
Grants and Loans or electronic forms can be obtained from the Project Manager.

Reimbursements from the DEPARTMENT for invoice voucher submittals will be mailed
to the RECIPIENT s designee at the following address:

Aaron Nix, Parks / Natural Resources Director
P.O. Box 599
Black Diamond, Washington 98010

The RECIPIENT will submit to the DEPARTMENT the following documents and in the
quantities identified:

’ Draft IAVMP - electronic copy
o Final IAVMP — electronic copy and two hard copies

The RECIPIENT will submit two copies of any document(s) that require
DEPARTMENT approval.

Required Performance:

1. Effective administration and management of this grant project.

Page 4 of 10



Lake Sawyer IAVMP
City of Black Diamond
AWMEF Grant No. G1200433

2. Maintenance of all project records.
3. Submittal of all required performance items, progress reports, financial vouchers,
and maintenance of all project records.

Task 2 — Assessment and Preferred Option

A.

The RECIPIENT will contract with a qualified aquatic plant management consultant,
King County aquatic plant management personnel and/or use its own staff, to develop an
Integrated Aquatic Vegetation Management Plan (IAVMP) that incorporates all the
requirements for an IAVMP listed in the DEPARTMENT's Aquatic Weeds Management
Fund program guidelines. The RECIPIENT, with input from interested residents and
other members of the steering committee, will use 4 Citizen's Manual for Developing
Integrated Aquatic Vegetation Management Plans to develop the JAVMP. This manual

is available at:
http:/fwww.ecy.wi. gov/programs/wq/plants/management/manual/index html.

The RECIPIENT will research and report on information regarding Lake Sawyer
including but not himited to: community make-up and history, watershed and waterbody
characteristics; fish and wildlife commumities; beneficial and recreational uses of the

- waterbody and surrounding areas; and characterization of aguatic plants present in the

waterbody.

Based upon literature reviews and research, the RECIPIENT will determine the preferred
method of control for Eurasian watermilfoil, yellow flag irts and fragrant water lily in
Lake Sawyer. The RECIPIENT will include methods to control other invasive, noxious
weeds based on what is discovered in surveys. The RECIPIENT will identify a preferred
option plan for all weeds containing a timeline, preferred control method, budget, public

input and funding.

If herbicide treatment is planned as part of the IAVMP, the RECIPIENT will address
water right issues during the planning process. The RECIPIENT will attempt to identify
those residents holding water rights on affected waters. In addition, the RECIPIENT will
address human health and environmental concerns about herbicide use prior to its
inclusion in the IAVMP.

The RECIPIENT will submit the draft JAVMP to the DEPARTMENT no less than 30
days before the project completion date. Following this review, the RECIPIENT wilt
prepare and submit to the DEPARTMENT a final [AVMP incorporating review
comments. The DEPARTMENT recommends that the RECIPIENT submit the final plan
throngh the State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) process.

Required Performance:

1. The development of an IAVMP that meets the minimum standards for an TAVMP
as sef out in the Aquatic Weeds Grant Guidelines.

Page 5 of 10



Lake Sawyer JAVMP
City of Black Diamond
AWME Grant No, G1200433

2. Research of all existing information for the physical characteristics of Lake
Sawyer and its surrounding watershed,

3. Research all existing treatment methods for M. spicatum and the associated details
for each method.

4, Determine the preferred treatment option for Lake Sawyer based on findings.

5. Include all research results and findings in a document entitled Lake Sawyer

Integrated Aquatic Vegetation Management Plan,
Submittal of the draft [AVMP to the DEPARTMENT for review and comment.

7. Revision of the draft TAVMP according to comments received from the
DEPARTMENT,

IS

Task 3 - Survey and Mapping

A

The RECIPIENT will survey and map the locations of the Eurasian watermilfoil and any
other noxious invasive weeds in Lake Sawyer in the late summer/early fall of 2612 and
2013. These surveys will help determine the extent of the milfoil infestation and other
plants present that might have a bearing on chosen method of treatment.

Required Performance:
1. Effectively survey and map Eurasian watermilfoil and other noxious weeds in
Lake Sawyer,

Task 4 — Public Dutreach

A

The RECIPIENT will hold a minimum of two public meetings for the shoreline property
owners and area residents at the beginning of the draft IJAVMP effort to alert residents
about the effort and methods being considered to achieve the goals of aquatic weed
management.

In these first meetings, the RECIPIENT will establish an advisory commiitee of
interested stakeholders. The advisory commiitee may include representatives from local
Jjurisdictions, area residents, and community groups. The advisory committee will provide
feedback on the IAVMP to the City of Black Diamond for consideration.

The RECIPIENT will hold a minimum of two further meetings will be held completion
of the Draft IAVMP for comments.

The RECIPIENT will design and print any necessary materials to educate the Lake
Sawyer community about the noxious weeds present in the lake and the [AVMP process.
The RECIPIENT will do a regional search for existing material before producing any
new educational flyers or pamphlets.

Required Performance:

Page 6 of 10



Lake Sawyer IAVMP
City of Black Diamond
AWMF Grant No. G1200433

1. Form an advisory committee of interested parties to review and comment on the
Draft IAVMP,

2. Hold a minimum of four public meetings. Two will be held prior to the
completion of the Lake Sawyer Draft IAVMP and two will be held upon
completion of the draft IAVMP,

3. Solicit and respond to all comments for the Lake Sawyer IAVMP,

4. Design and print any materials needed to help educate the public about the
noxious weeds and IAVMP process at Lake Sawyer.

V1. SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

A,

Conflict of Interest. The company, associated company, contractor, corporation, or
individual writing and/or guiding the steering committee through the asscssment of plant
control options during development of this IAVMP (integrated aquatic vegetation
management plan) shall not be considered for implementation of these control measures

under state-funded projects.

Use of Force Account. In the event the RECIPIENT elects to use its own forces to
accomplish eligible project work, the RECIPIENT acknowledges that it has the legal
authority to perform the work and adequate and technically qualified staff to perform the
work without compromising other government functions. The RECIPIENT must track
and report the force account work submitted to the DEPARTMENT for reimbursement,

Indirect Rate. The RECIPIENT may charge an indirect rate of up to 25 percent based on
employec’s direct salary and benefit costs incurred while conducting project-related
work. The DEPARTMENT"s Financial Manager may require a list of items included in
the indirect rate at any time.

Match Requirement. Property and services donated by organizations or individuals to
accomplish grant requirements may be used as in-kind match, Donated property and
services must comply with the DEPARTMENT’s current edition of Administrative
Requirements for Ecology Grants and Loans and the Aquatic Weeds Management Fund
Grant Guidelines (http.//www.ecy. wa.gov/biblio/9452.html). Documentation will be
maintained by the RECIPIENT for all donated property and services and made available
for review by the DEPARTMENT on request.

Interlocal Match, The RECIPIENT certifies by signing this agreement that all negotiated
interlocal apreements are consistent with all of the following:

1, Terms of this grant agreement

2. The edition of Adminisirative Requirements for Ecology Grants and Loans that is
cffective at the signing of this agreement.

Page 7 of 10



Lake Sawyer [AVMP
City of Black Diamond
AWMEF Grant No. G1200433

b

3. Chapter 39.34 RCW Interlocal Cooperation Act

All negotiated interlocal agreements will be consistent with the terms of this grant
Agreement, the DEPARTMENT’s current edition (at the signing of this agreement) of
Administrative Requirements for Ecology Grants and Loans and Chapter 39.34 RCW
Interlocal Cooperation Act. Upon request, the RECIPIENT will submit a copy of the
final negotiated interlocal agreement(s) to the DEPARTMENT s Project Manager.

Mecting/Light Refreshments. The RECIPIENT may spend up to $75 per meeting for
light refreshments associated with this project. The total amount spent for light
refreshments under this agreement cannot exceed $75 unless authorized in writing by the

Project Manager,

Minority and Women's Business Participation. The RECIPIENT agrees to solicit and
recruit, to the extent possible, certified minority-owned (MBE) and women-owned
(WBE) businesses in purchases and contracts initiated after the effective date of this

agreement.

Contract awards or rejections cannot be made based on MBE or WBE participation.
M/WBE participation is encouraged, however, and the RECIPIENT and all prospective
bidders or persons submitting qualifications should take the following steps, when
possible, in any procurement initiated afier the effective date of this agreement:

1. Include qualified minority and women's businesses on solicitation lists.

2. Assure that qualified minority and women's businesses are solicited whenever they
are potential sources of services or supplies.

3. Divide the total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller fasks or
quantities, to permit maximum participation by qualified minority and women's
businesses.

4. Establish delivery schedules, where work requirements permit, which will encourage

participation of qualified minority and women's businesses.
5. Use the services and assistance of the State Office of Minority and Women's Business

Enterprises (OMWBE) and the Office of Minority Business Enterprises of the U.S.
Department of Commerce, as appropriate.

The RECIPIENT will report to the DEPARTMENT at the time of submitfing each
invoice, on forms provided by the DEPARTMENT, payments made to qualified firms.
Please include the following information:

1. Name and state OMWBE certification nmumber (if available) of any quealified firm
receiving funds under the invoice, including any sub-and/or sub-subcontractors.

2. The total dollar amount paid to qualified firms uader this invoice,

Procurement. The RECIPIENT may elect to use its own forces or may confract for
professional services necessary to perform and complete project related work, The

Page 8 of 10



Lake Sawyer [AVMP
City of Black Diamond
AWMF Grant No. G1200433

RECIPIENT will ensure that this project is completed according to the details of this
agreement. By signing this agreement, the RECIPIENT ceriifies that all applicable
requirements have been satisfied in the procurement of any professional services, Upon
request, the RECIPIENT will submit a copy of the final negotiated agreement(s) to the

DEPARTMENT’s Project Manager.

H Progress Reports, The RECIPIENT will submit semi-annual Progress Reports to the
DEPARTMENT’s Project Manager. Progress Reports for January 1 through June 30 are
due July 15. Progress Reports for July 1 through December 31 are due January 15.
Payment requests will not be processed if the required Progress Reports have not been

submitted by the RECIPIENT.

L. Time for Performance, Inthe event that the RECIPIENT fails to commence work on the
PROJECT within four months after the effective date of this agreement, the
DEPARTMENT reserves the right to terminate this agreement.

Page 9 of 10



Lake Sawyer IAVMP
City of Black Diamond
AWMF Grant No. G1200433

VI ALL WRITINGS CONTAINED HEREIN

This Agreement, the appended General Terms and Conditions, the DEPARTMENT’s current
edition of Adminisirative Requirements for Ecology Grants and Loans, and the Aquatic Weeds
Management Fund Grant Guidelines contain the entire understanding between the parties, and
there are no other understandings or representations other than as set forth, or incorporated by
reference, herein. No subsequent modification(s) or amendment(s) of this Agreement will be of
any force or effect unless signed by authorized representatives of the RECIPIENT and the
DEPARTMENT and made a part of this Agreement, EXCEPT, that in response to a request from
the RECIPIENT; the DEPARTMENT may change the grant expiration date. The
DEPARTMENT or RECIPIENT may change their respective staff contacts without the

concurrence of either party.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties sign this Grant:

STATE OF WASHINGTON CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND
DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY

5’4?/34 \)’éAMJ @QW 5412

SUSEWIND, P.E,P.G.  DATE REBECCA OLNESS DATE
WATER QUALITY PROGRAM MANAGER MAYOR

APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY
ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL

Page 10 of 10



RESOLUTION NO. 12-796

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON
AUTHORIZING THE WMAYOR TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH THE WASHINGTON STATE
DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY FOR THE ACCEPTANCE OF
GRANT MONIES TO BE USED TOWARDS THE
DEVELOPMENT OF AN INTEGRATED AQUATIC WEEDS
MANAGEMENT PLAN FOR LAKE SAWYER

WHEREAS, in 2011, the City, in collaboration with King County staff, developed an
application for acquiring funds in order to complete an Aquatic Weeds Vegetation
Management Plan for the waters of Lake Sawyer in Black Diamond, WA; and

WHEREAS, in 2012, City staff received an award letter for $25,000 from the
Washington Siate Department of Ecology for funds to be used towards the
development of said plan; and

WHEREAS, this plan will help City staff, as well as the public look at alternatives and
costs associated with controlling aquatic weeds in Lake Sawyer, therefore helping

improve water quality within the lake; and

WHEREAS, the acceptance of the integrated Aquatic Weeds Management Plan by the
Department of Ecology will make the City eligible for future grant resources as it
pertains to aquatic weed management in the lake;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute an agreement with the
Washington State Department of Ecology in the acceptance of grant funds used
towards the development of an Integrated Aquatic Weeds Management Plan for Lake
Sawyer, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A.

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, THIS 3RD DAY OF MAY, 2012.

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND:

B Qo

Rebecca Olniess, Mayor

Attest:

Latnas & WMW,

Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk




CITY COUNCIL City of Black Diamond

Post Office Box 599
AGENDA BILL Black Diamond, WA 98010
ITEM INFORMATION
SUBJECT: | Agenda Date: July 9, 2012 AB12 -051
Resolution No. 12-819, authorizing Department/Committee/Individual

Mayor Rebecca Olness

City Administrator — Pete Butkus
City Attorney —Chris Bacha

City Clerk — Brenda L. Martinez

the Mayor to execute a contract with
SubTerra, Inc. to serve as the geo-
technical engineering consultant to

the MDRT Finance — May Miller
Public Works — Seth Boettcher
Cost Impact: variable Economic Devel. — Andy Williamson
Fund Source: pass-through expense to Master Police — Jamey Kiblinger
Developer
Timeline: 2-year contract w/10 day call Comm. Dev. — Steve Pilcher X
Attachments: Resolution No, 12-819 proposed contract
SUMMARY STATEMENT:

The Funding Agreement approved in conjunction with the two Development Agreements (DAs) for the
approved Master Planned Developments (MPDs) of Lawson Hills and The Villages assumes that
consultants will be hired to augment City staff in their work as the MPDs are implemented over time.
There will be significant needs for geotechnical engineering assistance in the review of specific
implementing projects, particularly in the Lawson Hills MPD.

In February, the City advertised in the Journal of Commerce, city website and official newspaper to
solicit Statements of Qualifications from firms interested in performing this work. A total of 7 firms
submitted their qualifications; two were selected to be interviewed. The interview panel consisted of
Councilmember Craig Goodwin, Community Development Director Steve Pilcher and Parks/Natural
Resources Director Aaron Nix. The interview panel’s unanimous choice was to hire SubTerra, Inc.

Per the terms of the DAs, all costs for consultants must be paid for by the Master Developer (Yarrow
Bay). Consistent with past direction from the Council, the contract period is two vears with a 10-day
termination provision is included, should the City decide to seek a different consultant or hire its own
staff at a fisture date.

This is the last MDRT consultant contract anticipated at this time.

COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: Councilmember Goodwin participated in the
inferview process; reviewed and approved by the Finance Committee on June 14, 2012,

RECOMMENDED ACTION: MOTION to adopt Resolution 12-819, authorizing the
Mayor to execute a contract with SubTerra, Inc. to serve as geotechnical
engineering consultant to the MDRT

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION

Meeting Date Action Vote

Tuly 9, 2012




RESOLUTION NO. 12-819

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT
WITH SUBTERRA, INC. TO SERVE AS THE
GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING CONSULTANT TO THE
MASTER DEVELOPMENT REVIEW TEAM.

WHEREAS, in 2010, the City Council approved Master Planned Development permits for
The Villages and Lawson Hills MPDs; and

WHEREAS, in 2011, the City Council approved Develcpment Agreements for The
Villages and Lawson Hilis MPDs; and

WHEREAS, as part of its consideration and approval of the Development Agreements,
the City also entered info a new Funding Agreement with BD Village Partners and BD

Lawson Partners; and

WHEREAS, the Funding Agreement calls for the establishment of a Master
Development Review Team (MDRT), to consist of City staff and outside consuliants;
and

WHEREAS, the City does not have sufficient staff resources nor the expertise to
provide geotechnical engineering review services to meet the needs of the MDRT; and

WHEREAS, private firms providing survey review services were invited to submit
Statements of Qualifications for review and consideration; and

WHEREAS, a panel consisting of staff and one City Council member reviewed the
submittals, subsequently interviewed two firms and then recommended SubTerra, Inc.
as the firm most capable of providing survey review services as desired;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute a contract with SubTerra, Inc. as

attached hereto as Exhibit A to provide geotechnical engineering review services for the
MDRT.

Page 10f2



PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, AT A SPECIAL MEETING THEREOF, THIS 9 DAY OF JULY, 2012,

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND:

Rebecca Olness, Mayor

Attest:

Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk

Page 2 of 2



CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Professional Services Agreement (the or this “Agreement”), for reference purposes
only, is dated , 2012 and is entered into by and between

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, WASHINGTON (the “City™)
Physical Address: 24301 Roberts Drive
Mailing Address: PO Box 599

Black Diamond, WA 98010

Contact: Phone: 360-886-5700 Fax : 360-886-2592
and

SubTerra, Inc. (“Consultant™)

Physical Address: 218 East North Bend Way, North Bend, WA 98045
Mailing Address:  P.O. Box 520, North Bend, WA 98045

Contact: Dr. Chris Breeds Phone: 425-888-5425 Fax: 425-888-2725

Tax Id No.:  91-

for professional services in connection with the following project:

On-call Geotechnical Consulting services on an as-needed basis to conduct third-party

development reviews associated with site investigation, geologic hazards evaluation, site
planning / design and construction for the Villages and Lawson Hills Master Planned

Developments.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Services by Consultant

1.1 Consultant shall perform the services described in the Scope of Work attached to
this Agreement as Exhibit "A." The services performed by Consultant shall not exceed the
Scope of Work nor shall the Consultant be entitled to a greater amount of compensation as that
provided in this Agreement without the prior written authorization of the City.

1.2 The City may from time to time require changes or modifications in the Scope of
Work. Such changes, including any decrease or increase in the amount of compensation, shall
be agreed to by the parties and incorporated in written amendments to this Agreement.

1.3 Consultant represents and warrants that it, its staff to be assigned to the Project,
and its subconsultants and their staff have the requisite training, skill, and experience necessary
to provide the services required by this Agreement and are appropriately accredited and licensed
by all applicable agencies and governmental entities. Services provided by Consultant and its

Professional Services Agreement

Page10of 8



subconsultants under this Agreement will be performed in a manner consistent with that degree
of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing in
similar circumstances.

2. Schedule of Work

2.1  Consultant shall perform the services described in the Scope of Work in
accordance with the Schedule attached to this contract as Exhibit “B.”

2.2 Time is of the essence as to the work provided in the Scope of Work. Consultant
will diligently proceed with the work and shall assure that it, and its subconsultants, will have
adequate staffing at all times in order to complete the Scope of Work in a timely manner. If
factors beyond Consultant's control that could not have been reasonably foreseen as of the date
of this Agreement cause delay, then the parties will negotiate in good faith to determine whether
an extension is appropriate. The Consultant shall provide the City with written notice of any
delay, or potential delay, that may trigger the need for a time extension within 3 business days
after the Consultant becomes aware of the delay or potential delay.

23 Consultant is authorized to proceed with services upon execution of this
agreement.

3. Compensation

TIME AND MATERIALS. Compensation for the services provided in the Scope of
Work shall be on a time and materials basis according to the list of billing rates and
reimbursable expenses attached hereto as Exhibit “C.”

4, Payment

4.1 Consultant shall maintain time and expense records and provide them to the City
monthly, along with monthly invoices, in a format acceptable to the City for work performed to
the date of the invoice.,

4.2 All invoices shall be paid by City warrant within sixty (60) days of actual receipt
by the City of an invoice conforming in all respects to the terms of this Agreement.

4.3 Consultant shall keep cost records and accounts pertaining to this Agreement
available for inspection by City representatives for three (3) years after final payment unless a
longer period is required by a third-party agreement. Consultant shall make copies available to
the City on request.

44  If the services rendered do not meet the requirements of the Agrecment,
Consultant will correct or modify the work to comply with the Agreement. The City may
withhold payment for such work unti! the work meets the requirements of the Agreement.

Professional Services Agreement

Page 2 of 8



5. Discrimination and Compliance with 1.aws

5.1 Consultant agrees not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for
employment or any other person in the performance of this Agreement because of race, creed,
color, national origin, marital status, sex, age, disability, or other circumstance prohibited by
federal, state, or local law or ordinance, except for a bona fide occupational qualification.

52 Consultant and its subconsultants shall comply with all federal, state, and local
laws and ordinances applicable to the work to be done under this Agreement.

5.3  Any violation of this Section 5 shall be a material breach of this Agreement and
grounds for immediate cancellation, termination, or suspension of the Agreement by the City, in
whole or in part, and may result in Consultant’s ineligibility to conduct further work for the

City.

0. Suspension and Termination of Agreement

6.1  The City reserves the right to terminate or suspend this Agreement at any time,
without cause, by giving Consultant notice in writing ten (10) days prior to the termination or
suspension date. In the event of termination, all finished or unfinished reports, or other material
prepared by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement, shall be submitted to the City. In the event
the City terminates this Agreement prior to completion without cause, Consultant may complete
such analyses and records as may be necessary to place its files in order. Consultant shall be
entitled to compensation for any satisfactory work completed on the Project prior to the date of
suspension or termination.

6.2  Any notice from the City to Consultant regarding the suspension of this
Agreement shall specify the anticipated period of suspension. Any reimbursement for expenses
incurred due to the suspension shall be limited to Consultant's reasonable expenses and shall be
subject to verification. Consultant shall resume performance of services under this Agreement
without delay when the suspension period ends.

7. Standard of Care

7.1 Consultant represents and warrants that it has the requisite training, skill,
and experience necessary to provide the services under this Agreement and is appropriately
accredited and licensed by all applicable agencies and governmental entities. Services
Consultant provides under this Agreement will be performed in a manner consistent with that
degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently
practicing in similar circumstances. . Consultant understands and agrees that the services
rendered pursuant to this Agreement are for the sole exclusive benefit of the City and that no
third party shall have authority to authorize, approve, direct or control any of the services
rendered to the City pursuant to this Agreement.

Professional Services Agreement

Page 3 of 8



8. Ownership of Work Product

8.1 Ownership of the originals of any reports, data, studies, surveys, charts, maps,
drawings, specifications, figures, photographs, memoranda, and any other documents which are
developed, compiled, or produced as a result of this Agreement, whether or not completed, shall
be vested in the City and shall be submitted to the City upon termination of this Agreement. Any
reuse of these materials by the City for projects or purposes other than those that fall within the
scope of this Agreement and the Project to which it relates, without written concurrence by
Consultant, will be at the sole risk of the City.

8.2  The City acknowledges Consultant’s documents as instruments of professional
service. Nevertheless, the documents prepared under this Agreement shall become the property
of the City upon completion of the work. The City agrees to hold harmless and indemnify
Consultant against all claims made against Consultant for damage or injury, including defense
costs, arising out of the City’s reuse of such documents beyond the use for which they were
originally intended without the written authorization of Consultant.

8.3  Methodology, software, logic, and systems developed under this Agreement are
the property of Consultant and the City, and may be used as either Consultant or the City see fit,

including the right to revise or publish the same without limitation.

9, Indemnification/Hold Harmless

9.1 Consultant shall defend, indemnify, and hold the City, its officers, officials,
employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits
including attomey fees, arising directly or indirectly out of or resulting from the acts, errors, or
omissions of Consultant or its subconsultants in performance of this Agreement, except for
injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City. Provided, however, that if any
such claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits result from the concurrent negligence of
Consultant and the city, it is expressly agreed that Consultant’s obligations and indemnity under
this paragraph shall be effective only to the extent of Consultant’s negligence.

10. Insurance

10.1 Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, and
shall provide proof satisfactory to the City that such insurance is procured and maintained by
cach of its subconsultants, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to
property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by
Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees.

10.2  Consultant shall procure and maintain the following types and amounts of
insurance:

a. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired, and
leased vehicles, Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01
or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage. H necessary, the policy shall be
endorsed to provide contractual liability coverage. This insurance shall have a minimum
combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident.

Professional Services Agreement

Page 4 of 8



b. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be wriften on ISO
occurrence form CG 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage and shall
cover liability arising from premises, operations, independent contractors, personal injury, and
advertising injury. This insurance shall be written with limits no less than $1,000,000 each
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate.

c. Workers” Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance
laws of the State of Washington.

d. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to Consultant’s profession,
with limits no less than $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit.

10.3 The Automobile Liability, Commercial General Liability, and Professional
Liability insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

a. Consultant’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance vis-a-vis the
City. Any insurance, self-insurance, or insurance pool coverage maintained by the City shall be
excess over Consultant’s insurance and shall not contribute with it.

b. Consultant’s insurance shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be
cancelled, except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt
requested, has been given to the City.

10.4  The City shall be named as an additional insured under Consultant’s Automobile
Liability and Commercial General Liability insurance policies with respect to the work to be
performed for the City pursuant to this Agreement.

10.5 Insurance shall be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not less
than A:VIIL.

10.6  Declaration pages issued by the insurance carriers for the policies mentioned in
this Section 10 showing such insurance to be in force shall be filed with the City not less than ten
(10) days following both parties signing this Agreement and before commencement of the work,
In addition, the City may request, in writing, a full copy from Consultant of any insurance policy
Consultant must procure and maintain pursuant to this Agreement and Consultant must provide
such copy to the City within ten (10) days of Consultant’s receipt of the City’s request. Any
policy or required insurance written on a claims-made basis shall provide coverage as to all
claims arising out of the services performed under this Agreement and for three (3) years
following completion of the services to be performed. It shall be a material breach of this
Agreement for Consultant to fail to procure and maintain the insurance required by this Section
10 or to provide the proof of such insurance to the City as provided for in this Agreement.

11.  Assigning or Subcontracting

11.1  Consultant shall not assign, transfer, subcontract, or encumber any rights, duties,
or interests accruing from this Agreement without the express prior written consent of the City,
which consent may be withheld at the sole discretion of the City.

Professional Services Agreement

Page 5of 8



12. Independent Contractor

12.1 Consultant and its subconsultants are, and shall be at all times during the term of
this Agreement, independent contractors.

13. Notice

13.1  All notices required by this Agreement shall be considered properly delivered
when personally delivered, when received by facsimile, or on the third day following mailing,
postage prepaid, certified mail, return receipt requested to:

City: City Administrator
City of Black Diamond
P.O. Box 599
Black Diamond, WA 98010
Fax: 360-886-2592

With a copy to: Chris Bacha
Kenyon Disend, PLLC
11 Front Street South
Issaquah, WA 98027
Fax: 425-392-7071

Consultant: Dr. Chris Breeds
SubTerra, Inc.
P.O. Box 520
North Bend, WA 98045
Fax: 425-888-2725

14. Disputes

14.1 Any action for claims arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be
governed by the laws of the State of Washington. Venue shall be in King County Superior
Court, Kent, Washington.

15. Atforney Fees

15.1 In any suit or action instituted to enforce any right granted in this Agreement, the
substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its costs, disbursements, and
reasonable attorney fees from the other party.

Professional Services Agreement

Page 6 of 8



16. General Administration and Management on Behalf of the City

16.1 The City Administrator for the City, or his/her designee( the contract
Administrator) shall review and approve Consultant's invoices to the City under this Agreement
and shall have primary responsibility for overseeing and approving work or services to be
performed by Consultant. . Consultant understands and agrees that any and all work to be
performed pursuant to this Agreement must be approved in advance by the contract
Administrator. No third party, including the project applicant, shall have any direct control or
influence over the services performed under this Contract.

17. Extent of Agreement/Modification

17.1  This Agreement, together with any attachments or addenda, represents the entire
and integrated Agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations,
representations, or agreements, either written or oral. After City Council approval, this
Agreement shall be in effect as of June XX, 2012 and shall remain in effect until June XX,
2014, unless sooner terminated as set forth herein. This Agreement may only be amended,
modified, or added to by written instrument properly signed by both parties. The parties
acknowledge the general contract rule that a clause in a contract, such as this one, prohibiting
oral modifications is itself generally subject to oral modification. However, in order to ensure
certainty as to the ferms and conditions of this Agreement, the parties waive this general
contract rule.

18. Conflict of Interest; Non-Collusion

18.1 No officer, employee or agent of the City, nor any member of the immediate
family of any such officer, employee or agent, shall have any personal financial interest, direct
or indirect, in this Contract, either in fact or in appearance. The Consultant shall comply with
all federal, state, and City conflict of interest laws, statutes and regulations. The Consultant
represents that the Consultant presently has no interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct
or indirect, in the project to which this Contract pertains which would conflict in any manner or
degree with the performance of the Consultant’s services and obligations hereunder. The
Consultant further covenants that, in performance of this Contract, no person having any such
interest shall be employed by the Consultant. The contractor’s officers, employees or agents
shall neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors or anything of monetary value from the project
applicant or any affiliate or agent of the project applicant.

18.2 The Contractor warrants and represents that the Contractor has not, nor has any
other member, employee, representative, agent or officer of the Contractor, entered info or
offered to enter into any combination, collusion or agreement with any person or entity to
receive or pay, and that he has not received or paid, any sum of money or other consideration
for the execution of this Contract other than the consideration offered pursuant to the terms and
conditions hereof.

Professional Services Agreement

Page 7 of 8



CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND CONSULTANT

By: By:

Rebecca Olness Printed Name: Chris D. Breeds
Its: Mayor Its: President
Date: Date:
Attest:
By:

Brenda L. Martinez
City Clerk

Professional Services Agreement

Page 8 of 8



Exhibit A (General Scope of Work} SubTerra, Inc.
Agreement with SubTerra, Inc.

The City of Black Diamond will contract with SubTerra Inc. to provide on-call Geotechnical Consulting
services on an as-needed basis to conduct third-party development reviews associated with site
investigation, geologic hazards evaluation, site planning / design and construction for the Villages and
Lawson Hills Master Planned Developments.

SubTerra, Inc. Geotechnical Consulting work will include review of geological and engineering sfudies
and engineering designs for abandoned coal mines, steep slopes, site improvements, rockeries and
retaining structures, impoundments, embankments, etc. as further described in the Black Diamond
Municipal Code and provisions of the planned MPDs.

Consulting services may generally include the following tasks as requested by the City:
1. Pre-submittal consultation with applicants and city staff.

2. Participation in Preliminary Design meetings and other activities as a Member of the Master
Development Review Team (MDRT).

3. Review and preparation of written comments on submitted applications, sensitive areas studies,
SEPA Checklists/ElSs, mitigation plans, and related documents prepared by others for the
nurpose of coal mine hazards areas identification, review of impacts, and mitigation evaluation.

4. Field inspections and field observations of Applicant site investigation programs fo verify existing
site conditions.

5. Conducting record research, locating abandoned coal mine features and workings and
assembling as drawings/exhibits in support of the City's evaluation of abandoned coal mine
studies submitted by Applicant.

6. Review and preparation of written comments on submitted engineering drawings, utilities plans,
grading plans, stormwater management plans, stream culvert designs, geotechnical reports, and
other reports, studies, and drawings for the evaluation of compliance with city codes and
standards and any applicabie provisions of the approved MPDs.

7. Review and preparation of written comments on exceptions, variances, or other requested
deviations from Code.

8. Review and preparation of written comments on draft sensitive areas notices to be recorded on
title.

9. Review and preparation of written comments on mitigation, maintenance, and monitoring costs
estimates for the posting of financial guarantees, if required, by applicants.

10. Verbal and written correspondence and coordination with applicants and/or City staff.

11. Assistance with staff reports and preparation/review of meeting/hearing materials and exhibits.
12. Interagency coordination.

13. Attendance and/or testimony at city council or other public meetings or hearings.

14. Pre-construction meeting attendance and related correspondence.

15. Review and findings of demarcated boundaries and fencing limits for the protection of coal mine
hazard areas by applicants prior to the commencement of construction.

16. Construction and post-construction related third-party monitoring inspections, compliance reviews
and reporis during construction of individual engineering projects.

17. Review of any reported violations and subsequent corrective restoration or mitigation for
violations caused by applicants or their contracters.



City of Black Diamond On-Call Task Request

Date: City Staff Contact:

Project Name: Phone:  360-886-5700
Project No.: Fax: 360-886-2592
Reguest Made To:

Phone:

Fax:

Scope of Task Request

Budget Estimate: $

Task Request Approval:

Written Name Title

Signature Date

*Costs are billed on a time and materials basis, the Consultant shall notify the City should additional funds be necessary to complete
the task order. Additional work beyond that which is ordered by the City shall not commence until written notification is received from

the City.




SubTerra, [nc. 1/8/2009

SubTerra, Inc.

Payment Terms and Rate Sheet

SubTerra, Inc. is an Engineering Corporation offering engineering services in the mining, civil,
and geotechnical fields. We also rent, lease, and sell equipment related to these fields
including blast monitoring equipment, instrumentation, excavation profiling and surveying, and
tunneling equipment

The following paragraphs and table provide a rate structure for our services and associated
payment terms and conditions.

Rates for Technical Professional Services Rate
Principal 155.00
Associate 135.00
Senior 125.00
Project 115.00
Staff 105.00
Senior Drafter 95.00
Drafter 85.00
Senior Independent Associate 175.00
Instrumentation Technician 95.00
CM Senior Inspector 105.00
CM Technician/Inspector 95.00
Secretarial and Administration 6% of Labor

Payment Terms for Technical Services

We invoice monthly for technical services, usually on or near the first of the month. For time
and materials contracts, invoices are provided that delineate hours worked by discipline or
personnel, other direct costs (e.g., subcontractors, travel, copying, telephone, etc.) that are
directly attributable to the project, and a markup of 10% on other direct costs that recovers
associated general and administrative costs, B&O taxes, and Pl insurance. Subject to prior
agreement with Client, an additional management fee may be added to subcontractors to
cover associated administrative costs. These costs will have already been incurred and paid
by us on your behalf. The invoice is therefore payable on receipt and is considered past due
10 days from the invoice date.

Payment Terms for Bental, Lease or Purchase of Equipment

Terms will be as noted on our Instrument and Equipment Rental Agreement, Sales Contract,
or Lease Agreement.

218 E. North Bend Way 425-888-5425 (Voice)
North Bend, WA 98045 http:\www.subterra.us Company: Initials:



CITY COUNCIL City of Black Diamond

AGENDA BILL Post Office Box 599
Black Diamond, WA 98010
ITEM INFORMATION
SUBJECT: Agenda Date: July 9, 2012 AB12-052
Resolution No. 12-820, authorizing Department/Committee/Individual
the Mayor to execute a contract with | | Mayor Rebecca Olness
Parametrix to serve as the survey City Administrator — Pete Butkus
consultant to the MDRT City Attorney ~Chrls Bacha
City Clerk — Brenda L. Martinez
Finance — May Miller
Public Works — Seth Boettcher
Cost Impact: variable Economic Devel. — Andy Williamson
Fund Source: pass-through expense to Master Police — Jamey Kiblinger
Developer
Timeline: 2-year contract w/10 day call Comm. Dev. — Steve Pilcher X
Attachments: Resolution No. 12-820, proposed contract
SUMMARY STATEMENT:

The Funding Agreement approved in conjunction with the two Development Agreements (DAs) for the
approved Master Planned Developments (MPDs) of Lawson Hills and The Villages assumes that
consultants will be hired to augment City staff in their work as the MPDs are implemented over time.
There will be significant needs for professional land surveyor (PLS) assistance in the review of specific
implementing projects (primarily plats).

In February, the City advertised in the Journal of Commerce, city website and official newspaper to
solicit Statements of Qualifications from firms interested in performing this work., A total of 7 firms
submitted their qualifications; three were selected to be interviewed. The interview panel consisted of
Councilmember Carol Benson, Asst. City Administrator/City Clerk Brenda Martinez and Community
Development Director Steve Pilcher. The interview panel’s unanimous choice is to hire Parametrix.

Per the ferms of the DAs, all costs for consultants must be patd for by the Master Developer (Yarrow
Bay). Consistent with past direction from the Council, the contract period is two years with a 10-day
termination provision is included, should the City decide to seek a different consultant or hire its own
staff at a future date.

This is the last MDRT consultant contract anticipated at this time.

COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: Councilmember Benson participated in the
interview process; reviewed and approved by the Finance Committee on June 14, 2012.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: MOTION to adopt Resolution 12-820, authorizing the
Mayor to execute a contract with Parametrix to serve as survey consultant to
the MDRT.

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION

Meeting Date Action Vote

July 9, 2012




RESOLUTION NO. 12-820

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT
WITH PARAMETRIX TO SERVE AS THE SURVEY
CONSULTANT TO THE MASTER DEVELOPMENT REVIEW
TEAM

WHEREAS, in 2010, the City Council approved Master Planned Development permits for
The Villages and Lawson Hills MPDs; and

WHEREAS, in 2011, the City Council approved Development Agreements for The
Villages and Lawson Hills MPDs; and

WHEREAS, as part of its consideration and approval of the Development Agreements,
the City also entered into a new Funding Agreement with BD Village Partners and BD
Lawson Partners; and

WHEREAS, the Funding Agreement calls for the establishment of a Master
Development Review Team (MDRT), to consist of City staff and outside consultants;
and

WHEREAS, the City does not have on sufficient staff resources nor the expertise to
provide survey review services to meet the needs of the MDRT; and

WHEREAS, private firms providing survey review services were invited to submit
Statements of Qualifications for review and consideration; and

WHEREAS, a panel consisting of staff and one City Council member reviewed the

submittals, subsequently interviewed three firms and then recommended Parametrix as
the firm most capable of providing survey review services as desired;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute a contract with Parametrix to
provide survey review services for the MDRT.

Page 1 of 2



PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, AT A SPECIAL MEETING THEREOF, THIS 9TH DAY OF JULY, 2012,

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND:

Rebecca Olness, Mayor

Aftest:

Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk

Page 2 of 2



CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Professional Services Agreement (the or this “Agreement”), for reference purposes
only, is dated _, 2012 and is entered info by and between

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, WASHINGTON (the “City™)
Physical Address: 24301 Roberts Drive
Mailing Address: PO Box 599

Black Diamond, WA 98010
Contact: Phone; 360-885-5700 Fax : 360-886-2392

and

Parametrix (“Consultant™)

1019 39" Avenue SE, Suite 100

Puyallup, WA 98374

Contact: Kathleen Cassou Phone: 253-604-6600 Fax; 253-604-6799
Tax Id No.: 91-0914810

for non-exclusive on-call professional services in connection with the following project:

Master Development Survey Review Services on a Task Order basis (the “Project”™).

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Services by Consultant

1.1  Consultant has been retained by the City to provide professional survey on-call
services as generally described in the Scope of Work attached to this Agreement as Exhibit "A".
The services performed by Consultant shall not exceed the Scope of Work nor shall the
Consultant be entitled to a greater amount of compensation as that provided in this Agreement
without the prior written anthorization of the City.

1.2 The City may from time to time require changes or modifications in the Scope of
Work. Such changes, including any decrease or increase in the amount of compensation, shall
be agreed to by the partics and incorporated in written amendments to this Agreement.

1.3 Consultant represents and warrants that it, its staff to be assigned to the Project,
and its subconsultants and their staff have the requisite fraining, skill, and experience necessary
to provide the services required by this Agrecement and are appropriately aceredited and licensed
by all applicable agencies and governmental entities. Services provided by Consultant and its
subconsultants under this Agreement will be performed in a manner consistent with that degree
of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing in
similar circumstances.

Professional Services Agreement

Page 1 of 11



2. Schedule of Work

2.1 The City will issue on on-call task request for each project task for which the City
requires Consultant services, No work shall be commenced by Consultant under this Agreement
except pursuant to such an on-call task request issued by the City in the form attached as
Exhibit “B.” Consultant shall perform the services described in the on-call task request in
accordance with the schedule and scope of work set forth in the on-call task request (the “Task
Scope of Work™).

2.2 Consultant will work within the project schedule set forth in the on-call task
request and will diligently proceed with the work and shall assure that it, and its subconsultants,
will have adequate staffing at all times in order to complete the Scope of Work in a timely
manner. If factors beyond Consultant's control that could not have been reasonably foreseen as
of the date of this Agreement cause delay, then the parties will negotiate in good faith to
determine whether an extension is appropriate. The Consultant shall provide the City with
written notice of any delay, or potential delay, that may trigger the need for a time extension
within 3 business days after the Consultant becomes aware of the delay or potential delay.

2.3 Consultant is authorized to proceed with services upon receipt of a signed task
order.

3. Compensation

3.1  Rates. Compensation for the services provided pursuant to cach on-call task
request shall be on a time and materials basis according to the list of billing rates and
reimbursable expenses attached hereto as Exhibit “C”. Consultant may adjust the billing rates
and reimbursable expenses once each calendar year on or after January Lst by providing the City
with written notice of the adjusted rates and expenses no less than (30) thirty days prior to the
effective date of such adjustment. The billing rates and reimbursable expenses for on-call task
orders issued prior to receipt of written notice of the rate/expense adjustment by the City shall
not be affected by the adjustment.

3.2 Other. In the event that after commencement of work, the Consultant anticipates
that the work for an on-call task request will exceed the intial amount authorized, Consultant
shall promptly notify the City and provide the City with whatever docoments or information is
necessary to request approval of any amounts in excess thereof,

4, Payment

4.1  Consultant shall maintain time and expense records and provide them to the City
monthly, along with monthly invoices, in a format acceptable to the City for work performed to
the date of the invoice.

4.2 All invoices shall be paid by City warrant within sixty (60) days of actual receipt
by the City of an invoice conforming in all respects to the terms of this Agreement.

Professional Services Agreement

Page2o0f 11



4.3  Consultant shall keep cost records and accounts pertaining to this Agrecment
available for inspection by City representatives for three (3) years after final payment unless a
longer period is required by a third-party agreement. Consultant shall make copies availabie to
the City on request. :

44  If the services rendered do not meet the requirements of the Agreement,

Consultant will correct or modify the work to comply with the Agreement. The City may
withhold payment for such work until the work meets the requirements of the Agreement.

5, Discrimination and Compliance with Laws

5.1 Consultant agrees not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for
employment or any other person in the performance of this Agreement because of race, creed,
color, national origin, marital stafus, sex, age, disabilify, or other circumstance prohibited by
federal, state, or local law or ordinance, except for a bona fide occupational qualification,

5.2 Consultant and its subconsultants shall comply with all federal, state, and local
laws and ordinances applicable to the work to be done under this Agreement,

53  Any violation of this Section 5 shall be a material breach of this Agreement and
grounds for immediate cancellation, termination, or suspension of the Agreement by the City, in
whole or in part, and may result in Consultant’s ineligibility to conduct further work for the
City.

6. Suspension and Termination of Agreement

6.1  The City reserves the right to terminate or suspend this Agreement at any time,
without cause, by giving Consultant notice in writing ten (10) days prior to the termination or
suspension date. In the event of termination, all finished or unfinished reports, or other material
prepared by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement, shall be submitted to the City, In the event
the City terminates this Agreement priot to completion without cause, Consultant may complete
such analyses and records as may be necessary to place its files in order. Consultant shall be
entitled to compensation for any satisfactory work completed on the Project prior to the date of
suspension or termination,

6.2  Any notice from the City to Consultant regarding the suspension of this
Agreement shall specify the anficipated period of suspension. Any reimbursement for expenses
incurred due fo the suspension shall be limited to Consultant's reasonable expenses and shall be
subject to verification. Consultant shall resume performance of services under this Agreement
without delay when the suspension period ends.

7. Standard of Care

7.1 Consultant represents and warrants that it has the requisite training, skiil,
and experience necessary to provide the services under this Agreement and is appropriately

Professional Services Agreement

Page 3 0f 11



accredited and licensed by all applicable agencies and governmental entities. Services
Consultant provides under this Agreement will be performed in a manner consistent with that
degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently
practicing in similar circumstances. Consultant understands and agrees that the services
rendered pursuant to this Agreement are for the sole exclusive benefit of the City and that no
third party shall have authority to authorize, approve, direct or conirol any of the services
rendered to the City pursuant to this Agreement.

8. Ownership of Work Product

8.1  Ownership of the originals of any reports, data, studies, surveys, charts, maps,
drawings, specifications, figures, photographs, memoranda, and any other documents which are
developed, compiled, or produced as a result of this Agreement, whether or not completed, shall
be vested in the City and shall be submitted to the City upon termination of this Agreement. Any
reuse of these materials by the City for projects or purposes other than those that fall within the
scope of this Agreement and the Project to which it relates, without written concurrence by
Consultant, will be at the sole risk of the City.

8.2  The City acknowledges Consultant’s documents as instruments of professional
service. Nevertheless, the documents prepared under this Agreement shall become the property
of the City upon completion of the work. The City agrees to hold harmless and indemnify
Consultant against all claims made against Consultant for damage or injury, including defense
costs, arising out of the City’s reuse of such documents beyond the use for which they were
originally intended without the written authorization of Consultant,

8.3  Methodology, software, logic, and systems developed under this Agreement are
the property of Consultant and the City, and may be used as either Consultant or the City see fit,
including the right to revise or publish the same without limitation.

9, Indemnification/Hold Harmless

a.1 Consultant shall defend, indemmify, and hold the City, its officers, officials,
employees and agents harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits
including attorney fees, arising directly or indirectly out of or resulting from the acts, errors, or
omissions of Consultant or its subconsultants in performance of this Agreement, except for
injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City. PROVIDED, HOWEVER,
THAT IF ANY SUCH CLAIMS, INJURIES, DAMAGES, LOSSES OR SUITS RESULT
FROM THE CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE OF CONSULTANT AND THE CITY, IT IS
EXPRESSLY AGREED THAT CONSULTANT'S OBLIGATIONS AND INDEMNITY
UNDER THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE EFFECTIVE ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF
CONSULTANT’S NEGLIGENCE.

10. Insurance
10.1  Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, and

shall provide proof satisfactory to the City that such insurance is procured and maintained by
each of its subconsultants, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to

Professional Services Agreement

Page 4 of 11



property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by
Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees,

10.2  Consultant shall procure and maintain the following types and amounts of
insurance:

a. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired, and
leased vehicles. Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office (ISQ) form CA 00 01
or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage. If necessary, the policy shall be
endorsed to provide contractual liability coverage. This insurance shall have a minimum
combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident.

b. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on ISO
occurrence form CG 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage and shall
cover liability arising from premises, operations, independent contractors, personal injury, and
advertising injury. This insurance shall be written with limits no less than $1,000,000 each
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate.

c. Workers” Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance
laws of the State of Washington.

d. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to Consultant’s profession,
with limits no less than $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit,

103  The Automobile Liability, Commercial General Liability, and Professional
Liability insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

a. Consultant’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance vis-a-vis the
City. Any insurance, self-insurance, or insurance pool coverage maintained by the City shall be
excess over Consultant’s insurance and shall not contribuie with it.

b. Consultant’s insurance shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be
cancelled, except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt
requested, has been given to the City,

104 The City shall be named as an additional insured under Consultant’s Automobile
Liability and Commercial General Liability insurance policies with respect to the work to be
performed for the City pursuant to this Agreement.

10.5  Insurance shall be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not less
than A:VIL

10.6  Declaration pages issued by the insurance carriers for the policies mentioned in
this Section 10 showing such insurance to be in force shall be filed with the City not Iess than ten
(10) days following both parties signing this Agreement and before commencement of the work.,
In addition, the City may request, in writing, a full copy from Consultant of any insurance policy
Consultant must procure and maintain pursuant to this Agreement and Consultant must provide
such copy to the City within ten (10) days of Consultant’s receipt of the City’s request. Any
policy or required insurance written on a claims-made basis shall provide coverage as to all
claims arising out of the services performed under this Agreement and for three (3) years
following completion of the services to be performed. It shall be a material breach of this

Professional Services Agreement

Page 5 of 11



Agreement for Consultant to fail to procure and maintain the insurance required by this Section
10 or to provide the proof of such insurance to the City as provided for in this Agreement.

11. Assigning or Sabeontracting

11.1  Consultant shall not assign, transfer, subcontract, or encumber any rights, duties,
or interests accruing from this Agreement without the express prior written consent of the City,
which consent may be withheld at the sole discretion of the City.

i2. Independent Coniractor

12.1  Consultant and its subconsultants are, and shall be at all times during the term of
this Agreement, independent contractors.

13. Notice

13.1  All netices required by this Agreement shall be considered properly delivered
when personally delivered, when received by facsimile, or oun the third day following mailing,
postage prepaid, certified mail, return receipt requested to:

City: City Administrator
City of Black Diamond
P.C. Box 599
Black Diamond, WA ¢8010
Fax: 360-886-2592

With a copy to: Chris Bacha,
City Attorney
Kenyon Disend, PLLC
11 Front Street South
Issaquah, WA 98027
Fax: 425-392-7071

Consultant: Kathleen Cassou
Parametrix, Inc,
1019 39" Ave SE, Suite 100
Puyallup, WA 98374
Fax: 253-604-6799

14,  Disputes

14,1 Any action for claims arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be
governed by the laws of the State of Washington. Venue shall be in King County Superior
Coust, Kent, Washington,

Professional Services Agreement

Page 6 of 11



15. Atforney Fees

151 In any suit or action instituted to enforce any right granted in this Agreement, the
substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its costs, disbursements, and
reasonable attorney fees from the other party.

16. General Administration and Management on Behalf of the City

16.1 The City Administrator for the City, or his/her designee(the contract
Administrator) shall review and approve Consultant's invoices to the City under this Agreement
and shaill have primary responsibility for overseeing and approving work or services to be
performed by Consultant. Consultant understands and agrees that any and all work to be
performed pursuant to this Agreement must be approved in advance by the contract
Administrator. No third party, including the project applicant, shall have any direct control or
influence over the services performed under this Contract,

17.  Extent of Agreement/Modification

17.1  This Agreement, together with any attachments or addenda, represents the entire
and integrated Agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations,
representations, or agreements, either written or oral. After City Council approval, this
Agreement shall be in effect as of June 14, 2012, and shall remain in effect until June 30, 2014,
unless sooner terminated as set forth herein, This Agreement may only be amended, modified,
or added to by written instrament properly signed by both parties. The parties acknowledge the
general contract rule that a clause in a contract, such as this one, prohibiting oral modifications
is itself generally subject to oral modification. However, in order to ensure certainty as fo the
terms and conditions of this Agreement, the parties waive this general contract rule.

18. Conflict of Interest; Non-Collusion

18.1 No officer, employee or agent of the City, nor any member of the immediate
family of any such officer, employee or agent, shall have any personal financial interest, direct
or indirect, in this Contract, either in fact or in appearance. The Consultant shall comply with
all federal, state, and City conflict of interest laws, statutes and regulations, The Consultant
represents that the Consultant presently has no interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct
or indirect, in the project to which this Contract pertains which would conflict in any manner or
degree with the performance of the Consultant’s services and obligations hereunder, The
contractor’s officers, employees or agents shall neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors or
anything of monetary value from the project applicant or any affiliate or agent of the project
applicant,

18.2 The Consultant warrants and represents that the Consultant has not, nor has any
other member, employee, representative, agent or officer of the Consultant, entered into or
offered to enter into any combination, collusion or agreement with any person or entity to
receive or pay, and that he has not received or paid, any sum of money or other consideration

Professional Services Agreement

Page 7of 11



for the execution of this Contract other than the consideration offered pursuant to the terms and
conditions hereof.

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND CONSULTANT
i s /7
By: Y,
Rebecea Olness Printed ,N ame: Kathleen Cassou
Its: Mayor Tts: Survey Manager
Date: Date: ,é/fzi/if_,
Altest:
By:

Brenda L. Martinez
City Clerk

Professional Services Agreement

Pape 8 of 11



EXHIBIT A

Master Development Review Team
Scope of Survey Work

Primary Task Responsibilities
Land Use Application Review — Assuring Submittals Meet State and Local Survey Related

Requirements and Compliance with Master Development Agreements

VYV V¥V VY VYV VY

Road Vacations and Dedications
Wetland Buffer Compliance
Boundary Line Adjustments
Final Plats

Short Plats

Binding Site Plans
Condominium Plats

Legal Descriptions

MDR Team Participation, Meetings, Reports

Supplemental Task Responsibilities

Horizontal and Vertical Control Verification

» Establish Network

»  Benchmarks

» Monument Preservation and Perpetuation

» DNR Required Monument Destruction Permits
Boundary

» Section Subdivision

> Deed Interpretation

> Historical Ownership — Chain of Title

» Riparian Rights

» Railroad Easements and ROW

Right of Way

> Determination and Mapping ROW, Easements, Tracts, etc.
»  ROW Acquisition Assistance

Construction Support

» Review of Plans — Constructibility
Mapping

» Topographic Mapping and Base Map

» High Definition — 3D Scanaing

» FEMA Elevation Certificates

> Wetland Mapping and Buffer Establishment

City of Black Digmond
Scope of Survey Work I

274-3043-013
June 2012



Exhibit B

City of Black Diamond On-Call Task Request

Date: City Staff Contact:
Task Name: Phone: 360-886-5700
Consuitant Project No.: Fax 360-886-2592

Consultant Contact Name:
Consultant Phone:
Consultant Fax:

Scope of Task Request

Budget Estimate:

Task Request Approval:

City of Black Diamond:
Written Name Title
Signature Date
Consultant:
Written Name Title
Signature Date

*Costs are billed on a time and materials basis, the Consuitant shall notify the City should additional funds be necessary to complete
the task order, Additional work beyond that which is ordered by the City shall not commmence until written notification is received from

the City.




EXHIBIT C
CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND
MASTER DEVELOPMENT REVIEW TEAM
SURVEY BILLING RATE SCHEDULE

Ctlassification Hourly Billing Rate
Principal $215.00
Survey Division Manager $175.00
Survey Project Manager $145.00
Survey Office Technician $85.00 - $104.00
Survey CADD Technician $72.00 - $85.00
Field Survey Party Chief $96.00 - $105.00
Field Survey Crew Member $65.00 - $78.00
Administrative Project Support $80.00
Expert Witness Testimony $250.00

Direct project expenses and reproduction costs are billed at cost plus 15%
Mileage expense is billed at current approved IRS mileage rate

Lodging and PerDiem costs are billed at current GSA rates

Survey equipment except laser scanner billed at $150/day

Laser Scanner is hilled at $97.40fhour

Prevailing Wage Rafes apply to construction surveying on all Public Works
projects (See Washington State Prevailing Wage Schedule for each County)

Parametrix
Billing Rate Schedule



CITY COUNCIL City of Black Diamond

AGENDA BILL Post Office Box 599
Black Diamond, WA 98010
ITEM INFORMATION
SUBJECT: | Agenda Date: July 9, 2012 AB12-053
Resolution 12-821, authorizing the Department/Committee/Individual
Mayor to issue a Special Events Mayor Rebecea Olness
Permit for Xterra Black Diamond City Administrator — Petc Butkus
2012 C%ty Attorney —Chris Bacha .
City Clerk — Brenda L. Martinez
Finance - May Miller
Public Works — Seth Boeticher
Cost Impact; Economic Devel, — Andy Williamson
Fund Source: applicant Police — Jamey Kiblinger
Timeline: August 4" & 5", 2012 Court - Stephanie Metcalf
Comm. Dev. — Steve Pilcher - X
Attachments: Resolution 12-821, Application, Staff Comments
SUMMARY STATEMENT:

This year’s Xterra Black Diamond Triathlon is proposed to take place on August 4-5, 2012, The race
includes a swim in Lake Sawyer, a bike race and run in Lake Sawyer Park and adjoining private property.
On Saturday, event organizers will set up for the race. The actual races will take place on Sunday. There
is a half and full triathlon race for adults. There will also be mini race for kids.

As part of the event, Xterra has requested permission for 15 campsites to be used for out-of-town
competitors. A total of 4 porfable toilets will be provided on-site, along with one hand-washing station.
No more than 100 vehicles will be parked on-site on the weekend; additional off-street parking has been
arranged at Sawyer Woods Elementary School, as was done last year.

The event will use an off duty police officer to ensure safe crossing of pedestrians from the school to the
event location. In addition, EMS personnel from Fire District 44 will also be available on race day. These
services are being paid by Xterra. The event is being sponsored by local businesses and the coordinators
will encourage participants to visit local businesses after the race.

COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: Reviewed and approved by the Parks
Committee at its June 21* meeting.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: MOTION to adopt resolution 12-821 approving the
Xterra Special Event SEP12-0001

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION

Meeting Date Action Vote

July 9, 2012




RESOLUTION NO. 12-821

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON
AUTHORIZING THE CITY COUNCIL TO APPROVE THE
XTERRA SPECIAL EVENT SEP12-0001

WHEREAS, Black Diamond Municipal Code 2.59.040(B) requires the City Council to
approve any special event that exceeds one day in duration; and

WHEREAS, the Xterra Triathlon Race has occurred annually in the Lake Sawyer Park
and surrounding lands beginning in 2008; and

WHEREAS, Raise the Bar LLC proposes to use the Lake Sawyer Park and adjoining
private properties to hold the 5th Annual Xterra Black Diamond Triathion on August 4-5,

2012; and
WHEREAS, City staff has reviewed the proposal and proposed conditions of approval
that will ensure the public interest is protected during this activity;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the approval of special event
permit SEP12-0001 for the Xterra Black Diamond Triathlon.

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, AT A SPECIAL MEETING THEREOF, THIS 9th DAY OF JULY, 2012.

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND:

Rebecca Qlness, Mayor

Atfest:

Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk



SPECIAL EVENT APPLICATION

PERMIT# %? 1 2.-000 \

EVENT INFORMATION

EVENT NAME: /lé’é%@— éxﬂff( d'#wwvd
EVENT LOCATION:__£Aes” Swyst. i somee awid Y210t 9005

(if structures will be erected and/or street ROW used, please attach (3) drawings noting locations and dimensions.)

EVENT TYPE: [ Exhlbmon O Protest m’ Run/Walk [0 Dance [0 Festival O Concert [l Party
(Check all that apply) [T1 W /dmg L] Drama j}arade O Other Pt o

DATE OF EVENT: ﬁ/f 20/2 /é‘?’w’ 2] Z— HOURS: 5 o ?M "‘5/5 22
PURPOSE OF EVENT: ﬂ 80 7 s 2t i £ PSS St

* EST. ATTENDANCE: Participants Z‘;{_} Spectators 28 Volnteers/Personnel 28
CITY BUS. LICENSE #: (participating commercial vendors will also require a City license)

PARKING PLANS: Zz?w; 5;"-/4%?3 %ﬂfc: j Zﬂw’ﬁb«wx { LT IR R, %g.

{Please provide a drawing unless yoti are using an existing parking lot'with sufficient stalls.) /

FACILITIES TOBEUSED: O City Park I}H Lake Sawyer [0 Sidewalk M Street ﬁ Private Property
(If using private property, you must provide proof that you have permission unless you are the owner.)
CITY ASSISTANCE REQUIRED: K. Police K| Firc O Public Works T Other

Dezcribe:
(Police and Fire services require a wriften agreement thai must be submitted with the event application.)

INSURANCE COMPANY: _Z5/K — é;:ﬂszmﬁpr/ gﬂf’; Lsiot s %"’ﬂ/@

{Proof of Ins. required naming City of Black Diamond as co-insured if event is taking place on City property.)

FOOD TO BE SERVED: YES O NO Ifyes, provide copy of Health Dept approval/license.
SOUND SYSTEM: YES O NO
(If liquor and music are provided u Cabaret license tay be requived,)

SANITATION PLANS (Sani-cans, iand washing stations, etc); e FOR S 4%/;%4‘?%/% %774/

PRODUCTS OR SERVICES TO BE SOLD: O YES lﬁi NO If'yes, what?

ADMISSION FEE: Y YES O NO 1f yes, how much? 758,00 v 120,00 i ﬂ«/ﬂf&%jz

HAS THE EVENT BEEN PREVIOUSLY PRODUCED? J YES [1 NO PREVIOUS DATE:E/3/8, /2 ae,?
ANY CHANGES FROM PREVICUS EVENT? 01 YES J{ NO Ifyes, list changos:

APPLICANT INFORMATIQN
APPLICANT(%Q/J/ZHWS OR(Z&?IIZATION /i;% v A'L ‘ZZ/
MAILING ADDRESS: /{5/25 5% Z72% 5~ ﬁz':z//&’/% / /él/f" JJAZ TaY 2.

ViecobdOZuscrs\RPitzeltvy Documents\Websitewomm dosiSPECIAL EVENT APPLICATION1(-21-10.doc

/’f’ﬁ///



contacr prONE: 2593~ 2/ 7-/¢/ (2 FAX
B Lewot WELAZTREBAL (917

X

. V—
EMAIL ADDRESS: __J008880

oA
EMERGENCY CONTAGT ///;7'7.7// W&ﬂf&ﬁ | pHONE_Y = 1 79-772 7
— SN /
SIGNATURE OF APPLICANT PATR

Weobd2wsersiRPirzelMy DocumentsiWebsite\comro dewSPECTAL TVENT APPLICATIONT0-21-10.doc



XTERRA Black Diamand 2012

R o Y
CVEilL Lesuripuiva

Raise the Bar respectfully requests the permission of the City of Black Diamond to produce the 5" annual XTERRA 8lack
Diamond scheduled for August 5, 2012. The 2012 event will feature 2 adult races of different distances run
simultaneously on the same course and a kids' event that takes place within the park boundaries.

Location:

The race takes place on the City of Black Diamond’s Lake Sawyer Park, King County Owned property, and on the privately
owned trails east of Lake Sawvyer

Date/Time:
Saturday, August 4, 2012; 9AM - dusk {Set-up)
Sunday, August 5, 2012: 5AM - 3PM. {Race day)

Schedule of Events:
August 4: Transition area set-up on City of Black Diamond park property. Course setup and athlete course previews
taking place on the course.

August 5: 6:00  Registration
9:00 Long course race begins
9:20  Shortcourse race begins
9:30  Kids Race Begins
1:30  All athletes off the course. Awards, meal take place, clean-up begins
3:00  Course Clean-up and exit

Estimated Attendance:
200 individual adult athletes, 150-200 spectators, volunteers and staff, 60 kids and parents for kids' race

Parking:

fvent organizers will park no more than 100 staff, volunteer, and/or athlete vehicles within the park boundaries on race
weekend. No vehicles will park within 100 feet of the shore and spill response kits will be available in the event a vehicle
is leaking oil or other fluid. All other vehicles will park at Sawyer Woods Elementary School as contracted through the
Kent School District. A police officer will provide traffic control on Sunday morning to assure the safety of pedestrians
crossing 228" Ave SE to access SE 312 st

Sanitation:
3 standard portable toilets, 1 fully-accessible portable toilet, and one hand-washing station will be on site to serve
athletes, spectators, and staff as per the recommendation of the vendor.

Athlete Safety:

Mountain View Fire and Rescue will provide medical care to athletes on race day. Certified lifeguards will be hired to
provide water support during the swim portion. The Maple Valley Amateur Radio Club will provide communication
assistance on race day to afert race staff and the medical team of any requirements to assist athletas on the course.



Insurance
YTERRA Black Diomon

AV = PRLOTNE RO R S TE ] 41

di iathion, which provides ar insurance policy for the race thraugh

oo
1xd

the ESIX insurance company. King County, the private property owners, the Kent School District, and the City of Black
Diamond will be listed as "additional insured’s and certificates of insurance will be provided.

Camping

The event would like to provide 15 camping sites in the park for out-of-town athletes. Other camping options were
explored last year and weren’t adequate. Overnight camping fees will be collected and payments made payable to the
City of Black Diamond for the amount dictated by the city. Race organizers will park and occupy ane tent trailer
overnight to provide security.

Neighbor notice
Notice will be made to neighbors on SE 312 St. no less than 2 weeks prior to the event with a schedule, and description
of the event.

Moise
Amplification of race announcements and music will begin no earlier than 8:00AM and will be kept at an appropriate
volume to serve the athletes and staff. Race organizers make every effort not to disturb the neighbors close to the park.

Food
Food will be provided at the event by a vendor who has the appropriate permits with the Department of Health,

Race produced by:

Raise the Bar LILC

15423 SE 272™ St. #106.1
Kent, WA 98042

Event Cwners:
Brad Williams 253-217-1614 brad@weraisethebar.com
Patty Swedberg: 206-779-7727 patty@weraisethebar.com

Course Director:
Toby Mollett 206-713-0800 toby@weraisethebar.com



Course Page 1 of 2

XTErrA
 AMERICATOUR

XTEHA.

BLACK DIAMOND
Presented by
Yarrow Bay Communities

The Course

first. .Ehe venue! The XTERRA Black Diamond transition area is currentiy sitting on the future site of the Lake Sawyer
Regional Park owned by the City of Black Diamond. You can visit that park at any time. The Lake Sawyer Park
Foundation's mission Is to identify and secure funds and resources to develop approximately 150 acras at the scuth end of
Lake Sawyer into a regional park that includes sports fields, beach front/swimming, picnic areas, and trails for walking,
hiking, and riding horses. They are a grass roots, community-based organization. If you are interested in seeing this park
tuming into a great communify resource, you can make a tax-deductible denation during as part of your online race

reqgistration.

“Biue Zone Consulting” Swim Coursea:
XTERRA: 1000 meters. V2 terra: 500 meters

XTERRA athletes will swim around the mysterious XTERRA Island 500 meters from
shore.

¥, terra athletes will swim 250 meters cut and turn around....
Water Temperature is typically 75 degrees

Biks Course: Lake Sawyer Trails

XTERRA: 15 miles 14 terra: 7.5 miles

Leaving transition you will enjoy almost a mile of dirt road riding with
plenty of room to pass. Use this time wisely because there will be no
more breaks after vou hit the single track. The next miie is same nice The bike and run courses
fast singie track. Once you start feeling comfortable you will come upon .

the stream crossing. Here you will have to geat off your bike and are on prlvately owned

maneauver around, over, or under the logs that try and keep you out. property and are
Plan on getting your feet wet!i! Once on the other side, enjoy some unavailable for XTERRA
more casual riding along the creek where you will crass it again over the pre-rides until the

wooden bridge. From here there wili be some shart technical sections .
and some short leg burning climbs. But that just warms you up for the Saturday preceding Race
nice climb up Ruth's hill. After this grueiling climb you will traverse the Day.

hillside and make a big loop that will eventually take you on some fast

single track back to the start of loop two. The start of lap two is different The owners of those properties thank

than lap one, hera you will have a rude introduction to a lot of switch you for your cooperation, which, by

backs, roots, and rocks. This is the technical part of the course. the way, will encourage them to
continue to offer their property for

XTERRA athietes will do two loops, ' terra athigetes will do one this race in the future,

ioop

Questions? You can bug Toby with
thnea

‘Maple Valley Physical Therapy’ Run Course. Frog Lake Trail & others
XTERRA athletes: 6.2 miles. 2 terra athietas; 3.1 miles

After we make sure that your legs feel like concrete and your arms and hands are frozen to the handle bar
position you will enjoy a nice leisurely run through frog Lake Forest. Here you ancounter single track trails with
moderate glevation changes. We must warn you though, when you are running along Frog Lake, watch your
footing, it's a windy technical section. You might even have to jump over a fallen tree or two. After this section,
vou'll come back towards transition and just before you get there you will have to take a sharp left up a short
stzep cmb for some mare single track running and a loop back te transition. Y. terra athietes will head o the
finich line ¥TFRRA athlatec will haad nndk bn ransatr

http://WWW.Xterrablackdiamond.com/ course.himl 6/15/2012



i

T e—

. j‘-—."\

COURSE MAP

DRAWN BY: Toby Mul‘fef:\

"
tH g

T e

NOTES ’ '

1. BIKE AND RUN COURSE ROUTES WILL REMAIN ON EXISTING
TRANLS AND UMIMPROVED ROADS

2. BIKE AND RUN COURSE ARE TWO LOOPS
LEGEND
SWint COURSE - 7,000 METERS

. Start of 2nd fap
. Brie Finish

Stortofzndiop | | A :
or ig Finish ; ) / i
™ : // l

—— HTErrTH
e BIKE GOURSE - 15 MILES BLACK DIAMOKD
———- RUN GOURSE - 6.2 MILES Presoatud by
———— SINGLE TRACK TRALLS YARRGWEAY

\_ = UNMMPROVED ROAD COiURITIES

T = 1000




INYT TEAVYL 10 «!.:Baﬂ 7 SRLTHLY
O FZ U HUM SL X 6 GHETNELS STIVLS BN BPL
FHY STIVIS SNREY TIV L0

IS HIgIEIs

" ﬁ.zwa._m.mr—

SINFWIS

HIAMVYS INT

e

1I8IHX3 ONDIYYd
ONOWYIG XaVTd VHHILX







Q Review Process Status Report
N it sEP12-0001

PERMITTRANX

1010 - Planning Review - R T L A CompIete'? Y
06!18/2012 By SWELSH Minutes: 15 Origlnal Due Date 06:’2912012 Actlon CMP Y

SINCE THIS IS A TWO DAY EVENT, PER BDMC SECTION 2.59.040.8, THE CITY COUNCIL IS
RESPONSIBLE FOR APPROVING THIS SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT. A PUBLIC HEARING 1S NOT
REQUIRED.

*THE APPLICANT MUST PROVIDE COPIES OF SPECIAL USE PERMITS.
Total Time: 15

1030+ Building Review "7 " 1 fo T s Assigned: RMEYERS - 8/29/2012 Comiplets? "N
Totai Time: ]

Total Time: i}

4060 < Fire Review “ . . :"Assigned; DDALSANTO -6/29/2012
06/19/2012 By: RYOUNG Minutes: 30 Original Due Date: 06/29/2012 ‘Action: CMP Y

1. maintain FD access to school, homes off SE 312th and the park.
2. Provide for FD EMS stand-by personne/

Total Time: 30

1070 - Police Review: - - T Assigned: JKIBLINGER - fizo/ani2 C

Total Time: 0

7272012 8:25:20 AM Page 1 of 2



1080 - Parks Review Assigned: JKIBLINGER - 8/29/2012 Compleie? ¥
06/18/2012 By: ANIX Minutes: 120 Original Due Date: 06/29/2012 Action: CMP Y

1. Please identify the 15 locations for camping on the map supplied with the application and the area for
the pop-up irailer. it should be expected that each campsite will be utilized io locate one fent,
approximately a 1010 area for each (310 fee for each site). No fire pits are allowed. If barbecues are
going to be ulilized ansile, please gain written permission from the Black Diamond Fire Department,
conditioned for safe use in the park. Briquet barbecues are prohibited as no acceptable coaf receptacies
sxistin the Park. Qnly dry camping is allowed within the regional facility as no uiflities exist. Dumping of
wastewater in the regional facility from the tent traifer is strictly prohibited.

2. No more then 100 vehicles will be aflowed fo park within the regional facility at any given time. The
parking plan shows 140 parking stalls, but the 100 car limit will be sirictly enforced. Additienal parking
shafl be located at Sawyer Woods Elementary or another approved facility. Please have a back-up plan
in place as additional vehicles will not be allowed within the facility beyond the 100 vehicle limit and at an
appropriate distance away from the water's edge.

3. Please limit the disruption of private property owners afong 312th Street from car, foot traffic and
excess noise. This is a residential neighborhood and no parking is permitted on either side of 312th from
it's intersection with Lake Sawyer Road fo the gate af the entrance of the Regional facility.

4. Please ensure that no vegetafion removal is allowed within the Regional facility and trash is picked up
and taken fo an appropriate facility at the conclusion of activities and departure from the facifity.

5. Please ensure that access is granted from all privale property owners being impacted by the event.
The submitted map is unclear, but based on the Exterra wabsite, access across the Rust property island
is shown. No approvals have been given to utilize this property and due lo its acological sensitivity,
access is not recommended by permitting staiff.

6. If vendors will be selling food at the regional facility, appropriate health permits are required as well as
City of Black Diamond vendor's permit (350.00 each).

7. Smoking is prohibited within the regional facility.

8. The hanging of temporary signs and/or banners within the regional facility must be approved by the
City Council through the special avents permit process and directional marking wilf be aflowed on a
temporary basis.

8. Amplified sound will only be alfowed as long as the volumae is kept to minimum needed levels.
10. Please arrange for pick-up of the gate key along 312th Street prior to the end of business on Friday,

August 3, 2012. The key shall be returned by the end of business on August 8, 20412 or other
arrangements made with permitting staff. Do not duplicate the key.

Total Time: 120

1190 - Permit Tech Review Assigned: ADONLAN - 6/29/2012 Complste? N
Total Time: 0

1200 - Administration Review Assigned: BMARTINEZ - 6/29/2012 Complete? N
Total Time: 0

1210 - Economic Development Review Assigned: BMARTINEZ - 6/29/2012 Complete? Y
06/20/2012 By: AWILLIAMSON Minutes: 15 Original Due Date: 06/29/2012 Action: CMP Y
Tatal Time: 15
Total Reviews: 9 Total Time: 180

7:2i2012 8 25:20 Al Page 2 of 2



CITY COUNCIL City of Black Diamond

AGENDA BILL Post Office Box 599
Black Diamond, WA 98010
ITEM INFORMATION
SUBJECT: Agenda Date: July 9, 2012 AB12-054
Resolution No. 12-812, executing a Department/Committee/Individual
grant agreement with King County Mayor Rebecca Olness
Dept. of Community & Human Services City Administrator — Pete Butkus
Housing and Community Development City Attorney —Chris Bacha
for the replacement of the 5™ Avenue City Clerk — Brenda L. Martinez
Water Main. Finance — May Miller
Public Works — Seth Boettcher
Cost Impact: $175,000 (total project budget) Economic Devel. — Andy Williamson X
Fund Source: $160,000 CDGB grant and Police — Jamey Kiblinger
$15.000 in kind match from REET II
Timeline: Start right away; Complete in 2013 Court — Stephanie Metcalf
Comm. Dev. — Steve Pilcher

Attachments: Resolution No. 12-812; Grant Agreement; Aerial Photo; Anticipated Schedule; CIP
page

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

The City applied for a $160,000 Community Development Block Grant in 2011 as was selected for
funding. King County has now sent the City a grant agreement for distribution of $41,000 of engineering
funds. The construction funds will be made available by an amendment to the enclosed grant agreement.

The replacement of the existing asbestos concrete water main in 5" Street will bring the fire flows up to
City standards along the improvements and improve the reliability of water service.

The 2012 project budget was for $175,000. The City committed to a 20% match of which most of the
contribution was to come from in kind match. The City of Black Diamond Public Works Department will
provide the project administration, the grant administration, inspections and project management.

The water line construction will have to be completed while Lawson Creek is dry. At this point the City
is expecting to design the project this year, bid the project early next year and be ready for construction
during the dry season in 2013.

COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: MOTION to adopt Resolution 12-812, authorizing the
Mayor to execute a grant agreement with King County Department of
Community and Human Services Housing and Community Development for
the distribution of $41,000 of grant funds for engineering and to execute
amendments to the agreement to accept the distribution of construction
funding.

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION

Meeting Date Action Vote

July 9, 2012




RESOLUTION NO. 12-812

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON
EXECUTING A GRANT AGREEMENT WITH KING COUNTY
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AND HUMAN SERVICES
HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FOR THE
REPLACEMENT OF THE FIFTH AVENUE WATER MAIN

WHEREAS, the 5" Street Water Main Replacement project is scheduled for construction
in 2012 and 2013 on the city’s Capital Improvement Plan; and

WHEREAS, the City received a $160,000 King County Community Development Block
Grant for the 5™ Street Water Main Replacement project; and

WHEREAS, replacement of the 5" Street Ave water main will improve the reliability of
service to the South East section of the City and improve the fire flow;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the attached agreement labeled
Exhibit A with King County Department of Community & Human Services Housing and
Community Development for the distribution of $41,000 of grant funds for engineering
and to execute amendments to the attached agreement to accept the distribution of
construction funding.

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, AT A SPECIAL MEETING THEREOF, THIS 9TH DAY OF JULY, 2012.

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND:

Rebecca Olness, Mayor

Attest:

Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk



Community Services Division

tg Depariment of Community and Human Services
Housing and Community Development Section

e 206-263-9067  TTY Relay 711
Contractor City of Black Diamond
Project Title Black Diamond Fifth Avenue Water Main Replacement (C12226)
Contract Amount S 41.000 o
Contract Start Date: 3/23/2012 Contract End Date _5/31/2013
Termination Date (where applicable):  5/31/2013 - -
DUNS No. (if applicable) 155890011 CCR No. (if applicable) 5eEDOY

KING COUNTY HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CONTRACT— 2012

THIS CONTRACT Nc. 5427808 is entered into by KING COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State
of Washington (the "County”). and City of Black Diamond. (the “Contractor”), whose addrass is P.O.
Box 589. Black Diamond, WA 9801C. This Contractor is 2 Municipal cerporation.

WHEREAS, the County is an Urban County recipient of Ccmmunity Development Block Grant
Program (CDBG) funds under the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, Public Law 93-
383 as amended (the "HCD Act’): HOME Investment Partnerships Program (HOME) funds under the
National Affcrdable Housing Act of 19590 Pubiic Law 101-625 as amended (the "NAHA"). The County
allocates Housing Opportunity Funds (HOF), Regiconal Affordable Housing Program (RAHP) funds,
and Homeless Housing and Services Funds (2163), Homeless Housing Document Recording Fes
Surcharge Revenue (2331), Veterans and Human Service Levy funds and Mental lliness and Drug
Dependency (MIDD) funds to low-income housing development capital, American Recovery and
Reinvestmeant Act of 2009 (Public Law 111-5) (the Racovery Act)—also known as CDBR-R funds for
job preservation and creation, infrastructure investment, energy efficiency and science, assistance to
the unemployed and/or service projects and Current Expense (“CX") funds to housing and community
development projects in accordance with adopted County ordinances. The County uses CDBG,
HOME, HOF, RAHP, Veterans and Human Services Levy funds and/or CX funds for the purpose of
carrying out eligible community development and housing activities under the HCD Act, the NAHA,
regulations promulgated by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) at 24
Ccede of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 570, 24 CFR Part 92, 24 CFR Part 576, and adopted County
Ordinances. (All CFR references can be found at hitp://www.access.gpc.gov/nara/cfr/cir-table-
search.html. All King County code references can be found at

http:/vaanv kingcounty.gov/council/legislation/kc_code.aspx):

WHEREAS, an Urban County CDBG Consocrtium has been established by CDBG interlocal
ccoperation agreaments ("CDBG ICAs") or jeint agreesments between the County and certain
municipal corporations (Consartium Cities) within the County covering program years 2012-2014. Th
CDBG ICAs specify allocation of CDBG funds by the County to those participating iurisdictions for us
in accordance with the County Consoclidated Housing and Community Development Plan ("HCD
Pian’). The HCD Plan has been adopted by the King County Council, accepted by participating
jurisdicticns and approved by HUD

=
€

This form is available in alternate formats upon request for persons
with disabilities.

Page 1 cf 43



WHEREAS, a HOME Consortium has teen established by HOME ICAs between the County and
certain HOME Consortium Cities covering 2012-2014, the terms of which specify allocation of HOME
funds by the County for use in accordance with the HCD Plan which has been adopted by the King
County Council, accepted by participating jurisdictions, and approved by HUD;

WHEREAS. the County desires to award certain funds to the Contractor for use as described in this
Contract and as authorized by County crdinance, for the purpose of implementing eligible activities as
applicable under the HCD Act, the NAHA, HUD regulaticns, State laws, and/or adopted County
ordinances:

WHEREAS, it is appropriate and mutually desirable that the Contractor be designated by the County
to undertake such eligible activities, so long as the requirements of the HCD Act, NAHA, HUD
Reguiations, State law, and County ordinances are adhered to as provided for herein;

WHEREAS. the purpose of this Contract is to provide for cooperation between the County and the
Contractor, as the parties in this Contract, in implementing such eligible activities under the laws and
regulations that pertain to the funds awarded in this Contract;

WHEREAS, the parties are authorized and empowered to enter into this Contract by one or more of
the following: County ordinance, the HCD Act, the NAHA, Revised Code of Washington (RCW)
Chapter 39.34, RCW Chaptar 35.21.730 et seq., the Constitution and the enabling laws of the State

of Washington;

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of payments, covenants, and agreements hereinafier
menticned, to be made and performed by the parties hereto, the parties mutually covenant and agres

to abide by the provisicns of this Contract.



X1

Xl

XHL
XIV.
XV.
XVI.
XVII.
XVIII.
XIX.

XX.
XXI.

XXII.

XX
XX

INDEX TO CONTRACT

Scope of Contract and Incorporation
of Exhibits

Duration of Contract

Term of Compliance for Capital
Projects

Future Support

Compensation and Method of
Payment

Budget

Equipment Purchase, Maintenance
and Ownership

Contract Amendments

Internal Control, Accounting Systems
and Audits

Maintenance of Records
Evaluations and Inspections
Proprietary Rights

Corrective Action

Assignment

Termination

Entire Contract'Waiver of Default
Hold Harmless and Indemnification
Insurance Requirements - General

Nondiscrimination and Equal
Employment Opportunity

Subcontracts and Purchases

Nondiscrimination in subcentracting
Practices

Conflict of Interest

Board of Directors

Confidentiality

)

XXV,

XXVI.

XXVIL

XXV,

XXIX.

XXX,
XXXI.
XXXIL
XXXIIL.
XXXIV.
XXXV.

XXXVI.

XXXVil.
XXXVII.

XXXIX.
XL.

XLI.

XLilL

XL
XLIV,

sonal Infoermation — Notice of Security
reach

Cocmpliance with the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996
(HIPPA)

Notices

King County Recycled Product
Procurement Policy

Services Provided in Accordance with
Law and Rule and Regulation

Political Activity Prohibited

Miscellanecus Provisicns

Affirmative Marketing

Accessibility for Capital Projects

Labor Standards

Employment Oppertunities on Assisted
Construction Projects

No Benefit to Owners and Developers of
Assisted Housing

Supplanting

Drug Free Workplace Certification and
Other Federal Requirements

Constitutional Prohibition

Promissory Note, Deed of Trust and
Covenant

Anti-Displacement and Relocation
Assistance

Property Management for Capita
Projects

Taxses and Licenses

Procedure in the Event of
Casualty/Condemnation for Capital

Projects



EXHIBITS ATTACHED HERETO

Exl"zbit Name g:\iﬁ, " Amount ! zzimip |
. Certificates of Insurance Endo;g;r—‘:éﬁt—s—— - hm_. o R
BLACK DIAMOND FIFTH AVENUE WATER MAIN | 1111374 | S41000  CDBG

| REPLACEMENT (C12226) . b ) -

SCOPE OF CONTRACT AND INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS

A. Scope

The Contract between the parties shall consist of the signature page. each
Program/Project Exhibit incorporated into the Contract. all matters and laws
incorporatad by reference herein, and any written amendments made in accordance
with the provisions contained herein. The exhibits attached to this Contract as Exhilits
| through Il. are hereby incorporated by this reference. This Centract supersedes any
and all former agreements regarding projects described in the attached
Project/Program Exhibit(s). If there is a conflict between any of the language contained
in this Contract and any of the language contained in any Project/Program Exhibit in
this Contract, the language in this Contract shail control, unless the parties affirmatively
agree to the contrary in a writing that has been reviewed and approved by the King
County Prosecuting Attorney's Office. This Contract shall govern both:

1. Service Projects (human service, planning, program administration and micro-
enterprise or supportive services for the homeless): and

2. Capital Projects (acquisition, improvement, and rehabilitaticn of real property and
construction or reconstruction of public infrastructure).

The two types of activities may be included in one Contract as separate
Project/Program Exhibit(s) cf Services.

B. Mandatory Certifications

The Contractor certifies that it shall comply with the provisions of Sections XIX. XXl
and XXX cof this Contract. If the Contractor is a municipal corporation (other than King
County). or agency of the State of Washingicn, King County Code (KCC) chapters
12.16, 12.17 and 12.18 do not apply to the Contractor, but may apply to any

subcontractor of the Contractor

C. Contact Person

King County and the Contractor shall each designate a contact person for each
Project/Program Exhibit incorporatad in this Centract. All cerrespondence. reperts and

invoices shall be directed to the designated \,ontatt person. This provision dces not.

however, supplant or override Section XXVII Nctic

The term “federal funds’ asu dh
s of funds prov nd

ds and/or HOME funds Tne
pes EC 8
( eci:‘Prcg am Exhibit(s)

cifiad in the attached

(D w

rein means CDEG fun
r this Contract are sp



G.

Environmental Review

This secticn applies to all projects using federal funds that are not exempt under 24
CFR Part 58. Notwithstanding any provision of this contract, the parties hereto agrse
and acknowledge that this contract does not constitute a commitment of funds or site
approval, and that such commitment of funds or approval may occur only upon
satisfactory completion of environmental review and receipt of a release of funds from
HUD under 24 CFR Part 58. The parties further agree that the provision of any funds to
the project is conditioned upon King County’s determination to proceed with, modify or
cancel the project based on the results of a subsequent environmental review. The
Contractor shall not spend any funds on physical or cheice-limiting actions, including
property acquisition, demolition, movement, rehabilitation, conversion, repair or
canstruction prior to the environmental clearance. Violation of this provision shall r
in the denial of any funds under this Contract.

asult

Capital Projects using federal funds shall also comply with subsections F. G, H and |.

Environmental Policy Act

The County retains environmental review responsibility for purposes of fulfilling
requirements of the National Environmental Policy Act as implemented by HUD
Environmental Review Procedures (24 CFR Part 58) and the Federal laws and
authorities identified therein. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for the cost of
compliance with all such Federal laws and authorities including the cost of preparing
plans, studies, reports and the publication of notices that may be required. The
Contractor and its contractors shall nct take any actions inconsistent with 24 CFR Part

58
National Flood Insurance

The use of CDBG and HOME funds for acquisition or construction purposes in
identified special flood hazard areas shall be subject to Contractor mandatory purchase
of flood insurance as required by Section 102(a) of the Flocd Disaster Protection Act of

1973 (Pub L. 93-237).

Lead Based Paint

The Contractor shall comply with the Lead-Based Paint Peisoning Prevention Act (42
United States Code (USC) 4821-4843), the Resideniial Lead-Based Paint Hazard
Reduction Act of 1982 (42 USC 4851-4856), and implementing regulations at 24 CFR
Part 35, subparts A, B. J, K, and R. Generally, these laws prohibit the use of lead-
based paint (whenever funds under this Contract are used directly or indirectly for
construction, rehabilitation, or modernization of residential structures): require
elimination of immediate lead-based paint hazards in residantial structures; and require
nctification of the hazards of lzad-based paint poisoning to purchasers and tenants of
rasidential structurss constructad prior to 1973,

Environmental Justice

" 1‘1‘ cation and mitiga

hL.ma,, health or en
and/or low-incoms pop '_'*_“ ions.




J.  Subrecipient Monitering

1. First-tier subrecipients shall register in the Central Contractor Registration (CCR},
including obtaining a Dun and Bradstreet Data Universal Numbering System
{DUNS) number and maintain the currency of that information. A pass through
entity shall be responsible for determining that subrecipients have current CCR
registrations prior to making subawards and performing periodic checks to ensurs

that the subrecipients are updating information as necessary.

2. Racipients shall require each subrecipient to;

a Document at the time of the subaward and disbursement of funds, the Federal
award number, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number, and
the amount of American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) funds; and

b. Provide similar identification in their Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards (SEFA) and Form SF-SAC. Additional information, including
presentation requirements for the SEFA and SF-SAC, is provided in Appendix

VI of the 2009 Supplement (2CFR Section 176.210).

DURATION OF CONTRACT

The terms of this Contract shall be in effect from the Start Date (as defined in the
Project/Program Exhibit(s)) or the date of exacution of this Contract, whichever is garlier,
and shall terminate on the Termination Date specified in each Project/Program Exhibit,
unless extended to a later date or terminated earlier, pursuant to the terms and conditions

of the Contract.
TERM OF COMPLIANCE FOR CAPITAL PROJECTS

The Contractor shall own and operate the project during the Compliance Period as defined
in the Program/Project Exhibit.

FUTURE SUPPORT

The County makes no commitment to support the services contracted for herein and
assumes no obligation for future support of the activity contracted herein except as

expressly set forth in this Contract.

COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT

The County shall reimburse the Contractor only for the approved activities specified in each
Project/Program Exhibit and the reimbursement amount shall not exceed the amount
specified in each Project/Program Exhibit. Reimbursements will be payable in the following

manner.
A. Start Date and End Dals
Start Datss and End Dates for individua! prejec

Project/Program Exhibit. Costs incurred befors
Costs incurred after the End Data will not be reimbursed.



Submission of Invoices. Supperting Documentation and Reports

The Centractor shall submit an invoice, supporting documentation for costs claimed in
the invoice and all reports as specified in each Project/Program Exhibit or the County
may not process the inveice. Supporting documentation for costs claimed in the invoice
includes, but is not limited to, purchase orders and bills. The County shall initiate
authcrization for payment to the Contractor not more than 30 days following the
County's approval of a complete and carrect invoice. supporting documentation and

reports.
Final Invoice for Service Projects

The Contractor shall submit its final invoice for each Project/Program Exhibit providing
funding for Service Projects within seven business days after the End Date. The
Contractor shall submit all outstanding reports for each Project/Program Exhibit
providing funding for Service Projects within 30 business days after the End Date.

If the Contractor’s final invoices, supporiing documeniation, and reporis ars not
submitted by the last date specified in this subsection, the County shall be relisved of
all liability for payment to the Contractor of the amounts set forth in said invoice or any
subsequent invoice; provided, however, the County may elect tc pay any invoice that is
not submitted in a timely manner.

Final Invoice for Capital Projects

Unless provided otherwise in the Project/Program Exhibii(s), the Contractor shall
submit its final invoice, supporting documentation, and all outstanding reports for each
Project/Program Exhibit providing funding for Capital Projects before the End Date
specified in the Project/Program Exhibit(s).

If the Contractor’s final invoices, supporting documentiation, and reporis are not
submitted by the date specified in this subsection, the County shall be relieved of all
liability for payment to the Contractor of the amounts set forth in said invoice or any
subsequent invoice; provided, however, the County may elect to pay any invoice that is

not submitted in a timely manner.

Unspent County Funds

1. After the End Date specified in each Project/Program Exhibit. for individual projects
covered by this Contract, the County shall recapture any unexpended funds
encumberead under this Contract.

2. During the term of the Contract, the County may. upon agreement with the
Contractor, recapture any unexpendesd funds for reallocation to other

Project’Program activities.

Projects using federal funds shall alsc comply with the fcllowing subsections F, G.

Handl
Municipal Corporations or State Public Agencies

ntractor is @ municipal corporation or a Contractor of the Stats of Washington.
“which the Contractor requests reimbursement shall comply with th pc!cies‘
3, a'ari requirements of the Of. ice f.‘.Iannge ment and Budget (OMB; Circular
ost Prin iplc--:‘ Feor Stats, Lo n Trii Dfi: C overnments” and th -:
-1:

2 ] :"f,:'-‘ mants for Grants and Cocpsr

y CAIMINISiraty

=
G
(=]

[®]
W
i

5 I ([, o @M
~ ] e JY
= (’)

(e S Tl
=
C

~| (1)

in =



VI

Vil

]

Agreements to State, Local and Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments”
identified at 24 CFR § 570.502(a) Applicability of Uniform Adminisirative Requirements,
uniess ctherwise provided in the Project/Program Exhibit{s}.

pot-for-profit Corporations

If the Contractor is a not-for-profit corporation, costs for which the Contractor requests
reimbursement shall comply with, uniess otherwise provided in the Project/Program
Exhibit(s), the policies, guidelines and requirements of OMB Circular No. A-122, "Cost
Principles for Non-Profit Organizations,” and the sections of 24 CFR Part 84, Uniform
Administrative Requirements for Grants and Agreements with Institutions of Higher
Education, Hospitals, and Other Non-Profit Organizations, identified at 24 CFR §
570.502 {b}, Applicability of Uniform Administrative Requirements.

Excess Federal Funds

CDBG and/or HOME funds on hand shall not exceed $5.000 if retained beyond thres
days uniess written approval is received from the County. Any reimbursement in
excess of the amount required shall be promptly returned to the County.

Program income

The Contractor shall report all CDBG and HOME Program Income, as defined in 24
CFR §§ 92.2, 92.503 and 570.504(c) and in the ICAs, generated under this Contract
for the purposes specified herein or gcnnrated through the project(s) funded under this
Contract. Program Income is to be reported to the County. Program income shall be
returned to the County unless the County specifies that it may be retained by the
Contractor. If the County authorizes the Contractor to retain the Program Income to
continue or benefit a project(s), the Contractor shall comply with all provisions of this
Contract in expending the funds. This duty to repay the County shall not be diminished
or extinguished by the prior termination of the Contract pursuant to Section Il or

Section XV.

BUDGET

The Contractor shall apply the funds received from the County under this Contract in
accordance with each Project/Program Exhibit including a line item budget, if applicable, set
forth in each Project/Program Exhibit. The Contractor shall request in writing prior approval

from the County to revise

the line item budget when the cumulative amount of transfers

from a line item in any Project/Program Exhibit is expected to exceed ten percent of that
line item. Supporting documents are necessary to fully explain the nature and purpose of
the revision, and must accompany each request. All budget revision requests in excess of
ten percent of a line item amount shall be reviewed and approved or denied by the County
in writing.

EQUIPMENT PURCHASE. MAINTENANCE. AND OWNERSHIP

A

Equicment Purchase

that evm;.mcm purchased with Contract funds at a cost of

Thes Contractor agrees
ad in an exhibit as reimbursable, is upon iis

00 Fﬂr it=m or mors and |r4" n
i :h~ Contractor, County. and/or federal, andior &t

+

<3}
]

\'l-



VIiL.

B. Maintenance of Equipment
The Cantractor shall be respensible for all such equipment, including the proper care

and maintenance.

C. Equipment Returned

The Contractor shall ensure that all such equipment shall be returned to the
appropriate government Contractor, whether tederal, state or County. upon writian

request of the County.
D. Right of Access

The Contractor shall admit the County’s Property Management Officer to the
Contractor’s premises for the purpose of marking such property with appropriate

government property tags.

Maintenance of Records

m

The Contractor shall estabiish and maintain inventory records and transaction
documents (purchase raquisitions, packing slips. invoices. receipts) cf equipmeni
purchased with Contract identified funds.

F. Disposition of Equipment

Projects using federal funds shall also comply with the following requirement. If the
Contractor ceases to use equipment purchased in whole or in part with CDBG funds for
the purpose described in this Contract, or if the Contractor wishes to dispose of such
equipment, the disposition shall be determined under the provisions of 24 CFR

§ 570.502(b)(3)(vi), if the Contractor is a nonprofit corporation and 24 CFR §
570.502(a) and 24 CFR § 85.32(e} if the Contractor is a municipal corporation or an
agency of the state of Washington. The Contractor agrees that it will contact the
County for instructions prior to disposing of, surplusing of, encumbering or transferring
ownership of any equipment purchased in whole or in part with federal funds.

CONTRACT AMENDMENTS

Either party may request changes to this Contract. Proposed changes, which are mutuaily
agreed upon, shall be incorporated by written amendments to this Contract. Budget
revisions approved by the County pursuant to Section VI ars nol required to be incorparated
by written amendment.

INTERNAL CONTROL. ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND AUDITS

Internal Control and Accounting

The Contractor shall establish and maintain a systam of accounting and internal controls
that comply with applicable, gens s'cHg,-' a:ce;ted accounti "ug ;r'r' iplzs, financial and
governmen tal reporiing standards as prescribed by the appropriate accounting standards



Audits

A.  Not-for-Profit Corporations

1 T e

S TT~]
i S SUCS ec

other organization t

3 J\

~t
i

J

-~
A (L=t s,

op hlies o ':n:rr Fhrhnr:} Inh triiet 38500 iati 0on, f‘ﬂﬂﬂr‘:‘-!‘aﬁ\le Gr

Gl e

(i) is operated primarily for scientific, educational, servic

charitable or swmlar pufpcses in the public interest; (i} is not organized primarily fcr
profit; and (iii) uses its net process to maintain, improve or expand its operations.

N

or equivalent when requested.

(#%]

financial audits or alternative as follows:

The Contractor shall provide the County with a copy of its applicable IRS Form 980
{Return of Organization Exempt frem Tax), IRS Form 1065 (Partnership tax return).

The Contractor shall comply with the specific requirements for independent

a. A Contractor receiving $500.000 or more in direct or indiract federal funding
from all sources during its fiscal year. including other forms of federal financial
assistance shall have a single audit or program-specific audit conducted for that
year. Such audit shall be done in accordance with the provisions of the Single
Audit Act Amendments of 1996 as implemented through the Federal Office of
Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments. and Nonprofit Organizations, as revised.

b. A Contractor receiving $300.000 or more from all fund sources during their
fiscal year that is not otherwise subject to the requirements of OMB Circular A-
133 shall have a financial statement audit conducted for that year. Such audit
shall be performed by an independent certified public accountant and
conducted in accordance with the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants’ (AICPA) generally accepted auditing standards.

An Contractor receiving $50.000 or more but less than $300.600 from all fund
sources during its fiscal year shall be required to complete a limited scope

financial statement/internal control review as defined by the AICPA and
according to AICPA standards, provided the Contractor meets all of the

following criteria:

m
o
]
D
=1
3

]
Q
e

The Contractor previously provided to the County a financial statement

audit that was completed by an independant certified public accountant

and conducted in accordance with AICPA generally accepted auditing
standards, for that Contracior’'s most recently completed fiscal period:

That financial statement audit and any associated management letter
show no reportable conditions or internal control issues; and

There has been no turnover in key staff since the beginning of the

pericd for which the audit was completed.

Any limited scope financial statement/internal control raview authorized

under th|~ ubsection s”ell be conducted in accordance with the

A*’“DA Statem nents on Standards for Attestation Eng c’-g‘emehh and

shall be performed by an indspendent certifisd public accountant.

If the Contractor does not meet the q ualifications in X, A, 3, c. i. through
ractor shall provide a financial statement audit.

F 0 2312 Centract

_I-



A Contractor receiving less than $50.000 from all fund sources during its fiscal

i,
year shall submit a compilation of financial statements that has been certified
as accurate and complete by the Contractor's Board of Directors.

e. The County reserves the right to reguire an independent financial statement

audit at its discration based on changes in circumstances relating to the
financial and programmatic conditions of the Contractor.

4. A Contractor which is not subject to OMB Circular A-133 may. in extraordinary
circumstances, reguest a waiver of audit requirements and, with the review and
upon approval of the County. substitute for the above requirements other forms of
financial reporting or fiscal representation certified by the Contractor's Board of

Dirsctors.

The Coniractor shail provide to the Couniy a copy of the audit report, including any
management letter or official carrespondence submitted by the auditor, its response
and corrective action plan for ali findings and reportable conditions contained in its
previous audit or any alternative documents required under Section 1X. A, 3 of this
Contract. These documents shall be submitted no later than six monins subsequeni

to the end of the Contractor’s fiscal year.

6]

If additional federal and/or state audit or review requirements are imposed on the
County during the tarm of this Contract, the Contractor agrees this Contract may be
amended to require that the Contractor comply with any such additional audit
requirements. Even if this Contract is not amended, the Contractor agrees to

comply with any such additional audit requirements.

&3]

7. i the Contractor receives a financial audit, including an A-133 audit, due to
requirements other than stated herein, such audit shall be provided to the County
within the time period identified in Section IX. A. 4. even if not otherwisea required

under this Section.

Municipal Corporaticns
If the Contractor is @ municipal corporation in the state of Washington, it shall submit to

the County a copy of its annual report of examination/audit, conducted by the
Washington State Auditor, within 30 days of receipt, which submittal shall constitute

compliance with Section IX.
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance

The Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number for the CDBG Program is
14.218. The CFDA number for the HOME program is 14.239. The CFDA number for
Recovery Act Fund (CDBG-R) funds is 14.253. Additional federal and/or state audit or
raview requiraments may ba imposed on the County, and if the Contractor has CDBG.
HOME or CDBG-R funds in the Contract. it shall ba raquired to comply with thess
requiremeants.

MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS

zccounts and racords, including personnel,
e in

nati

financial, and programmali
Project/Program Exhibit or

c
o

ompliance with this Contract



Time tor Retenticn of Records

Records required to be maintained in subsection A above shall be maintained for a
period of six years after the termination date, uniess a different pericd for records
retention is specified in the Project/Program Exhibit.

Location of Records/Notice to County

The Contractor shall inform the County in writing of the location, if different from the
Contractor address listed on page one of this Contract, of the aforesaid books. records.
documents, and other evidence and shall notify the County in writing of any changes in

location within ten working days of any such relocation.

Projects using federal funds shall also comply with subsacticns D, E, F, G, H. I, J. K.
L. and M.

Federal Exceptions to Retention Requirements

Exceptions to the six year retention period are as follows: (1) Records that ars the
subject of audit findings. litigation, or claims shall be retained until such findings,
litigaticn or claims have been resclved: and (2) The retention period for real property
and equipment records starts from the date of the disposition, replacement or transfer
at the direction of the County.

Financial Management Records

Financial records shall identify adequately the source and application of funds for
activities within this Contract, in accordance with the provisions of 24 CFR § 85.20 and
the OMB Circular A-87 for governmental agencies, 24 CFR § 84.21 and OMB Circular
A-122 for Nonprofit Corporations. These records shall contain information pertaining to
grant awards and authorizations, obligations, unobligated balances, assets, liabilities,

outlays and income.
Tenant Notification and Relocation Records

If the Contractor is acquiring property with existing tenants, Contractor record keeping
for tenant notification and relocation must comply with the Uniform Relocation
Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (The “Uniform
Relocation Act’), and regulations at 49 CFR Part 24. Indication of the overall status of
the relocation workload and a separate relocation record for each person, business,
organization and farm operation displaced or in the relocation workload must be kept.

Acquisition Records

If the Contractor is using funds under this Contract for property acquisition, the
Contractor must maintain a separate acquisition file for each acquisition process
documenting complianice with Uniform Relocation Act regulations at 43 CFR Part 24,

including a notice of voluntary sale.

Beneliciary Records

The Centractor agrees to maintain racial, ethnic. disability status, single head of
household, hausehold income, and gender data showing the extant to which thase
catsgories of persons have participated in, or benefited from, the activities carried out

undsr this Contract if required in a Project/Program Exhibit.



|, Labor Siandards

If the Contractor is using funds under this Contract for construction work, the
Contractor shall maintain records documenting compliance by all construction
contractors with the labor standards as required under 24 CFR § 570.603 for CDBG

funds and 24 CFR § $2.354 for HOME funds.

J. Other Construction Racords

The Contractor and all of its contracters shall maintain records and information
necessary to document the level of utilization of state certified smail. mincrity, and
women-owned businesses, and other businesses as subcontractors and suppliers
under this Contract. The Contractor shall also maintain all written quotes, bids,
estimates or proposals submitted by the contractor and any and all businesses sz=k
to participate in this Contract. The Contractor shall make such documents available t

the County for inspection and copying upon request.

ing
)

K. Employment Records

If the Contractor is a municipal corporation or a Contractor of the State of Washingtcn,
it agrees to maintain the following data for each of the Contractor's operating units
funded in whole or in part with CDBG funds provided under this Contract:
1. Employment data with such data maintained in the categories prescribed on the
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission’s EEO-4 form; and

2. Documentation of any acticns undertaken to assure equal employment
opportunities to all persons regardless of race, color, national origin, sex or

handicap.
L. Records Regarding Remedy of Past Discrimination

The Contractor shall maintain documentation of the affirmative action measures the
Contractor has taken to overcome prior discrimination if a court or HUD has found that
the Contractor has previcusly discriminated against persons on the grounds of race,
color, national origin or sex in administering a program or activity funded in whole or in
part with CDBG funds pursuant to 24 CFR Part 121.

M. Record-Keeping Requiraments and Sits Visits
The Contractor shall maintain, for at least six years after complztion of all work under
this Contract. the following:

1. Records of employment, employment advertisements, application forms, and othar
pertinent data and records related to the Contract for the purpose of monitoring.
audit and investigation to determine compliance with any equal opportunity
rsquirements set forth in any federal regulations, statutss or rules includsd or

referenced in the Contract documer

s
)
W
5
=

2. Recoerds, including written quotes, bids, estimates
Contractor by all businssses saeking to participats on this Cont
LISs

information necessary to documant the aciual

subcantractors and stppliers in this Contract. in



XL

Xl

The County may visit, at any time, the site of the work and the Contractor’s cffice to
review the foregoing records. The Contractor shall provide every assistance requested
by the County during such visits. In all other respects, the Contractor shall make the
foregoing records available to the County for inspection and copying upon request. If
this Contract involves federal funds, the Contractor shall comply with all record kseping
requirements set forth in any federal rules, regulations or statutes included or

referenced in the contract documents.

EVALUATIONS AND INSPECTIONS

A

Right of Access to Facilities for Inspection of Records

The Contractor shall provide right of access lo its facilities, including those of any
subcontractor, to the County, the state, and/or federal agencies or officials at all
reascnable times in order to monitor and evaluate the activities fundad under this
Contract. The County shall give advance notice to the Contractor in the case of fiscal

audits to be conducted by the County.

Time fcr Inspection and Retention

The records and documents with respect to all matters covered by this Contract shal!
be subject at all times to inspection, review, or audit by the County and/or fedsral/state
oificials so autherized by law during the performance of this Contract and six years
after the termination date, unless a different period is specified in the Project/ 'Program

Exhibit or a longer ratention period is reguired by law.
Agreement to Cocperatz

The Contractor agrees to cooperate with the County or its agent in the evaluation of the
Contractor's performance under this Contract and to make available all information
reasonably required by any such evaluation process. The results and records of said
evaluations shall be maintained and disclosed in accordance with RCW Chapter 42.56.

PROPRIETARY RIGHTS

A

)

The parties to this Contract hereby mutually agree that if any patentabie or
copyrightable material or article should result from the work described herein, all rights
accruing from such material or article shall be the sole property of the Contractor. The
Contractor agrees tc and does hereby grant to the County, irrevocable, nonexclusive,
and royalty-free license to reproduce, publish or otherwise use, and to authorize others
to use, according to law, any work material or article and use any method that may be

developed as part of the work under this Contract.

The foregoing products license shail not apply to existing training materials, consulting
aids, checklists, and other materials and documents of the Contractor, which ars
modified for use in the performance of this Contract.

' to existing training materials,

The foregoing provisions of this section shall not apply
consuiting aids, checklisis, am' other matarials and documents of the Contractor that
are not modified for use in the performance of this Contract.



X1,

XIV.

CORRECTIVE ACTION

A. Default by Contractor

It the County determines that a breach of coniract has occurred because the
Contractor failed to comply with any material terms or conditions of this Contract or the
Contractor has failed to pravids in any manner the work or services agreed to in any
Project’'Program Exhikit attached hereto, and if the County deems said breach to
warrant corrective acticn. the following sequential procedurs shall apply.

1. The County shall notify the Contractor in writing of the nature of the breach.

The Contractor shall submit a plan describing the specific staos being taken to
correct the specified deficiencies (the "corrective action plan"). The corrective
action plan shall be submitted to the County within ten business days from the
Contractor's receipt of the County's notice under this Section. The corractive action
plan shall specify the proposed completion date for bringing the Contract into
compliance, which completion date shall not be more than 30 days from the date
the County receives the Contractor's corrective action plan, unless the County. in
its sole discretion, specifies in writing an extension in the number of days to
complete the corractive actions,

2

3. The County shall notify the Contractor, in writing of the County’'s determination as
to the suificiency of the Plan. The County shall have sole discretion in determining
the sufficiency of the Contractor’s corrective action plan.

B. Termination of Contract

In the event that the Contractor does not respond within the appropriate time with a
corrective action plan, or the Contractor's corractive action plan is determined by the
County to be insufficient, the County may commence termination of this Contract in

whole or in part pursuant to Subsection XV (B).

C. County Withholding of Payment
In addition, the County may withhold any payment owed the Contractor or prohibit the
Contractor from incurring additional obligations of funds until the County is satisfied
that corrective action has been taken or completed.

D. No Waiver of Other Remedies

Nothing herein shall be deemed to affect or waive any rights the parties may have
pursuant to Section XV er other remedies authorized by law.

ASSIGNMENT

riion of this Contract or

T
o]
)

ontr

efar o g
-

The Contractor shall not assign, transfer or C
transfer or assign any claim arising pursuant to thi
consent of the County. Additional terms for County
subcontract may bs described in a Project/Program Exhibit. Said consent must be sought in
writing by the Contractor not less than 15 business days pricr to the date of any proposad
assignment, transfer or subcontract. The Contractor shall deliver to the County with its
request for consent, such information regarding the proposed assignes, transferes or

subcontractee, including its proposed mission, legal status, and financial and management

capabilities as is reasonably available to the Contractar. Within 15 days afier such request
for consent. King County may rsasonably raquest additional avaitablz information on the
2012 Contract



proposed assignee, subcontractee or transferee. If the County shall give its consent, this
Section shall nevertheless continue in full force and effect. Any assignment, transfer ar
subcontract without prior County consent shall be void.

XV. TERMINATION
A, Termination for Convenienca

1. This Contract may be terminated by the County without cause, in whole or in part,
prior to the termination date specified in the Project/Program Exhibit, by providing
the Contractor 30 days advance written notice of the termination.

2. In addition to the foregoing, if expected or actual funding is withdrawn, raduced. or
imitad in any way prior to the termination date set forth in the Project/Program
Exhibit, the County may, upon written notification to the Contractor, terminate this
Contract in whole or in part.

3. If the Contract is terminated as provided above:

[

a. The County shall be liable only for payment in accordance with the terms of this
Contract for services rendered prior to the effective date of termination: and

b. The Contractor shall be released from any obligaticn to provide such further
services pursuant to the Contract as are affected by the termination.

B. Termination for Cause

1. The County may terminate this Contract, in whole or in par, upon ssven days
advance written notice to the Contractor in the event:

a. The Contractor materially breaches any duty, obligation, or service required
pursuant to this Contract and such breach has not been cured by a corrective
action plan acceptable to the County; or

b. The duties, obligations, or sarvices required herein become impossible, illegal
or not feasible.

2. lf the County terminates the Contract pursuant to this section, the Contractor shall
be liable for damages, including any additional costs of procurament of simiiar
services from another source.

3. li the termination results from acts or omissions of the Contractor, including but not
limited to misappropriation, nonperiormance of required services, or fiscal
mismanagement, the Contractor shall raturn to the County immediately any funds,
misappropriated or unexpended, which have been paid to the Contractor by the
County.

4. If County or cther expected or actual funding is withdrawn, reduced, or limited in
any way pricr to the termination date set forth above in Section I, the County may

<
upon written notification to the Contractor, terminate this Contract in whole or in

€n

ice with the tarms of this
of termination; and

City of Biack Ciamand Page



XVI.

XVIL.

C.

b. The Contractor shail be released from any obligation to provide such further
services pursuant to the Contraci as are affected by the termination.

Funding or obligation under this Contract beyond the current appropriation year is

6.
cenditional upen appropriation by the County Council of sufficient funds to support
the activities described in the Contract. Should such appropriation not be approved,
this Contract shall terminate at the close of the current appropriation year.

Waiver

Nothing herein shall limit, waive, or extinguish any right or remedy provided by this
Contract at law or in equity that either party may have in the event that the otligations,
terms and conditions set forth in this Contract are breached by the other party

ENTIRE CONTRACT/WAIVER OF DEFAULT

The parties agree that this Contract is the complete expression of the terms hersto and any
oral or written representations or understandings not incorporated herein are excluded.
Both parties recognize that time is of the essence in the performance of the provisions oi
this Contract. Waiver of any default shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent
default. Waiver or breach of any provision of the Contract shall not be deemed to be a
waiver of any other or subsequent breach and shall not be construed to be a modification of
the terms of the Contract unless stated to be such through written approval by the County,

which shall be attached to the original Contract.

HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION

A

m

Contractor is an Independent Contractor

In providing services under this Contract, the Contracter is an independent contractor
and neither it. nor its officers, agents or employees, are employees of the County for
any purpose. The Contractor shall be responsible for all federal and/or state tax.
industrial insurance, and Social Security liability that may result from the performance
of and compensation for these services and shall make no claim of career service or
civil service rights which may accrue to a County employee under state or local law.

The County assumes no responsibility for the payment of any compensation, wages,
benefits or taxes by, or on behalf of, the Contractor, its employees, and/or others by
reason of this Contract. The Contractor shall protect, indemnify. and hold harmlass the
County. its officers, agents and employees from and against any and all claims, costs,

and/or losses whatsoever occurring or resulting from:
1. The Contractor’s failurz to pay any such compensation, wages, benefits or taxes:

and/or

)

The supplying to the Contractor of work. se
Centracter employees or other sug in
perfcrmance of this Contract.

rvices, materials or supoli
1

Contractor Agreement to Repa;

The Contractor further agress that it is financially responsible for and shall re yay the
County alf indicatad amounts following an audit exception that cceurs dus to the
negligence, intentional act. and/or failure, for any reason, to comply with the term
this Contract by the Contractor, its officers. emplovees. agents, andsor reprasar



This duty to repay the County shall not be diminished or extinguished by the prior
termination of the Contract pursuant to the Duration of Contract or the Termination

Sections

C. Centractor indemnitication of County

1. The Contractor shall protect, defend, indemnify and hold harmless the County, their
officers, employees and agents from any and all costs, claims, judgments and/or
awards of damages, arising out of, or in any way resulting from. the negligent acts
or omissions of the Contractor, its officers, employees. contractors, subcontractors
and’or agents, in its performance and’or non-performance of its obligations under
this Contract. The Contractor agrees that its obligations under this subparagraph
extend to any claim. demand, and/cr cause of action brought by. or on behalf of,
any of its employees or agents. For this purpose, the Contractor, by mutual
negotiation, hereby waives, as respects to the County only, any immunity that
would otherwise be available against such claims under the Industrial Insuranca
provisions of RCW, Title 51. In the event the County incurs any judgment, award
and/or cost arising there from including attorneys’ fees to enforce the provisions of
this article. all such fees, expenses, and costs shall be recoverable from the
Contractor. To the extent that a Contractor subcontractor fails to satisfy its
obligation to defend and indemnify King County, as detailed in SectionX Vi, the
Contractor shall protect, defend, indemnify and hold harmless King County, its
officers, employees, and agents from any and all costs, claims, judgments, and/or
awards or damages arising out of, or in any way resulting from the negligent act or
omissions of the Contractor's contractor/subconiractor, its officers, employees,
and/or agents in connection with or in support of this Contract.

2. Claims shall inciude, but not be limited to, assertions that use or transfer of
software, book, document, report, film, tape, or sound reproduction, or material of
any kind, delivered hereunder, constitutes an infringement of any copyright, patent,
trademark, trade name and/or otherwise results in unfair trade practice.

3. The Contractor agrees not to perform any acts that include use or transfer of
software, book, decument, report, film, tape, or sound reproduction, or materia! of
any kind, delivered hereunder, that constitutes an infringement of any copyright,
patent, trademark, trade name and/or otherwise results in unfair trade practice. The
Contractor agrees to indemnify the County for any harm resulting from unfair trads
practices.

The provisions in this section shall survive the tzrmination and/or duration of the
contract term.

Nothing contained within this provision shall affect and/or altsr the application of
any other provision contained within this Contract.

.(_!l

fm -1, Al lece ARliFi ot P - PN
fense and hold harmless obligations containsd

\d
. abandonment or termination of this Contraci.

XVIIL. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS—GENERAL

A. Insurance Required

By the date of execution of this Contract. the Contractor shall procure and maintain for
the duration of this Contract, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or

damagss to property which may arisz from, or in connection with. the performance of

(A%}
(]
)
)

2

2
Ll
)
"Wy
(4
[E¥]
[¥]
IS
2

City of Biack Diamond



work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representalives. employees and/or
contractor’subcontractors. The Ceniractor or contractor'subcentractor shall pay the
costs of such insurance. The Contractor shall furnish separate certificates of insurance
and pelicy endersements from each contractor/subcontractor as evidence of
compliance with the insurance requirements of this Contract.

The Contractor is responsible for ensuring compliance with all of the insurance
reguirements stated herein. Failure by the Contractor, its agents, employees. officers.
contractor/subcontractors, providers and/or grovider subcontractors to comply with the
insurance requirements stated herein shall constitute a material breach of this

Contract

Each insurance policy shall be writien on an “occurrence” form; except that insurance
on a “claims made” form may be acceptable with prior County approval. If coverage is
approved and purchased on a “claims made” basis. the Contractor warrants
continuation of coverage, either through policy renewals or the purchase of an
extended discovery period, if such extended coverage is available, for not less than
three years from the date of Contract termination, and/or conversion from a “claims

made” form to an “occurrence” coverage form.

Nothing contained within these insurance requirements shall be deemead tc limit the
scope, apglication and/or limits of the coverage afforded by said policies, which
coverage will apply to each insured to the full extent provided by the terms and
conditions of the policy(s). Nothing contained in this provision shall afiact and/or alier
the application of any other provision contained within this Contract.

Risk Assessment by Contractor

By requiring such minimum insurance, the County shall not be deemed or construed to
have assessed the risks that may be applicable to the Contractor under this Contract,
nor shail such minimum limits be construed to limit the limits available under any
insurance coverage obtained by the Contractor. The Contractor shall assess its own
risks and, if it deems appropriate and/or prudent, maintain greater limits and/or broader

coverage.

Minimum Scope of Insurance. Coverage shall be at least as broad as the following:

1. General Liability

Insurance Services Oifice form number (CG 00 01) covering COMMERCIAL

GENERAL LIABILITY.

2. Professional Liability, Errors and Omissions Coverage

In the event that services delivered pursuant to this Contract either directly or
rrag unc pfOf-::::iOHcli' scev;c;s Professional Liability. Errors

"""" ional Services”, for the purpos
ices provided by a licensed professior

indirectly invalve or
Omissions covarac

th
[#]
oL T
o
[§h]
"2
J
fIl
E
M
)
0.
s

e 2rv
vices that require a professicnal standard of cars

(%]
b

insurance Services Offics form nu ‘.'“"
COVERAGE.s rmbct 1 fany auto”;

ymbols 2, 7, 8, or 9




wm

-

Workers” Compensation

Workers’ Compensation coverage, as required by the Industrial Insurance Act of
the State of Washington, as well as any similar coverage required for this work by
applicable federal or “Other States” siate law.

Stop Gap/Employers Liability

Coverage shall be at least as broad as the protection provided by the Workers'
Compensation policy Part 2 (Employers Liability) or, in states with monopolistic
state funds, the protection provided by the “Stop Gap” endorsement to the general

liability policy.
Property Insurance
Insurance Services Office ferm number (CP 00 10) covering BUILDING AND

PERSONAL PROPERTY COVERAGE and insurance Services Office form number
(CP 10 30) CAUSES OF LOSS - SPECIAL FORM or project appropriate

equivalent.

National Flood Insurance

Tne use of CDBG and HOME funds for acquisition cr construction purposes in
identified special flood hazard areas shall be subject to Contractor mandatory
purchase of flood insurance as required by Saction 102(a) of the Flood Disaster

Protection Act of 1973 (Pub L. §3-237).
Builder's Risk/Installaticn Floater

The Contractor shall procure and maintain during the life of the Contract, or until
acceptance of the project by King County. whichever is longer, “All Risk™ Builders
Risk Insurance at least as broad as I1SO form number CP0020 (Builders Risk
Coverage Form) with ISO form number CP0030 (Causes of Loss—Special Form)
including coverage for collapse, theft and property in transit. The coverage shall
insure for direct physical loss to property of the entire construction project, for cne
hundred percent of the replacement value thereof. The policy shall be endorsed to
cover the interests, as they may appear, of King County, Owner, Contractor and
subcontractors of all tiers with King County listed as a loss payee.

Minimum Limits of Insurance—Capital Projects

The Contractor shall maintain limits no less than the following:
g

4
I

Mo

.

wm

Commercial General Liability: $1.000.000 combined single limit per occurrence by
bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage; and for those policies with
aggregate limits, a $2.000.000 aggregate limit.

rofessional Liakility, Errors, and Omissions: §1.000.00C, Par Claim and in ths
Aggragete
Automobile Liakility: $1.000.00C combined single limit per accident for badily injury
and property f:i: 5 e if the use of motor vahicles is -forltcmplat-:r_r_
Workers' Compensation: Stalutory requirements of the state of residency.
Siop Gap /Empioyers Liability: $1.000.000.

2012 Contract



I

G

€. Property Insurance: One hundred percent replacement value of funded structure.

Mimimum Limits of Insurance—-Building Construction Pericd

Prior to commencement of building construction and until construction is compiete and
approved by the Contractor, the Contractor shall cause the construction contractor and
related professicnals to procure and maintain insurance against claims for injuries to
persons or damages to property which may arise from, or in connection with the
activities related to this Contract. The Contractor and County shall be named as
additional insureds on liability policies except Workers Compensaticn and Professicnal
Liability, and as Named Insureds on Builders Risk policias. The cost of such insurance
shall be paid by the Contractor and/or any of the Contractor's contractors/
subcontractors. The Contractor shall maintain limits no less than the following:

1. Commercial General Liability: $1.000.000 combined single limit per occurrence for
bodily injury, persona! injury and property damage and $2.000.000 in the
aggregate.

2. Automobile Liability: $1.000.00C combined single limit per accident for bodily injury

and property damage.

Professicnal Liability, Errors & Omissions: $1.000.000, Per Claim and in the

Aggregate.

0

4. Builder's Risk Insurance: One hundrad percent replacement cost value.
5. Workers Compensation: Statutory requirements of the State of residency.

6. Stop Gap or Employers Liability Coverage: $1.000.000.
Minimum Limits of Insurance—Services Agreements: The Contractor shall maintain
limits no less than the following:

1. Commercial General Liability: $1.000.000 combined single limit per occurrence for
bodily injury, personal injury and property damage and $2.000.000 in the

aggregate.

2. Automobile Liability: $1.000.000 combined single limit per accident for bodily injury
and property damage.

3. Professional Liability, Errors & Omissions: $1.000.000, Per Claim and in the
Aggregate.

Workers Compensation: Statutory requirements of the State of Residency.

5. Stop Gap or Employers Liability Coverage: $1.000.000.

Paragraphs G, H, I. J, Kand L below apply to Cagpital Projects, Construction Projects
and S:vu’uces Coniracts.

Deductibles and Seli-lnsured Retzantions

Any deductibles or self-insursd retentions must be declared to, and approved by, the
County. The daductible and/or self-insurad retention of the pc-’éc.es hall not apely to
the Contractor’s liability to the County and shall be tie sole responsibility of the

Contractor.



H. Other Insurance Provisions

The insurance policies required in this Contract are to contain, or be endorsed to
contain, the following provisions.

1. All Liability Policies except Professional and Workers Compensation.

a. The County, its officers, officials, employees, and agenis are to be covered as
additional insureds as respecis liability arising out of activities performed by or
on behalf of the Contractor/Contractor in connection with this Contract. Such
coverage shall include Products-Completed Operations.

b. To the extent of the Contractor's/Contractor's negligence, the Contracior's
Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the
County. its officers, officials, employees, and agents. Any insurance and/or seli-
insurance maintained by the County, its officers, officials, employees, or agents
shall not contribute with the Contractor's insurance or benefit the Contractor in

any way.

¢. The Contractor’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against
whom claim is made and/or lawsuit is brought, except with respect to the limits
of the insurer’s liability.

2. Property Coverage Policies

a. The County shall be added to all Property Coverage Policies as a loss payss as
its interests may appear.

b. The County shall be added as a Named Insured as their intarasts may appear
to all Builders Risk policies.

3. All Policies

Coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage orin
limits, except by the reduction of the applicable aggragate limit by claims paid, until
after 30 days prior written notice has been given to the County.

Acceptability of Insurers

Unless otherwise approved by the County, insurance is to be placed with insurers with
a Bests' rating of no less than A: VIII, or, if not rated with Bests, with minimum
surpluses the equivalent of Bests’ surplus size VIII.

Professional Liability, Errors, and Omissions insurance may be placed with insurars
with a Bests' rating of B+VIi. Any exception must be approved by the County.

t the above reguirements, the

-~

If, at any time, the foregoing policies shall fail to mee
Contractor shall, upon notice to that effect from the County, promptly obtain a new
licy. and shall submit the same to the County, with appropriate certificates and

ndorsements, for approval.

Verification of Coverage
The Contractor shall furnish the County with certificates of insurance and
endorsements required by this Contract. The certificates and endorsements for each
insurance pelicy are to be signsd by a parson authorized by that insurer to bind

=1

2012 Contract



XIX.

m

coverage on its behalf The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy
are to be on forms approved by the County prior to the commencement of activities
associated with the Contract. The County reserves the right to require complete,
certified copies cf ail required insurance policies at any time.

Subcontractors

The Centractor shail inciude all subcontractors as insureds under its policies or shall

require separate certificates of insurance and policy endersements from each

subcontractor. If the Contractor is relying on the insurance coverages provided by
subcontractors as evidence of compliance with the insurance requiraments of this
Contract, then such requirements and documentation shall be subjact to all of the

requirements stated herein.
Municipal or State Coniractor Provisions

it the Contractor is a municipal corporation or a Contractor of the state of Washington
and is seff-insured for any of the above insurance requirements, a certification of salf-
insurance shall be provided for the self-insured requirements and attached herato and
be incorporated by reference and shall constitute compliance with this Section. If the
certificate of seif-insurance does not cover ail mandatory requirements, the Contractor
shall provide separate certificates and endorsements that document coverage.

NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

A

Equal Benefits to Employees with Domestic Partners

To the extent prchibited by KCC Chapter 12.19, King County’s “Equal Benefits” (EB)
ordinance, and related administrative rules adopted by the County Executive, as a
conditicn of a competitive award of a contract valued at $25,000 or more, non-public
Contractors agree not to discriminate in the provision of employee benefits betwesn an
employees with spouses, employees with domestic partners or employees who reside
with legally domiciled members of households during the performance of this Contract.
Failure to comply with this provision shall be considered a material breach of this
Contract, and may subject the Contractor to administrative sanctions and remedies for

breach.

When a competitively awarded contract is valued at $25,000 or more, the Contractor
shall complete a Worksheet and Declaration form for County review and acceptance
prior to Contract execution. The EB Compliance forms, KCC Chapter 12.19, and
related administrative rules are incorporated herein by referance. They are also
available online ai:
http:/Avww kingcounty.gov/operations/procurement/Services/Equal_Benefits.aspx

Nondiscrimination in Employment Provision of Services

2d by KCC Chaptar 12.16 or 12.17. duri

iing under the authority of

this Contract, neither the Contractor nor any party subcontrac at y

this Contract shall discriminate or tolerats harassment on ths basis of sex, race. color

marital status. national origin, religious affiliation, disability, sexua! orientation, gendsr
l=s

except by minimum age and retirament provisior



C.

Mendiscrimination in Subcontracting Practices

To the extent prohibited by KCC Chapter 12.16 or 12.17, during the term of this
Contract, the Contracter shall not create barriers to open and fair opportunities tc
participate in County contracts or to obtain or compete for contracts and subconiiacis
as sources of supplies, equipment, construction and services. In considering offers
trom and deing business with subcontractors and supgliers, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against any person because of their sex, race, color, marital status,
national origin, religious affiliation, disability. sexual orientation, gender identity or
expression or age except by minimum age and retirement provisions, unless base
upon a bona fide occupational qualification.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Centractor shall comply fully with all applicable federal, state and lecal laws,
ordinances, Presidential Executive Orders and regulations that prohibit discrimination
to the extent applicable. These laws include, but are not limited to, RCW Chapter
49.60, Titles VI and Vii of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the American with Disabilities
Act, and the Restoration Act of 1987. In addition, King County Code chapters 12.16,
12.17 and 12.18 are incorporated herein by refarence and the requirsments in these
code chapters shall specifically apply to this contract, to the full extent applicable. The
Contractor shall further comply fully with any equal oppertunity requirements set forth
in any federal reguiations, statutes or rules included or referenced in the contract

documents.

Small Contraciors and Suppliers and Minority and Women Business Entarprises
Opportunities

King County encourages the Contractor to utilize small businesses, including Small
Contractors and Suppliers (SCS), as defined below, and minority-owned and women-
owned business enterprises certified by the Washington state Office of Minority and
Women's Business Enterprises (OMWBE) in County contracts. The County
encourages the Contractor to use the following voluntary practices to promote open
competitive opportunities for small businesses, including SCS firms and minority-
owned and women-owned business enterprises:

1. Inquire about King County’s Contracting Opportunities Program. King County has
established a Contracting Opportunities Program to maximize the participation of
Small Contractors and Suppliers (SCS) in the award of King County contracts. The
Program is open to all SCS firms certified by King County Business Development
and Contract Compliance (BDCC). As determined by BDCC and identified in the
solicitation documents issued by the County, the Program will apply to specific
contracts. However, for those contracts not subject to the Program or for which the
Contractor elected not to pariicipate in the Program during the sclicitation stage.,
the Contractor is still encouraged to inquire voluntarily about availablzs firms.
Program materials, including application forms and a directory of certified SCS
firms, are available at ths following Web-site address:
http:/www kingcounty.gov/bdee

The term “Small Coniractors and Suppliers” (SCS) means that a business and tha
perscn or persons who own and control it ars in a financial condition which puts ths
business at a substantial disadvantage in attsmpting to compeis for public

A c Th iyl

il o kbl '

g £ . i3 ~r . . = -
ndition for eligibility under the Program is sat



G.

fiity percent (50%) of the Federal Small Business Adminisiration (SBA) small
business size standards using the North American Industry Classification System
and Owners’ Perscnal Net Worth less than $750,000 dollars.

2. Contact the Washington State Office of Minority and Women's Business
Enterprises (OMWBE) to cbtain a list of certified minority-owned and women-
owned business enterprises by visiting their website at http://www.omwbe.wa.gov/

cr by Toll Free telephone (866) 208-1064.

3. Use the services of available community organizations, consultant grougs, local
assistance offices, the County. and other organizations that provide assistance in
the recruitment and placement of small businesses. including SCS firms and
minority-owned and women-owned business enterprises.

Equa! Employment Opportunity Efiorts

The Contractor shall undertake equal employment cpportunity efforts to ensure that
applicants and employees are treated, without regard to their sex, race, color, marital
staius, national origin, religious affiliation, disabiiity, sexual orientation, gender identity
or expression or age. The Contractor's equa! employment opportunity efforts shall
include but not be limited to, the fcllowing:; employment, upgrading. demotion or
transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; laycif or termination; rates of pay or
other forms of compenszation; and selection for training, including apprenticeships. The
Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants
for employment notices setting forth this nondiscrimination clause. In accordance with
KCC 12.16.010.j. “equal employment opportunity efforts” shall mean active efforts to
ensure equal opportunity in employment that is free from all forms of discrimination.

Compliance with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as amended (Section
504) and the American Disabilities Act of 1990 as amended (ADA)

Pursuant to Title Il of the ADA and Section 504 the County must not discriminate
against people with disabilities in providing services, programs or activities even if
those services, programs or activities are carried out by contractors. The Contractor
agrees that it shall provids all programs, services and activities to County employees or
members of the public under this Contract in the same manner as King County is
obligated to under Title Il of the ADA, and Section 504 and shall not deny participation
or the benefits of such services, programs or activities to people with disabilitiss on the
basis of such disability. Failure to comply with this section shall be a material breach of,
and grounds for, the immediats termination of this Contract.

1. The Contractor agress to provide to perscns with disabilities access to programs,
activities and services provided under the Contract or agreement, as required by
the disability access laws as defined by KCC 12.16; and

2. The Contractcr shall not Lzl::J iminats against persons with disatilities in providing
the work Lmr‘ “the Contract. In any sutbcontracts for the programs, activities and
services under their contra tor agreement, the Contractor shall include the
requiremsant ti‘ t the subcontracicr provide o persons with disabilities access to

nt

programs, a..u' tl'-'b an d services provided undsr the contract or agreeme

required by the disability accsss laws as defined by KCC 12.18, thcu the
subcontrac *o: shall not discriminate against persons with disabilities in prov
the work under the Contract and that the subcontractor shall provide that th
County is a third party bensficiary o that required provision



H. Sancticns for Violations

Any violaticn of the mandatory requirements of the provisicns of this Section shail be a

material breach of contract for which the Contractor may be subject to damages.
withholding payment and any other sancticns provided for by the Contract and by
applicable law.

Fair Housing Protections

(42

The Contracter shall comply with the federal Fair Housing Act, Putlic Law 90-284 (42
USC 3601 et seq.). The Centractor shall take necessary and appropriate actions to
pravent discrimination in any housing-related project under this Contract, which
includes rental housing projects and/or projecis that include residential real estate-
related transactions. as required by the Federal Fair Housing Act as amended (42 USC
3601) and the Washington State Law Against Discrimination (RCW Chapter 49.60).
Residential real estate-related transactions include the making or purchasing of loans
or the provision of financial assistance secured by real estate, or the making or
purchasing of loans or financial assistance for the purchasing. constructing, improving.
repairing or maintaining of a dwelling. Rental housing includes any dwelling that is
intended for occupancy as a residence for one or more families by leass, sublease or
by grant for a consideration of the right to occupy Premises not owned by the
occupant. In additicn, except for projects located in incorporated jurisdictions, the
Contractor shall comply with the applicabie provisions of the King County Open
Housing Ordinance, codified at Chapter 12.20 of the King Ceunty Code, which
prohibits practices of housing discrimination against any person on the basis of age,
ancestry, color, disability, marital status, national origin, parental status, possession of
Section 8 housing assistance, race, religion, retaliation, sex, and sexual orientation.

Projects using federal funds shall also comply with subsections J, K, L, and M beiow.

Additional Federal Nondiscrimination Requiraments

The Contractor shall compiy with all applicable federal laws prohibiting discrimination,

including the following

1. Presidential Exscutive Order 11063 as amended and implementing regulztions at
24 CFR Part 107;

Section 109 of the HCD Act of 1974, as amended (42 USC 5301);

N

The Americans with Disabilitias Act (42 USC 1213; 47 USC 155, 201, 218 and

225); and
4. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and regulations at 24 CFR Part 8.

w

K. Prohibitzd Discriminatory Actions

Ty

1. Except whers expressly authorized by federal law, the Contractor may no
ctivity to which this Contract am!u:s. dirscitly or thmur!h
er rafig ements, discriminate on the grounds of age, color,
us. mariial status, na*lonclr; religion, race, sex. saxual
presence of any, physical, mental or sensory disabi fity.
tions may includs but are not limitzd {o the following:

, under

any program
contractuai or ci‘:
creed, familial stat
crientation, or th
Discriminatory a

. financial aid or other bensfits

~r

Denying any parson access to {acilities, servics
provided undsr ths program or activity;

wn

a



b. Denying any person services due to limited English proficiency:

Providing any person with facilities, services, financial aid or other benefits,
which are different, or are provided in a different form from that provided to
others under the program or activity;

G

d. Subjecting any person to segregatsd cr separate treatment in any facility or in
any matter or process relatad to receipt of any service or bensfit under the

program or activity;

Restricting in any way access to or in the enjoyment of any advantage or
privilege eu;o;ed by others in connection with facilities, services, financial aid or
other benefits under the program or activity;

f. Treating any person differently irom others in determining whether the person

satisfies any admission, enroliment, eligibility, membership, or other
requirement or condition which individuals must meet in order to be provided
any facilities, services or other benefit provided under the program or activily:

Denying any person any cpportunity {o participatz in a pregram or activity as an
employee, and

h. Failing to design and construct facilities for first cccupancy after January 26.
1993 that are readily accessible to and usable by individuals with disabilities
and faiiure to remove architectural and communication barriers that ars
structural in naturs in existing facilities, where such removal can be

accomplished without difficulty and expenss.

The Contractor shall not utilize criteria or methods of administration that have the

2
effect of subjecting individuals to discrimination on the basis of age, color, familial
status, nationality, race, religion, sex, or sexual orientation; or mental, physical, or
sensory disability; or have the eifect of defeating or substantially impairing
accomplishment of the objectives of the program or activity with respect to
individuals of a particular age, color, familial status, nationality, race, religion, s&x,
or sexual orientation; or the presence of any mental, physical, or sensory disability.

3. The Contractor, in determining the site or location of housing or facilities provided in

whole or in part with funds under this Contract, may not make selections of such
site or location which have the effect of excluding individuals. denying them
benetfits, or subjecting them to discrimination on the grounds of age, sex, marital
status, familial status, religion, race, creed, color, sexual orientation, nationality, or
the presence of any sensory, mental or physical disability: or which have the
purpose or ffect of defeating or substantially impairing the accomplishment of the

objectives of the HCD Act or of the HUD Regulations.

Employment Projections

In ali salicitations under this Contract, the Contractcr shail stats that all qualified
applicants will be considared for employment. The words "equal opportunity employer”
in advertisaments shall constiiute compliance with this Saction

“

exemption from

ligion. sstferth

Bizck Dizmong



XX.

<)

(17

ack Diamond Pags

)

Faith-based organizations, like any other entity participating in a HUD-funded pregram.
must, however, comply with all the statutory requirements of that particular HUD-
funded program. Both the CDBG and HOME Programs contain statutory provisions
impesing non-discrimination requirements on all subrecipients, subgrantees or
contractors. Religious organizations that believe that certain non-discrimination
statutory requirements are substantially burdensome may be entitled to protection
under the Religious Freedom Restoration Act [42 USC4000bb-3, 4000bb-2(1)] which
applies to all federal law and its implementation. Subrecipients, subgrantees, or
contractors should be aware that anti-discrimination provisions of Section 109 of the
Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, Section 282 of the HOME
Investment partnership Act may pose questions of conformance with Title VI of the
Civil Rights Act of 1964 and future court rulings could define more specifically the
application of these laws to faith-based organizations In the event that a provision of
this Contract is deemed to be in actua! conflict with federal law, the conflicting provisicn

in this Contract shall not apply.

SUBCONTRACTS AND PURCHASES

A. Subcontract Defined

“Subcoentract” shall mean any agreement between the Contracior and a subcontractor
or between subcontractors that is based on this Contract, provided that the term
“subcontract” does not includs the purchase of (1) support services not ralated to the
subject matter of this Contract, or (2) supplies.

Writing Required

Any work or services assigned or subcontracted hereunder shall be in writing and must
be approved by the County as provided in Section XIV. The Contractor agrees that it is
as fully responsible to the County for the acts and omissions of its subcontractors and
their employees and agents, as it is for the acts and omissions of its own employees
and agents, as specified in Subsection XVII (C).

Required Centract Terms

The Contractor shall include the applicable provisions of Sections XVIlI, XIX,and XX in
every subcontract or purchase order for goods or services which are paid for in whole
or in part with funds provided under this Contract. The Contractor agrees to include the
following language verbatim in every subcontract, provider agreement, or purchase
agreement for services, which relate to the subject matter of this Contract:

“Subcontractor shall protect, defend, indemnify. and hold harmless King County, its
officers, employses, and agents from any and all costs, claims, judgments, and/or
awards of damages arising out of, or in any way resulting from the negligent act or

omissions of subcontractor, its cfficers, employee, and/or agents in connection with or
or expressly agress and understands that King

~F
{

in support of this Contract. Subcontract
County is a third party beneficiary to this Contract and shall have the right to bring an
action against subconiracior {0 enforce the provisions of this paragraph.”

Projects using federal funds must also comely with subseciions D, E, F, G and H.

2012 Contract



D.

Debarrad Contractors

The Contractor certifies that neither the Contractor nor any person or entity with a
controlling interest in the Contractor is under suspension, debarment, voluntary
exclusicn or determination of ineligibility from participation in federal assistance
programs under Presidential Executive Order 12549 or 12689, “Debarment and
Suspension”. The Contractor further certifies that neither the Contractor nor any
person or entity with a controlling interest in the Contracter has any proceeding
pending to suspend, debar, exclude or determine them ineligible from participation in
federal assistance programs under Presidential Executive Order 12545 or 12689

The Ceniractor shall not make any award at any time to any contractor, which is
debarred, suspended or excluded. from participation in fedsral assistance programs
under Presidential Executive Order 12549, “Debarment and Suspension’”.

The Contractor shall ensure that all subcontractors receiving any federal funds
pursuant to this agreement have not been disbarred or suspended from faderal
contract participation. This may be done by checking the Excluded Parties List System
http:/epls.arnet.gov. which lists all suspended and debarred entities.

Subcontracting Requirements

A Contractor which receives federal funds under this Contract also shall include the
following Sections in every subcontract or purchase order for goods and services which
are paid in whole or in part with funds provided under this Contract: Sections XVil.B,
XV, K, XiX, and XXIl.B; and, if the subcontract is for construction, Sections XXXIV

and XXXV.

Federal Procurement Requirements

If the Contractor is a municipal corporation or a Contractor of the State of VWashington,
it agrees to comply with procurement requirements specified in 24 CFR § 85.36(b)
through (g). If the Contractor is a nonprofit corporation, it agrees to comply with
procurement requirements specified in 24 CFR §§ 84.40 through 84.48 or as otherwise
provided in the Project/Program Exhibit. The regulations at 24 CFR § 85.36 (b) through
(g) and 24 CFR §§ 84.40 through 84.48, require that all goods and services,
irrespective of cost. be procured using a competitive process.

Federal Bid Guaranize and Bond Requiramants

If the Contractor is subcontracting construction work under this Contract, the
subcontract shall require for any construction contracts exceeding $100.000:

1. A bid guarantes from each bidder equivalent to five percent of the bid price;
2. A performance bond frem the contractor for one hundred percent of the contract
price: and

A payment bond from the contractor for ong hundred psrc
The Contractor may, at its discretion, raguire 9:‘,‘, of these
construction contracts of less than $100.000. The specific
guaraniees and ponds are at 24 CFR :, 84. '-90\ ) for nongr
CFR § 85.36(h} for municipa! corporations and agencies o

;u.:ill..ghﬁ

nt of the contract prics.
guirsmenis on
QLII[-'lTlchL:: for bid

ofit corporations and 24
f the Stats of

(W8]



H. Failure to Comply is Default

Failure by the Contractor to require compliance with the above terms and conditions in
subcontracts shail constitute a breach of this Contract.

XX1. NONDISCRIMINATION IN SUBCONTRACTING PRACTICES

Projects using federal funds shall comply with the following requirements:

A. Federal Requirements

In scliciting sukbcontractors to supply goods or services for the activities under this
Contract, the Contractor shall comply with 24 CFR § 85.36(g} as amended if the
Contractor is a municipal corporation or a Contractor of the State of Washington. and
24 CFR § 84.44(bj(1)-(5) if the Contractor is a nonprofit corporation. In accordance
with these regulations, the Contractor shall take all necessary affirmative steps to

assure MVWBEs and labor surplus area firms ars used as subcontractors when
possible. Affirmative steps shall include those actions specified above in this Sect

ection of

the Contract.

B. Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Constructicn

ce with Prasidential Exacutive Ordar 11246

The Contractor shall also require compliance w
as amended and 41 CFR Part 60 regarding nondiscrimination in bid conditions for

construction projects over $S10,000.

XXII. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

A. King County Code Chapter 3.04 Compiliance.

1.

(%]

(98]

The Contractor shall comply with applicable provisions of KCC Chapter 3.04.
Failure to comply with such provisions shall be a material breach of Contract and
may result in termination of this Contract pursuant to Section XV and subject the
Contractor to remedies stated therein or otherwise available to the County at law or
in equity. This section shall not apply to a Contractor that is a municipal corporation
which has adopted an employee code of ethics; provided that nothing in this
section is intended to contract away such a Contractor’s obligation to comply with
any KCC Chapter 3.04 provision that applies indspendent of this Contract.

No Preferential Treatment

The Contractor agrees that it will not attempt to secure preferential treatment in
dealings with the County by offering any valuahle consideration, thing of value, or
gift, whether in the form of services, loan, thing, or promise, in any form, toc any
County official or employse. The Contractor acknowledges that if it is found to have

violated the prohibition found in this paragraph its current contracts with the County
shall be cancelled and it shall not be able to bid on any County contract for a period

of two years.

Disclosure of Current and Former County Employess

ird party, including Contracior, whilz employed

A S L TS



XX

B.

by the County or within one (1) year after leaving County employment if he/she
participated in determining the Work to be done or processes to be followed

while a County employee.

b. Contractor shall identify at the time of offer current or farmer County employees
involved in the preparation of propesals or the anticipated performance of Work
if awarded the Contract. Failure tc identify current or former County employess
involved in this Contract may result in termination of this Centract.

After Contract award, the Contractor is responsible for notitying the County's
Project Manager of current or former County employees who may become
involved in the Contract any time during the term of the Contract.

No Cenflict of Interest

The Contractor shall abide by the provision of 24 CFR §§ 84.42 and 570.611, if
applicabie, and by the following:

1. The Coniractor shall maintain a written code or standards of conduct that shall
govern the performance of its officer. employees or agents engaged in the award
and administration of contracts supported by funds under this Contract;

2. No e'npio,/ee director, officer or agent of the Contractor shall participate in the
selection or in the award, or administration of a contract supported by funds under
this contract if a conflict of interest, real or apparant, would be involved. By way of
example, such a conflict would arise if such a person, or his or her employer,
immediate family member or partner has financial or other interest in the entity

selected; and

3. No covered persons who exercise or have exercised any functions or
responsibilities with respect to any Contract-assisted activities. or who are in a
position to participate in a decision-making process or gain inside information with
regard to such activities, may have or obtain a financial interest in any contract,
subcontract or agreement regarding a Contract-assisted activity, either for
themselves or those with whom they have business or immediate family ties. during
their tenure and for one year thereafter. For purposes of this paragraph, “covered
persons” includes any person who is an employes, agent, consultant, cfficer, or

director of the Contractor or the County

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A.

If the Contractor is incorporatad, it must have an active, legally constituted board of
directors in accordance with the requirements of RCW Chapters 23B or 24, to the
extent applicable.

The following additional requirements shall apply to the age nci
profit organizations undsr USC, Title 26, Subtitie A, Chapter 1,
Section 501(C){3).

:v2 a Boa:
of amp Icwc—m nfna ers, or U-lm tors of the Centractor. For

=3
88}
A_A )
)
=0

LM -
<l | H
o

the purposes cf this be«:tw!; a relative is defined as husband. wifs fat er, father-in-
law, mother, mother-in-law, brother, brother-in- Ia w, sister, 5:5':1 in-la n
law, daughter, daughter-in- Ia; nisce, nephaw un
aunt. domestic partnar and 1 of domestic p '

all (LS e ol

X Diamy



domestic partner shall be considered relatives to the same extent such relatives
would be included in this Secticn, as if the empioyee and domestic partner were

married
2. The Board of Directors shali meet regularly.

3. The Board of Directors shall cause to be adepted a formal conflict of interest pelicy
for Board members that complies with the appiicable provisions of the Internal
Revenue Code and its 501(C)(3) status, and addresses issues regarding gifts,

financial gain, and improper use of position.

XXIV. CONFIDENTIALITY
i-Hq.

The Contractor agrees that all information, records, and data collected in connecticn wit!
this Contract shall be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with applicable

state and federal law.

XXV. PERSONAL INFORMATION - NOTICE OF SECURITY BREACH

A. If the Contractor maintains computerized or other forms of data that includes personal
information owned by the County, the Contractor shall notify the County of any breach
of the security of the data immediately following discovery if the personal information
was, or is reasonably believed to have bean, acquired by an unauthorized person in
accordance with RCW 42.56.530 (2).

B. The Contractor shall provide all information requested by the County including the
following in accordance with RCW 42.56.590, KCC 2.14.030, the King County
Information Privacy Policy and any other applicable federal, state and local statuts:

1. Circumstances associated with the breach;

2. Actions taken by the Contractor to respond to the breach ; and

3. Steps the Contractor shall take to prevent a similar occurrence.
This information shall be provided in a format requested by the County.

C. The County may ai its sole discretion, require the Contractor to contact the appropriate
law enforcement agency and to provide the County a copy of the report of the
investigation conducted by the law enforcement agency. The Contractor shall also
provide the County with any information it has regarding the security breach.

D. The Contractor shall conspicuously display King County's Privacy Notice and provide a
printed copy upon request.

The Contractor shall be responsible for notifying individuals whose personal

E
information may have become available to unauthorized users through a security
breach. The Contractor shall also be responsible for any cost associated with notifying
the afiected individuals. This notification must be in accordance with RCW 42.58.590
(7).

F. i the Contractor demonsiratzs that the cost of providing notice wouid exceed

$250.000. or that the potentially affected persons exceeds $500.000. or the Contractor
does not have sufficient contact information, substitute notice shall consist of the
following in accordance with RCW 42.56.590 (7). (c).

1o
(o)
I
Ly
o)
3
o
<

City cf Black Diamond



XXVL

W

Email natice when the Contractor has an e-mail address for the subject persons:

Conspicuous posting of the notice on the Cortracter's web site page, if the
Contractor maintains cne; and

Matification to major County-wide media.

G. For purpose of this section. “personal information” means the same as defined in RCW

42.56.590:

1.

An individual's first name or first initial and last name in combination with any one c¢f
the following data elements, when either the name or the data elements are not
encrypted: sccial security number: driver’s license number or Washington
identificaticn card number; of

Account number or credit or debit card number, in combination with any required
security cods; access code, or password that would permit access to an individuai's
financial account.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND

ACCOUNTABILITY ACT OF 1996 (HIPAA)

Terms used in this Section shall have the same meaning as these terms in the Privacy
Rule, 45 CFR Paris 160 and 164

A. Otligations and Activities of the Coniractor

1.

w

The Contractor agrees not to use or disclose protected health information other
than as permittad or requirad by this Contract, HIPAA and the Health Information
Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (HITECH). The Contractor shall
use and disclose protected health information only if such use or disclosure.
respectively, is in compliance with each applicable requirement of 45 CFR §
164.504(e). The Contractor is directly responsible for full compliance with the
privacy provisions of H!PAA and HITECH that apply to business associates.

The Contractor agrees to implement administrative, physical, and technical
safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity,
and availability of the protected health information that it creates, receives,
maintains, or transmits on behalf of the County as required by 45 CFR, Part 164,
Subpart C. The Contractor is directly responsible for compliance with the security
provisions of HIPAA and HITECH that apply to business associates, including
sections 164.308, 154.310, 164.312, and 164.316 of title 45 CFR.

Within two business days of the discovery of a breach as defined at 45 CFR §
164.402 the Contractor shall notify the County of any breach of unsecured
protected health information. The notification shall include the identification of each
individual whose unsecurad protected nealth informaticn has been, or is reascnably
belisved by the Contractor to have been, accessed, acquired, or disclesed during
such breach; a brief description of what happsned, including the date of the breach
and the date of the discovery of the breach, if known; a description of the types cf
unsecured protacted health information that were involved in the breach (such as
whether full name, social security number, date of birth, home address. account
number, diagnosis, disability code. or other types of information were involved); any
os individuals should taks to protect themselves from potential harm resulting

t
: L R L A B Tl (-
f description of what the Contractor is doing to investigats

st
from the breach; a brie




the breach. to mitigate harm to individuals, and to protect against any further
breaches; the contact procedures of the Contractor for individuals to ask questions
or learn additional information, which shall include a toll free number, an e-mail
address, Web site, or postal address; and any other information required to be
provided to the individual by the County pursuant to 45 CFR § 164.404, as
amended. A breach shall be treated as discovered in accordance with the terms of
45 CFR § 164.410. The information shall be updated promptly and provided to the

County as requested by the County.

The Contractor agrees to mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that

4.
is known to the Contractor of a use or disclosure of protected health information by
the Contractor in violation of the requirements of this Contract or the law.

5. The Contractor agrees to report in writing all unauthorized or otherwise improper

disclosures of protected health information or security incident to the County within
two days of the Contractor knowledge of such event.

6. The Contractor agrees to ensure that any agent, including a subcontractor, to
whom it provides protected health information received from, or created or received
by the Contractor on behalf of the County, agrees to the same restrictions and
conditions that apply through this Contract to the Contractor with respect to such

information.

The Contractor agrees to make available protected health information in
accordance with 45 CFR § 164.524.

~]

8. The Contractor agrees to make available protected health information for
amendment and incorporate any amendments to protected heaith information in

accordance with 45 CFR § 164.526.

9. The Contractor agrees to make internal practices, books, and records, including
policies and procedures and protected health information, relating to the use and
disclosure of protected health information received from, or created or received by
the Contractor on behalf of King County, available to the Secretary, in a reasonable
time and manner for purposes of the Secretary determining King County’s
compliance with HIPAA, HITECH or this Contract.

10. The Contractor agrees to make available the information required to provide an
accounting of disclosures in accordance with 45 CFR §184.528. Should an
individual make a request to the County for an accounting of disclosures of his or
her protected health information pursuant to 45 CFR § 164.528, Contractor agrees
tc promptly provide an accounting, as specified under 42 U.S.C. § 17935(c)(1) and
45 CFR §164.528, of disclosures of protected health information that have been
made by the Contractor acting on behalf of the County. The accounting shall be
provided by the Contractor to the County or to the individual, as directed by the

County.

D arrvibd ~ -~ -~ S1tras fo)] H ~o o M ~
Permitied Uses and Disclosures by Business Associate

!:"l

The Contractor may use or disclose protactad health information to perform functions,
activities, or services for, or on behalf of, King County as specified in this Contract,
provided that such use or disclosure would not violate HIPAA if done by King Gounty cr

the minimum necessary policies and procedures of King County.

2 s Lontfact

T
1
i
f_)
"
[

(Vg ]

City ¢f Black Diamerd



C. Effect of Termination

1. Except as provided in paragraph C.2. of this Section. upon termination of this
Contract, for any reason, the Centracter shall return or destroy all protected health
information received from the County, or created or received by the Contracter on
behalf of the County This provisicn shall apply to protected health information that
is in the possessicn of subcontractors or agents of the Contractor. The Centractor
shall retain no copies cf the protected health information.

2. In the event the Contractor determines that returning or destroying the protected
health information is infeasible, the Contractor shall provide to King County
notification of the conditions that make raturn or destruction infeasible. Upon
notification that return or destruction of protected health information is infeasitle,
the Contractor shall extend the protections of the Contract to such protected health
information and limit further uses and disclosure of such protected health
information to those purpcses that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so
long as the Contractor maintains such protected health information.

D. Reimbursement for Costs Incurred Dus to Breach

Contractor shall reimburse the County, without limitation, for ail costs of investigation,

dispute resolution, notification of individuals, the media, and the government, and

expenses incurred in responding to any audits or other investigation relating to or
rising out of a breach of unsecured protected heaith information by the Contractor.

XXVH. NOTICES
Whenever this Contract provides for notice to be provided by one party to another, such
notice shall be in writing; and directad to the Chief Exascutive Officer of the Contractor and
the Director of the County Department of Community and Human Services. Any time within
which a party must take some action shall be computed from the date that said party

receives the notice.
XXVIIL. KING COUNTY RECYCLED PRODUCT PROCUREMENT POLICY

In accordance with King County Ccde Chapter KCC 10.16 and King County Executive
Policy CON 7-1-2, the Contractor shall use recycled paper for all printed and photocopied
documents related to the submission of this solicitation and fulfillment of the Contract and
shall. whenever practicable, use both sidss of the paper.

SERVICES PROVIDED IN ACCORDANCE WITH LAW AND RULE AND REGULATION

XXIX.

The Contractor and any subconiractor agree, when applicable, to abide by the terms of

Chapters 26.44, 69.54, 70.02, 70.96A, 71.05, 71A.10, 71A.14, 71A.18,71.20, 71.24, and

71.34 of the Revised Code of Washington, rules and regulations promulgated thereunder,

the Basic Interagency Contract betwaen the Department of Social and Health Services and
King County, as amended. and ragulations of the state and fzderal governments, as
applicable, which control disposition of funds granted under this Contract, all of which ars

incorporated hersin by reference.

XXX. POLITICAL ACTIVITY PROHIBITED

A. No Partisan Activity

ck Diamend

)
m
)



KXXL.

None of the funds, materials. property or services provided directly or indirectly under
this Contract shall be used for any partisan palitical activity or to turther the election or
defeat of any candidate for public office.

All Projects using federal funds shali aiso comply wiih the foliowing subseciiorn:
Certification Regarding Lobbying
The Contractor certifies, to the best of its knowledge and belief, that:

1. No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
Contractor, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an cfficer or employee of

Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with the

awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of

any federal loan, the entering intc of any cooperative agreement, and the
extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

2. li any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to

any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or emplcyee of any
agency, a member of Congress, an officer or empioyee of Congress, or an
employee of a member of Congress in connection with this federal contract, grant,
loan, or cooperative agreement, the Contractor shall complete and submit Standard
Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its

instructions.

The Contractor shall requirs that the language of this certification be included in the

ward documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants.
and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all
subcontractors shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a
prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31 USC 1352.
Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil
penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

A

m

City of Biack Diz

Severability. Whenever possible, each provision of this Contract shall be interpreted to
be effective and valid under applicable law. If any provision is found to be invalid, illegal
or unenforceable, then such provision or portion thereof shall be modified to the extent
necessary to render it legal. valid and enforceable and have the intent and economic
effect as close as possible to the invalid, illegal and unenforceable provision.

Not Exclusive. No provision of this Contrast precludes the County from

Remedies
Contractor’s failurs to perform its obligations.

pursuing any other remedies for the
No Third Party Beneficiaries. Except for the parties to whom tn s Contract is assigned
in compliance with the terms of this Contract, thers are :‘\_ t : iaries to
tnis Contract. and this Contract shall not impart any ri

or entity that is not a party thereio.

SR CAptraet
zutZ Lenract

7
¢



XXXIL.

XXX

D. This Contract shall be governed by and construed to the laws of the State of
Washington. Any claim or suit between the parties arising out of this Contract may oniy
be filed and prosecuted in King County Supericr Court of U.S. District for the Western

District of Washingtcn, in Seatile.

AFFIRMATIVE MARKETING

A Federal Marketing Requiremerits

Each Contractor must adopt affirmative marketing procedures and requirements for
projects containing five or more housing units funded with CDBG and/or HOME funds.
Affirmative marketing steps consist of actions to provide information and otherwise
attract eligible persons from all racial, ethnic. and gender groups in the housing marke!
area to the available housing. (The affirmative marketing procedures do not apply to
families with housing assistance provided by the Public Housing Authority or families
with tenant based rental assistance provided with HOME funds.) The County shall
annually assess the Contractor's affirmative marketing program to determine the
success of affirmative marketing actions and any necessary corrective actions.

The affirmative marketing requirements and procedures adopted must include:

jos]

1. Methods for informing the public, owners, and potential tenants about federal fair
housing laws and the use of the Equal Housing Opportunity logotype or slogan in
press releases and solicitations for owners, and written communication to fair

housing and other groups;

2. Requirements and practices the Contractor must adhere to in order to carry out the
participating jurisdiction’s affirmative marketing procedures and requirement {(€.g..
use of commercial media, use of community contacts, use of the Equal Housing
Opportunity logotype or slogan, and display of fair housing poster);

3. Procedures to be used by the Contractor to inform and solicit applications from
persons in the housing market area who are not likely to apply for the housing
without special outreach (e.g., use of community organizations, language
interpraters, places of worship, employment centers, fair housing groups, or

housing counseling agencies);

Records must be kept describing actions taken by the Contractor to affirmatively
markst units and racords to assess the result of these actions; and

I

5. A description of how the Coniractor shall assess the success of affirmative
marketing acticns and what corrective actions wili be taken where affirmative
marketing requiresments are not met.

ACCESSIBILITY FOR CAPITAL PROJECTS

Any buildings or other facilities designed, constructed, or altersd with federal funds pur _mi
Y £

to Ihl‘: Cnmuact are sub' sct to the :~quuem nis 01 d £ A'rhi‘r u:a' Ban t—'fa Act of 1028
aaaaa S andards

f‘:\}.*D"ﬂC! XA tfo 24 CFm Pa. { -fOr 12 s:dr—nr‘al st m:fus:»s an d f-\pD"l"dl( A to 41 CFR Paris
101-19 and subpart 101-19.6 for general type building). When applicable, certain multi-
family housing units designed and censtructed {or first occupancy after March 13, 1991,
with assistance provided under this Contract must comply with the Fair Housing
Accessibility Guidslines, 24 CFR Part 100 as amanded.

l\.J



XXXIV. LABOR STANDARDS

Agencies receiving a CDBG and:or HOME award shall comply with Subsections A and C
beio‘ﬁ.

A

9

XXXV,

Davis-Bacon Requirements

For projects assisted with CDBG funds, this Subsection shall not apply to construction
or rehabilitation of residential property consisting of fewer than eight units. For projects
assisted with HOME funds. this Subsection shall not apply to rehabilitation of rental
property consisting of fewer than twelve units.

All construction work funded in whole or in part under this Contract must be performed
in accordance with the Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (40 USC sections 275(a)-
276(a)(5)), the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act, as amended (40 USC 276(c)) and the
Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 USC 327 et seq.) as further pre-
scribed at 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, 5, 6 and 7. The Contractor will follow all Davis Bacon
documentation requirements and regularly submit required documentation to the
County, shall maintain records sufficient to evidence compliance with this section and
shall make such records available for the County's review upon request.

A copy of the current Davis Bacon wages must be included in all construction bid
specifications, contracts, and/or subcontracts over $2,000, except where the project
includes a copy of applicable state prevailing wages that are higher than current Davis

Bacon wages.
Agencies receiving an award of lecal funds (HOF, RAHP, HB 2331, Veterans and
Human Services Levy or MIDD funds) or federal funds that do not trigger Davis Bacen
shall comply with Subsections B and C balow:

Prevailing Wages

Projects that are not subject to Section A above, shall pay State residential prevailing
wage rates as a minimum. Projects that are subject to State prevailing wage
requirements of chapter 39.12 RCW shall pay prevailing wages at or above the

applicable State classification rate.

The Contractor shall provide annual certification to the County of its compliance with
the requirements of this Section. The Contractor shall additionally maintain records
sufficient to evidence compliance with this section and shall make such records

available for the County’s raview upon request.
Use of Voiunieers

The Contractor shall obtain the written approval of the County prior to allowing any
voluntears to perform construction work on a project assisted under this Contract.

EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES ON ASSISTED CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS

A.

City of Black Diam

ond

Section 3 Reguirements

d under this Contract may be subject 1o me quirsmenis o

g and Urban Davelopment Act of 1968, as amended, 12 UQC
purpose of Section 3 |': to ensure that emplo /ment and other
1enarated by HUD assistance or HUD-assisted projects

at

IS T= T - .
The work to be per.c:m

1701u ("Section 37).
economic cpportunities

fh

Pacs 28 cf 42



covered by Section 3, shall. tc the greatest extent feasibie, be directed to low- and
very low-income persons, particularly persons who are recipients of HUD assistance

for housing.

B. Section 3 Criteria for Capital Projects

As set forth in the HCD Plan, Section 3 regulations found at 24 CFR § 135.38 apply to

all Project/Program Exhibits which meet all three of the following criteria:

1. The ProjectProgram Exhibit must include $200.000 or more in total HUD funds
from one or more program years:

2. The Proiect/Program Exhibit must include construction or rehabilitation work as a
task that will be funded in full or in part with the HUD funds; and

The construction or rehabilitation work that will be funded must have a contract
value, which exceeds $100.000. Actual contract value of construction or
rehabilitation work is the determining factor, not a cest estimate.

w

Additionally, Section 3 regulations are applicable to Project/Program Exhibit(s),
which do not initially meet the above criteria but which are amended so as to add
funds or change the activities for which the funds are used. Section 3 regulations
do not apply to projscts that include $200,000 or more in HUD funds when the
funds are being used for acquisition and/or professional services only and not for
construction or rehabilitation work.

XXXVI. NO BENEFIT TO OWNERS AND DEVELOPERS OF ASSISTED HOUSING

No Contractor, developer or sponsor (or officer, employes, agent or consuitant of the
owner. developer or sponsor) whether private, for profit or nonprofit (including a Community
Housing Development Organization when acting as an owner, developer or sponsor) may
occupy a CDBG, HOME, HOF, RAHP, HB 2331, Veterans and Human Services Levy,
MIDD or CX-assisted affordable housing unit in a project. This provision does not apply to
an owner-occupant of single family housing or to an employee or agent of the owner or
developer of a rental housing project who occupies a CDBG, HOME, HOF, RAHP, HB
2331,Veterans and Human Services Levy or CX-assisted unit as the project manager or

maintenance worker.

XXXVII. SUPPLANTING
Any federal CDBG or Homeless Housing and Services (2163) Funds made available under
this Contract to provide public (human) services shall not be utilized by the Contractor to
reduce or replace the local financial support currently being provided to public (human)
service programs. Homeless Housing and Services funds cannct be used in the place of
existing housing operations or services funds.

XXXVIil. DRUG FREE WORKPLACE CERTIFICATION AND OTHER FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS

A. Drug-Free Workplace Cartification

The Contractor certifies that it is in compliance with tf
1986 {42 USC 701) and ragulations set for :



B Other Federal Requirements

The absence of mention in this Contract of any cther federal requirements that apply to
the award and/or expenditure of the federal funds made avaiiable by this Contraci is
not intended to indicate that those federal requiraments are not appiicabie to
Contractor activities. The Contractor shall comply with all other federal requirements
relating to the expenditure of federal funds, inclucling but not limited te, the Hatch Act (3

USC. Chapter 15) regarding political activities.

XXXIX. CONSTITUTIONAL PROHIBITION

in accordance with the First Amendment of the Uniteg States Constitution, Article 1, Sect

11 of the Washington State Censtitution, and separation of church and stats principles. as a
general rule, funds received under this Contract may not be used for religious activities.
Except where otherwise allowed by federal law, the foilowing restrictions and limitations

apply to the use of CDBG and HOME funds:

A. A Contractor may not engage in inherently religious activities. such as worship,
religious instruction or proselytization, as part of the assistance funded under this
Contract. If the Contractor conducts religious activities, the activities must be offerad
separataly, in time and location, from the assistance funded under this Contract, and
participation must be voluntary for the beneficiaries of the assistance;

BE. In performing under this Ceniract, the Contractor shall not discriminate a program
beneficiary or prospective program beneficiary on the basis of religion or religious
belief; and

C. CDBG and HOME funds may be used to rehabilitate or construct facilities and hcusing

owned by primarily religious organizations only to the extent those structures are used
for conducting eligible activities consistent with 24 CFR § 570.200, 24 CFR § 92.257,

and 24 CFR § 576.23.
XL, PROMISSORY NOTE. DEED OF TRUST AND COVENANT

The Contractor agrees that funding provided under this Contract for the acquisition,
construction, improvement and/or renabilitation of reai property (Premises) owned by the
Contractor is a loan from the County to the Contractor. The Contractor agrees to promptly
execute a promissory note, deed of trust and covenant (if applicable), in a format approved
by the County, if required in a Project/Program Exhibit. The Contractor agrees that for rzal
property. which is leased by the Contractor and assisted under this Contract, the Contractor
shall obtain a covenant from the owner of the real property in a form approved by the

County, if required in any Project/Program Exhibit.
ANTI-DISPLACEMENT AND RELOCATION ASSISTANCE FOR CAPITAL PROJECTS

XLI

Contractor shall at all times comply with all appiicable federal, state, and local laws.
tutes, rules and regulations relating te relocation of those persons and houssholds

he
a
prior to occupancy by tenants. The Contractor shall be solely

i
st

iding at the Pramises

rasic
responsible for the cost of all ralocation benefits required by law.

Capital Projects using federal funds shall alsc comply with the following subszction
A. Local Funds Only - Local Relocation Guidelines

Projects that include or will include only local county funds (HOF-CX, Vsterans and

Human Services Levy, RAHP, 2331 Hm.a' Hzalth, or HIPDD Developmenial

U ol a9

e
n
i
i
da



Disabilities Funds) for the acquisiticn, demolition, and or rehabilitation of property that
has existing residential tenants who may be displaced shall provide relocation benefits
to all displaced households. Effective October 1, 2005, the benefit amount for each
displaced household will be $2,462 per household; provided that, if the Joint
Recommendations Committee (JRC) of the King County Consortium adjusts the
benefit amount in accordance with King County Consortium Supplemental Relocation
Guidelines based on changes in the consumer price index, the increased beneit
amount shall apply. All tenants selected for relocaticn shall be given formal netification
regarding the need to relocate with a minimum of ninety (90} days nctice of the date
they must relocate, along with information about why they were selected.
Consideraticn of a longer notice pericd may be raquired if the tenant demonstrates a
special circumstance (for instance, heaith reasons) which would be alleviated by
extending the notice period. A list of all displaced househelds, including name, unit
number, household size, ethnicity, and monthiy gross income shall be provided to the
King County Relocation Specialist along with documentation of ali the payments made
to displaced tenants. All relocation costs shall be included in the project development

budget.
B. Federa! Acquisition and Relocation Requirements:

Implementation of any project provided for in this Contract will be undertaken so as tc
minimize involuntary displacement of persons, businesses. nonprofit organizations, or

farms to the greatest extent feasibiz.
The Contractor shall comply with the following:

1. Any acquisition of real property by the Contractor for any activity assisted undsr this
Contract shall comply with the Uniform Relocation Act and 49 CFR Part 24;

2. Any displacement of persons, businesses. nonprofit organizations, or farms
occurring as the rasult of acquisition of real property assisted under this Contract
shall comply with the Uniform Relocation Act, at 24 CFR Part 42 and 49 CFR Part
24 as amended, and the County's Residential Anti-displacement and Relocation
Assistance Plan required by federal regulations at 24 CFR § 570.606(c). and
adopted by the County Council as part of the HCD Plan. The Contractor shall
comply with the Regulations pertaining to costs of relocation and written policies. as
specified by the King County Residential Anti-displacement and Relocation

Assistance Plan; and

When any lower-income dwelling units are demolished or converted to a use other
than a lowsr-income dwelling unit, in connection with an activity assisted under this
Contract with federal funds. the units must be replaced on a one-for-one basis.
Lower-income dwelling units are defined as a dwelling unit with a market rent
(including utility costs) that doas not excesd the applicable Fair Market Rent for
existing housing as established by HUD and published annually, pursuant to 24
CFR Part 888. The Contractor must comply with the one-for-cne replacement of
housing requirements of Section 104(d) of the HCD Act. as amended. The
impiementing regulations are found at 24 CFR Part 42, and for CDBG funds at 2+

CFR § 570.608.

XLIL PROPERTY MANAGEMENT FOR CAPITAL PROJECTS

[}

R i g ik
ctices and at

tractor shall engage in sound property and program management pra
ate and maintain the Premises in a manner vhich fully complies with all

ws, statutas, rules and regulations covering health and

The Con




safety issues in order to provide decent, safe and sanitary housing, as now in effect or as
may be hereafter amended. The Contractor specifically agrees to comply and pay ali costs
associated with achieving such compliance without any notice of requirement or
requirements from the County. and that the County does nol waive this section by giving

notice of demand for compliance in any instance.

The Contractor shall throughout the term of this Contract, without cost or expense to the

County, keep and maintain the Premises and all improvements, landscaping, fixtures and
equipment which may now or hereafter exist thereon, in a neat, clean and sanitary

condition, and shall, except for reasonable wear and tear. at all times preserve the
Premises in good and safe repair.

If, after 36 days notice from the County, the Contractor fails to maintain or repair any part of
the Premises or any improvement, landscaping. fixtures or equipment thereon, the County

may. but shall not be obligated to, enter upon Premises and perform such maintenance or
repair and the Contractor agrees to pay the costs thereof to the County upen receipt of a

written demand.

XLIL TAXES AND LICENSES

The Contractor shall pay throughout the term of this Contract, ail applicable taxes. and all
licenses and excise fees covering the ownership and operations of the Premises.




PROCEDURE IN THE EVENT OF CASUALTY/CONDEMNMNATION FOR CAPITAL

XLIV.

PROJECTS

Al

w

In the event that all or any portion of the Premises is taken or conveyed as a result of

any condemnation proceeding or damaged as a result of any casualty, the County and

the Contractor agree that the proceeds of any condemnation or casuaity afiecting the

Premises shall be made available for the repair or restoration of the real property if the

County and the Contractor in their reascnatle judgment agree that:

1. Repair or restoration of the real property is feasible and that sufficient funds are
available to complete such work;

ha
ne

Aiter the completion of work, the real property can be feasibly operated within t
restrictions and requirements of the Project/Program Exhibit; and

r

More than two years remain aiter the completion of the work until the end of this
Contract.

w

The County and the Coniractor shall meet as necessary to discuss in goced faith the

rebuilding or repair of the real property and reach a decision with respect thereto within
60 days after the occurrence of the casualty or condemnation. If the parties cannot in
good faith agree to repair or restore the real property as provided above, then any
proceeds of the casualty or condemnation, within 60 days of demand, shall be paid first
to satisfy the County’s lien. The balance of the proceeds shall be paid to the

Contractor.

IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this contract to be executed and instituted on

the date above written.

KING COUNTY:
CONTRACTOR:

FOR

King County Executive

Signaturs

Daiz=

ty of Black Diamend Fag

Mame (Please type or print)

Date






S e m———

et B pomp [ mTATT VYT T A -

R : o g% e 20 e Tl Eh X5
L CERTEATE OF SBAUAANGE  seow eonmy ‘
TS D 10 & AATTER oF REORUATICH 0RLY AR COMITRG HO RIGHTS LPON THE CERTHCATE HOLDER. THO CERTINCATE GOCE HG7 MENG, EXTOND O
AL TER I COVRAGE AFFORLED &Y THE MCHORMHCS CF CIVERACE Q40C) SLOW. THE CERTIRCATE OF INSUANCE D0FS ROT CONTITTUTE A CONTRACT BEIVETI T
ISSUHG HAURER(S), AUTHORTZED REPREGENTATIVE CRt FRODUCER, ANG THE CERTIRCATE HOIDER
PIPCATANT B S e tn Sckder 3 s AUDITICHAL NELSED, #n 40 e o anfomad ¥ GUBROGATICH 15 WAIVED: subiced > har arws amd comdiins of v B50C, ot cogmga ey
?&.ﬁ?@f"m A sfomeston Tis cpfints dzmiwt g A i conifiestr Moy ' g of v srdorsonsy, [
U DR SRS S AR A P e e e

CHUMAL LABLTY

r\(

CANFIELD CIAW 7 ¥hinich o

19108 1OTH AVENLE ME.
WOOIRVILE, WS $2072.8374 ALTORGRLE LAGLITY
PHONE (425) 432657 FAR (425) 4822711 CiAd } dtaich Ra
wﬁa - & 524 ‘.-. : : 7 2 ; : m’ﬁ’
1 caw ! m Re
Ciry of Black Digniorad CIAE | Grad Ammsican Insarancy Cotspany

PO Box 532
Biack Dizreerad WA 330610 G | PURIS SRR ER INSHOTATY
Ciayy / dunich Re

PR IS

= (AT

3y s S kA T g P T T R O o ; ““j
mmmmmmmrmmmwmwmﬁﬁi

2 RAY S iSSLED OR BAY PERTAIN THE HSRAE SFFCEDEDBY THE KOO DRSCRESD
e

THISS 10 dﬂl’?? THAT THE COVERRGES LISTED EﬂO‘Wi‘W;E BEEH BSUED 1O THE BSURED

TERY O CONDITON OF COMTRACT CR OTHER COCLREENT WITH RESPECT TO V50 THS CERTFIAT

HEREM S SUS.ECT 10 ALL THE YERYS, EXCLUSICHS AD COUUITIONS CF SUCH WCT LEAT2 SHOWH Y HAVE SED1 REDUCED QY PAD QLAMES.
e X . T

ok 0

D2EFERCIAL GSHERAL LATRITY cynyTzey geEnwzan gemizte
QCOURNEHCE Fonls PRODICT-CORRIOR 355
B STUP GAR PERSCHAL B A0V, LREY
EACH QCCURRENCE
AGUAL FROGRAM AGEAESATE

RIABILITY B SUBEST 70 4 316000 SR PAVASLI FRCH FROGR M FLLEE)

e T T S DU e PR LR L S
ANY ARG Clanv111224517 eRONIoN gaaagie COMERED SUGLELLST
IABUTY IS RBECTTGAS 100,050 S PATIRLE FROM ERCCRAM FURDS ANMNURL PROGRAM AG6TEGATE

L0152 ALL REX PER CCO EACLEQE AL
CARTHQUAKE PER &5
FLCCOFEROCT

AL PROGRAM AGCRECATE

CiA¥141334577 LaGTRY

| PICPERT/ISREECTTOAY RERCE
| SRS D OV A

ezﬁr:{.xngﬁwwwwm;m} e

A C11122A517 _ SAIA0NY  ORGIADL2  PERICSS _ $1.009;
T e A R Lo ol

£ Ao Wetarruen Repfanarant groject. King Doy, Ka g5ecrs, 68yint, ompicyTes 30d 2EIN W ORES 45
Adfoanal latreds $3 vespect b oiainve arling o oF BT pagigenct of e Mowad tnswed snd aro wdiien o wRany

b, Condvions and sxclunions. Sdditiand insund EendiTseTRENt s ofnchiod

o e Lt e e L e et £
SAA T ANY OF THE AOVE LD SOVERASE £E CARCEIL DD BEFONE THE SFATION DAVE THEREQY. HOTCE AL £F DEUVERED M ACCOAOMEE YATH THE PR s
THE B2

2 St ek et i i i e e b el Tt 3 ek eIy
R A ¥ ad oAy H
- §
LT S .,.i
‘s
£4i" 3
> 1
{
H
1
i
{
{
Ciiy of 3i55< D ard Fzgs 2 2012 C all-Ex



Cizy of

ADDITIGNAL INSURED ERDORSERENT

THIS ENDORSERENT MODIFIES MSURANCE PROVIDED UNDER THE
FOLLOWIRG:

CENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

Haow Coverage s Changed

it is agread that the interast of any Additiona! Inawsed Is recognized a3 their
imorasts moy sppear, providing the certificete of nsurance thal thia i
shached to has boen isausd and is on fils with the Cotepaay.

Trher forms:

a 71 e B2 ,
3 fenEnANe BT

<y

= L P S g o BT fo)] « g vy ISV,
All other termae of your Memorandum of Covers



EXHIBIT Il
CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND
BLACK DIAMOND FIFTH AVENUE WATERMAIN DESIGN (C12226)

Contract No.: 5427808 Project No.: C12226 - 1111374
King County Project Manager: Eric Jensen Agency Contact Person: Seth Boettcher
Start Date: March 23, 2012 Telephone: (360) 886-2560 Fax: (360) 886-2592
End Date: May 31, 2013 E-Mail: sboettcher@ci.blackdiamond.wa.us
. WORK STATEMENT

The Agency known as the City of Black Diamond (hereinafter referred to as “the Contractor”
agrees to perform all those activities described in this Exhibit beginning on March 23, 2012,
and completing on May 31, 2013. All such activities shall be provided in a manner which fully
complies with all applicable federal, state and local laws, statutes, rules and regulations, as
are now in effect or hereafter may be amended. The total amount of reimbursement pursuant
to this Exhibit shall not exceed $41.000 in King County Development Block Grant (CDBG)
funds. The Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number for the CDBG Program is

14.218.

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION

A.

Goal

Develop and implement stronger prevention measures to avoid or prevent
homelessness, and create or preserve supportive housing for those who are homeless
or at risk of homelessness to achieve the goal of ending homelessness by improving
the living environment in low- and moderate-income neighborhoods/communities in
accordance with jurisdictions’ adopted Comprehensive Plans and the Countywide
Planning Policies.

Qutcome

The community is a healthier and/or safer place to live, and/or has more amenities,
including improved water quality and flow. The increase in size will bring this area up
to city fire flow standards. Upon completion of this Exhibit, the Contractor will have
approved design specifications to complete the construction of a water main along Fifth
Avenue in the City of Black Diamond to serve its residents.

Indicators

Upon completion of the project, the Contractor shall have engineered design
documents (plans, specifications, and estimates) that will be used for the eventual
construction of infrastructure improvements that include the replacement of 850 lineal
feet of four-inch asbestos water main with an eight-inch ductile iron water main, along
with two outdated fire hydrants.

City of Black Diamond Page 1 0of 8 2012 Contract - Exh Il




D. Program Requirements

The Contractor shall utilize King County CDBG funds for eligible costs related to the
design of for the construction of an eight-inch ductile iron water main, along with two
outdated fire hydrants along Fifth Avenue starting at Lawson Street past Pacific Street
to the south and to the south end of Fifth Avenue in the City of Black Diamond.

1 The Contractor shall obtain all necessary and appropriate land use permits,
zoning approvals, and any other permits and approvals required by local,
County, state, and federal law.

2. The Contractor and the County agree to facilitate the completion of the project.

The scope of the services to be performed under this Contract consists of the
items listed in the Community Development Block Grant Application submitted
for this funding.

3. Environmental Review

a.

Tier | of an environmental review record (ER) has been completed for
the design and specification phase of the project per 24 Code of Federal
Regulations (CFR) 58.34(a)(8).

A Tier Il environmental record, in accordance with 24 CFR 58.5, shall be
completed by King County staff for the full construction phase of this
project, before any construction work begins. Any mitigation measures
identified in the Tier Il ER shall be incorporated into the Contract and
shall be included in the construction contract for implementation and
completion of this project.

4. Design Project Requirements

a.

City of Black Diamond

The Contractor shall appropriately solicit Request for Proposals, award
the contract, and contract for design of the project. In such a contract the
Contractor shall assume the rights and responsibilities of owners of the
project, except that the County shall provide funds for the improvement
generally described in Section [Il.C.2. of this Exhibit.

In the event not all design plans can be made within the project funds,
the Contractor shall determine the priority of the design plans to be
made.

Prior to entering into any subcontract under this Exhibit, the Contractor
shall forward to the County copies of all contract documents.

The Contractor shall implement the project within the program year and
submit both vouchers and required reports to the County in a complete
and timely manner.

The Contractor shall provide documentation to the County at project
completion showing that the project activities were completed in
accordance with this Exhibit and tasks set forth in the application for
funds.

Page 2 of 8 2012 Contract - Exh Il



City of Black Diamond

f. The Contractor shall perform all necessary and appropriate community
information activities.

Public Information

a. In all news releases and other public notices related to projects funded
under this Agreement, the Contractor shall include information
identifying the source of funds as the King County Community
Development Block Grant Program.

b. During construction projects, the Contractor shall erect a durable and
adequately visible sign at the construction site, identifying the source of
funds, such as: “Funding for this project was provided by King County
Community Development Block Grant Program.”

C. The Contractor shall place a plaque permanently in the highest foot
traffic area readily visible to the public. The size should be at a
minimum 12" by 12". The plaque should contain the following:

FUNDING FOR FIFTHAVENUE WATER MAIN
PROVIDED BY
THE KING COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM AND
CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND
THROUGH THE U.S. DEPARTMENT
OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

DATE]

Labor Standards

The work performed by this Contract may also be subject to the State's
prevailing wage laws, Chapter 39.12 Revised Code of Washington (RCW). The
Contractor is advised to consult with the Washington State Department of Labor
and Industries to determine the prevailing wages that must be paid.

County Review and Approval of Procurement Documents

a. The Contractor shall prepare all necessary plans, specifications and bid
documents for the project. All specifications and drawings shall be in
conformance with current standards and general specifications set forth
in the CDBG application for this project.

b. The Contractor shall submit a draft of the following procurement
documents to the County for review and approval at least 15 days prior to
preparing the final version and advertising or soliciting responses for any

type of good or service including, but not limited to, professional services
and construction services:

i. Construction bid specifications;

ii. Invitation to bid;

Page 30f 8 2012 Contract - Exh 1l



City of Black Diamond

ii. Request for proposals; and
iv. Request for qualifications.

The draft procurement documents shall include provisions required in
the contract. The Contractor shall specify the location in the draft
procurement document of each of the required provisions.

The Contractor shall not prepare a final version of any of the above
documents and advertise or solicit responses without the written
approval of the County.

The Contractor shall obtain all necessary and appropriate land use permits,
zoning approvals, and any other permits and approvals required by local,
county, state, and federal law.

a.

The Contractor shall appropriately bid, award the contract, and contract
for construction of the project. In such a contract the Contractor shall
assume the rights and responsibilities of owners of the project, except
that the County shall provide funds for the improvement generally
described below.

To replace four-inch asbestos water main with an eight-inch ductile iron
water main, along with two outdated fire hydrants in the City of Black
Diamond.

In the event not all improvements can be made within the project funds,
the Contractor and the County shall jointly determine the priority of the
improvements to be made.

Prior to entering into any subcontract under this Contract, the Contractor
shall forward to the County copies of all Contract documents.

The Contractor shall designate a person or persons to provide project
management during design and coordinate with the assigned Housing
and Community Development (HCD) Project Manager.

The Contractor shall provide documentation to the County at project
completion showing that the project activities were completed in
accordance with this Contract. The Contractor shall provide the County
with one set of final record documents (“As-Built” plans) which are
stamped, certified, and signed.

Professional Services Procurement

In accordance with Section XX.F. of this Contract, specified in 24 CFR §
85.36(b) through (g), the City will follow an approved professional services
procurement standard and will pay a "not to exceed" amount established.

Page 4 of 8 2012 Contract - Exh |l



10.

g [

City of Black Diamond

Construction Project Requirements To Be Incorporated Into Bid Specifications

a.

The Contractor shall not authorize any work under a construction
contract assisted in whole or in part under this Contract to proceed until
and unless King County Housing and Community Development Program
staff have presented each prime contractor with detailed information
regarding compliance with CDBG Program Regulations including, but not
limited to, federal labor standards, at a preconstruction conference.

During the course of construction, the Contractor shall facilitate standing
weekly construction meetings with the assigned Contractor
Representative, the prime contractor, and the assigned King County
Project Manager.

The Contractor shall include in construction bid specifications and
construction contracts assisted in whole or in part under this Contract,
provisions requiring each prime construction contractor to submit a
completed King County Final Affidavit of Amounts Paid to the County.
The form, to be provided by the County, shall be submitted by the
Contractor to the County prior to the Contractor’s release of retainage to
each prime contractor.

The County shall retain ten percent of the value of funds provided under
this Exhibit. The County shall disburse the retained amount upon the
County’s verification that the Contractor has complied with the provisions
of this Contract that are applicable to construction contracts.

The Contractor shall implement the project within the proposed timeline
and submit both vouchers and required reports to the County in a
complete and timely manner.

Prior to any payment on the project, pre-approval must be received from
County staff that federal labor requirements have been met. If the
Contractor pays before the County approves, the Contractor shall be
responsible for any compliance problems.

Weekly payrolls of construction activity and supporting documents for
labor compliance shall be submitted to: King County Housing and
Community Development, Attn.: Randy Poplock, 401 Fifth Avenue, Suite
510, Seattle, WA 98104 prior to any payment of CDBG funds. Upon
review and approval of said documents, the Contractor shall be advised
by the County that payment can be made.

The Contractor shall provide documentation to the County at project
completion showing that the project activities were completed in
accordance with this Exhibit.

Section 3 Requirements

a.

The Contractor shall comply with Section 3 requirements set forth at 24
CFR Part 135. Compliance with Section 3 requirements includes, but is
not limited to, incorporating the Section 3 Clause set forth at 24 CFR
Part 135.38 and Section 3 Requirements provided by the County into

Page 50f 8 2012 Contract - Exh Il



construction bid specifications, invitations to bid and/or requests for
proposals as well as construction contracts with a contract value which

exceeds $100.000.

b. A copy of the Section 3 report for the Project shall be prepared by the
Contractor and submitted to:

King County Housing and Community Development
Attn: Dave Mecklenburg

401 Fifth Avenue, Suite 510

Seattle, WA 98104
Dave.Mecklenburg@kingcounty.gov

E. Records and Reports

The Contractor shall maintain files for this project containing the following items:

1z

o WP

© © N o o

10.

11.
12.

13.

14.

15.

City of Black Diamond

Documentation demonstrating the Contractor’'s determination of eligibility for the
project activity and the national objective met per CDBG Program regulations;

Notice of Grant Award;

Motions, resolutions, or minutes documenting Board or Council actions;
A copy of this Exhibit and the County’s notice to proceed on this project;
Correspondence regarding budget revision requests;

Copies of all invoices and reports submitted to the County for this project;
Bills for payment;

Copies of approved invoices and warrants;

Payroll time sheets for actual salary and fringe benefit costs, time sheets signed
by a supervisor and annotated to document percent of time charged against
this project if less than full time;

Documentation, such as log sheets, of copy machine use, postage, telephone
use, and office supplies when these costs are shared with other programs and
no invoice is available, or alternative, annotated invoices may be used to
document charges as appropriate;

Documentation of mileage charges for private auto use;

Documentation of the solicitation process used to select vendors and
subcontractors with original purchase orders and subcontracts;

Documentation related to adherence to labor compliance rules and regulations
and report submittal related to such;

The Contractor shall submit project status information on a Program
Accomplishment form; and/or

The Contractor shall submit detailed project funding information at the
completion of the project on a Completed Project Funding Report form.

Page 6 of 8 2012 Contract - Exh Il



Il COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT

A Billing Invoice Requirements

1

The Contractor shall submit invoices to the County within ten business days
after the end of each quarter in which the Contractor incurs costs reimbursed
under this Exhibit.

The Contractor shall submit invoices to the County in the form of a 2012 CDBG
Program Voucher Reimbursement Request form. Such forms shall be signed
by an authorized representative of the Contractor and shall be accompanied by
copies of supporting documents.

The County shall retain ten percent of the value of funds provided under this
project Exhibit until all design activities are completed. The County shall
disburse the retained amount with the final invoice upon the County’s
verification that the Contractor has complied with the provisions of this Exhibit.

B. Method of Payment

The Contractor shall be reimbursed for satisfactory completion of the requirements
specified in this Exhibit in a sum not to exceed $41.000.

1.

C. The Contractor shall apply the following CDBG funds to the project in accordance with
the Line ltem Budget Summary below.
CDBG Funds
King County Community Development Block Grant — $41,000
Funds; South Sub-Region
Total CDBG Funds: CFDA 14.218 $41,000

City of Black Diamond

Line Item Budget

Other
CDBG . Total
it Funds Mgf}%gg Funds
*Environmental Review (King County Set-
aside) $ 4,000 $| $ 4,000
Architect and Engineering Design $37,000 $| $37,000
Project Management $ 0 $| 9% 0
Sub-Total® (Less Environmental Review
Cost) $37,000 $ | $37,000
Total Project Budget: $41,000 $| 9$41,000

*Environmental Review (King County Cost Set-aside): This amount is set-aside
until final environmental review costs are determined. Any balance remaining shall
be available for expenditure by Budget Revision Request from the Contractor, not
to exceed total CDBG funds of $41.000.

Page 7 of 8 2012 Contract - Exh Il



D. Project Milestones

i Proof of meeting accomplishments or milestones shall be submitted with each
voucher for reimbursement. Milestones may be amended from time to time
with the prior approval of the County through a Contract amendment.

2. The Contractor shall implement the project in accordance with the following
schedule.
Milestones Projected Completion Date
Environmental Review Complete — Tier | March 22, 2012
Procure Design/Engineering July 2012
Design Complete, Bid Specs Submitted for
County Review November 2012
Closing Documentation Submitted for Design December 2012

V. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

A. The Contractor shall submit a Program Accomplishment form in a format provided by
the County within ten business days after the end of each quarter.

B. The Contractor shall submit a Completed Project Funding Report form in a format
provided by the County with the final invoice.

City of Black Diamond Page 8 0of 8 2012 Contract - Exh Il



Wl AT Y
39310 uosme-]
UoNEDOT UIB JOJEAN

WL 169012713 070600 71 |

e

- A o, ;
_5_ﬂm@o&zgmm,%o.aﬁ e
d1

>p 6LLB90L 21 |3

A .I.I.....f’

ceooROiy
606901

; —rrs.
_HJ, 5 R

850690L2¢1

Lgld i
EE mu

ST130UVd ONILLI4INTg

ANOWVIA MOV149 40 ALID
INIJNFOVTd3d NIVINETFLVYM INNIAY H1S



FIFTH AVENUE WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT

ANTICIPATED SCHEDULE
*July' August 2012 Engineer Selection
August 2012 Engineer Contract
November December 2012 Grant amendment for construction money
December 2012 January 2013 Project out to Bid
Februarv'March 2013 Construction Contract Award
July — September 2013 Project Construction

* King County CDBG does not allow engineers under contract with the City to perform
the engineering or to participate in the engineer selection process. The City will have to
go through the selection process for an engineer to work specifically on this project.



DESCRIPTION

BACKGROUND

COMMENTS

CAPITAL PROJECT COSTS

Construction Engineering
Construction Costs
TOTAL COSTS

REQUESTED FUNDING

Grants
REET I
TOTAL SOURCES

Replace 850 fzet of 4 inch dead end asbestos concrete water main from 5th Ave

Capital Improvement Plan 2013 - 2018

intersection with Lawson St. South to the end of the road. Two fire hydrants also need to

be replaced.

There is a lack of fire flow in this area and with low quality water pipe on a dead end line
the service reliability is also very low. The City was selected for a CDBG Grant for this
project in 2011. The grant agreement is expected in May or June of 2012. The City is
trying to expedite the project so as to complete the construction while Lawson Creek is

dried up.

This project might be delayed to 2013 if it cannot be completed while Lawson Creek is dry
in the summer of 2012 and is also shown in the 2013 budgst year.

Capital Plan 2013 - 2018

Total §
Requested 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
2013-2018
15,000 15,000
160,000 160,000
175,000 175,000 E - - - -
Total §
Requested 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
2013-2018
160,000 160,000
15,000 15,000
175,000 175,000 - - - - R

|
|

Fire Hydrant cn Fifth Ave.



CITY COUNCIL City of Black Diamond

AGENDA BILL Post Office Box 599
Black Diamond, WA 98010

ITEM INFORMATION

SUBJECT: | Agenda Date: July 9, 2012 AB12-055

Resolution No. 12-822, authorizing a Department/Committee/Individual

Professional Service Agreement with Mayor Rebecca Olness

Parametrix, Inc. for Rock Creek Bridge | | City Administrator — Pete Butkus

Engineering Study City Attorney —~Chris Bacha

City Clerk — Brenda L. Martinez

Finance — May Miller

Public Works — Seth Boettcher

Cost Impact: $20,403.75 Economic Devel. — Andy Williamson X
Fund Source; Grant matching Police — Jamey Kiblinger
Timeline: June - August 2012 Court — Stephanie Metcalf

Comm. Dev. — Steve Pilcher

Attachments: Resolution No. 12-822, Agreement with Parametrix, 2012-2017 CIP Page

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

The Rock Creek Bridge on Roberts Drive is 97 years old, too narrow, does not include pedestrian
facilities and does not have approach guard rails. Although the City has had the bridge inspected and
found the bridge to be sufficient structurally, the prescriptive inspection and analysis method does not
provide the City with the information needed for widening the bridge or provide the City with longevity
analysis.

The City needs to determine the long term viability of the structure and if the bridge deck could be
widened to meet road standards and provide for pedestrian crossing. Once this preliminary engineering is
complete a project budget could be established and the City could begin to search for grant funding to
rehabilitate the bridge or replace it as recommended by the study.

BUDGET  This study has been identified in the City’s 2012-2017 Capital Improvement Plan and
$20,000 was budgeted in 2012 for this engineering work. An additional $403.75 may need to be
appropriated with a budget amendment if the full contract amount is needed to complete the bridge
evaluation.

LEVARAGING PRIVATE FUNDS The Villages Master Planned Development has an obligation
to provide a pedestrian connection to the existing part of Black Diamoend down Roberts Drive. The City
has an obligation to pursue grant funding. The City can use private funds from the Vitlages developer to
match grant funds for the bridge widening and pedestran facility across Rock Creek.

COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: MOTION to adopt Resolution 12-822, authorizing the
Mayor to execute a Professional Services Agreement with Parametrix for the
Rock Creek Bridge Engineering Study for an amount of $20,403.75.

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION

Meeting Date Action Voie

July 9, 2012




RESOLUTION NO. 12-822

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON
EXECUTING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
WITH PARAMETRIX FOR AN ENGINEERING STUDY OF
THE ROCK CREEK BRIDGE

WHEREAS, The existing bridge is 97 years old, is too narrow, does not provide for
pedestrians and does not provide barriers to protect the stream; and

WHEREAS, Parametrix has been selected as the street and traffic engineer for the City
of Black Diamond; and

WHEREAS, The City has budgeted $20,000 for this study in the 2012 budget in
keeping the adopted Capital Improvement Planning; and

WHEREAS, This study will provide information and guidance to submit a detailed,
accurate grant application to upgrade or replace the existing bridge;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute a Professional Services

Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A with Parametrix for the Rock Creek Bridge
Engineering Study in the amount of $20,403.75.

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, AT A SPECIAL MEETING THEREQF, THIS 9TH DAY OF JULY, 2012,

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND:

Rebecca Olness, Mayor

Atiest:

Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk



CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Professional Services Agreement (the or this “Agreement”), for reference purposes
only, is dated ,20  and is entered into by and between

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, WASHINGTON (the “City”)

Physical Address: 24301 Roberts Drive

Mailing Address: PO Box 599

Black Diamond, WA 98010

Contact: Phone: 360-886-2560 Fax ; 360-886-2592

and

Parametrix (“Consultant™)

1019 39™ Avenue SE, Suite 100

Puyallup, WA 98374

Contact: Dan McReynolds Phone: 253-604-6600 Fax: 253-604-6799

Tax Id No.:

for professional services in connection with the following project:
Rock Creck Bridge Evaluation

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Services by Consultant

1.1 Consultant shall perform the services described in the Scope of Work attached to
this Agreement as Exhibit "A." The services performed by Consultant shall not exceed the
Scope of Work nor shall the Consultant be entitled to a greater amount of compensation as that
provided in this Agreement without the prior written authorization of the City.

1.2 The City may from time to time require changes or modifications in the Scope of
Work. Such changes, including any decrease or increase in the amount of compensation, shall
be agreed to by the parties and incorporated in written amendments to this Agreement.

1.3 Consultant represents and warrants that it, its staff to be assigned to the Project,
and its subconsultants and their staff have the requisite training, skill, and experience necessary
to provide the services required by this Agreement and are appropriately accredited and licensed
by all applicable agencies and governmental entities. Services provided by Consultant and its
subconsultants under this Agreement will be performed in a manner consistent with that degree
of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing in
similar circumstances.

Professional Services Agreement

Page 1 of 8



2. Schedule of Work

2.1 Consultant shall perform the services described in the Scope of Work in
accordance with the Schedule as described in Exhibit “A.”

2.2 Consultant will work within the project schedule, will proceed with the work and
shall assure that it, and its subconsultants, will have adequate staffing at all times in order to
complete the Scope of Work in a timely manner. If factors beyond Consultant's control that
could not have been reasonably foreseen as of the date of this Agreement cause delay, then the
parties will negotiate in good faith to determine whether an extension is appropriate. The
Consnultant shall provide the City with written notice of any delay, or potential delay, that may
trigger the need for a time extension within 3 business days after the Consultant becomes aware
of the delay or potential delay.

2.3 Consultant  is authorized  to  proceed  with  services  upon

3. Compensation

TIME AND MATERIALS NOT TO EXCEED. Compensation for the services provided
in the Scope of Work shall not exceed $20,403.75 without the written authorization
of the City and will be based on the list of billing rates and reimbursable expenses
attached hereto as Exhibit “C.”

: Payment

4.1 Consultant shall maintain time and expense records and provide them to the City
monthly, along with monthly invoices, in a format acceptable to the City for work performed to
the date of the invoice.

4.2 All invoices shall be paid by City warrant within sixty (60) days of actual receipt
by the City of an invoice conforming in all respects to the terms of this Agreement.

4.3 Consultant shall keep cost records and accounts pertaining to this Agreement
available for inspection by City representatives for three (3) years after final payment unless a
longer period is required by a third-party agreement. Consultant shall make copies available to
the City on request.

44  If the services rendered do not meet the requirements of the Agreement,
Consultant will correct or modify the work to comply with the Agreement. The City may
withhold payment for such work until the work meets the requirements of the Agreement.

Professional Services Agreement

Page 2 of 8



5. Discrimination and Compliance with L.aws

5.1 Consultant agrees not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for
employment or any other person in the performance of this Agreement because of race, creed,
color, national origin, marital status, sex, age, disability, or other circumstance prohibited by
federal, state, or local law or ordinance, except for a bona fide occupational qualification.

5.2  Consultant and its subconsultants shall comply with all federal, state, and local
laws and ordinances applicable to the work to be done under this Agreement.

5.3  Any violation of this Section 5 shall be a material breach of this Agreement and
grounds for immediate cancellation, termination, or suspension of the Agreement by the City, in
whole or in part, and may result in Consultant’s ineligibility to conduct further work for the

City.

0. Suspension and Termination of Agreement

6.1 The City reserves the right to terminate or suspend this Agreement at any time,
without cause, by giving Consultant notice in writing ten (10) days prior to the termination or
suspension date. In the event of termination, all finished or unfinished reports, or other material
prepared by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement, shall be submitted to the City. In the event
the City terminates this Agreement prior to completion without cause, Consultant may complete
such apalyses and records as may be necessary to place its files in order. Consultant shall be
entitled to compensation for any satisfactory work completed on the Project prior to the date of
suspension or termination.

6.2  Any notfice from the City to Consultant regarding the suspension of this
Agreement shall specify the anticipated period of suspension. Any reimbursement for expenses
incurred due to the suspension shall be limited to Consultant's reasonable expenses and shall be
subject to verification. Consultant shall resume performance of services under this Agreement
without delay when the suspension period ends.

7. Standard of Care

7.1  Consultant represents and warrants that it has the requisite training, skill,
and experience necessary to provide the services under this Agreement and is appropriately
accredited and licensed by all applicable agencies and governmental entities. Services
Consultant provides under this Agreement will be performed in a manner consistent with that
degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently
practicing in similar circumstances. Consultant understands and agrees that the services rendered
pursuant to this Agreement are for the sole exclusive benefit of the City and that no third party
shall have authority to authorize, approve, direct or control any of the services rendered to the
City pursuant to this Agreement.

Professional Services Agreement

Page 3 of 8



8. Ownership of Work Product

8.1 Ownership of the originals of any reports, data, studies, surveys, charts, maps,
drawings, specifications, figures, photographs, memoranda, and any other documents which are
developed, compiled, or produced as a result of this Agreement, whether or not completed, shall
be vested in the City and shall be submitted to the City upon termination of this Agreement. Any
reuse of these materials by the City for projects or purposes other than those that fall within the
scope of this Agreement and the Project to which it relates, without written concurrence by
Consultant, will be at the sole risk of the City.

8.2  The City acknowledges Consultant’s documents as instruments of professional
service. Nevertheless, the documents prepared under this Agreement shall become the property
of the City upon completion of the work. The City agrees to hold harmless and indemnify
Consultant against all claims made against Consultant for damage or injury, including defense
costs, arising out of the City’s reuse of such documents beyond the use for which they were
originally intended without the written authorization of Consultant.

8.3  Methodology, software, logic, and systems developed under this Agreement are
the property of Consultant and the City, and may be used as either Consultant or the City see fit,
including the right to revise or publish the same without limitation.

9, Indemnification/Hold Harmless

9.1 Consultant shall defend, indemnify, and hold the City, its officers, officials,
employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits
including attorney fees (collectively “liabilities™), arising directly or indirectly out of or
resulting from the willful or negligent acts, errors, or omissions of Consultant or its
subconsultants in performance of this Agreement except to the extent such Liabilities are caused
by or result from the concurrent negligence of the City.

10. Insurance

10.1  Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, and
shall provide proof satisfactory to the City that such insurance is procured and maintained by
each of its subconsultants, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to
property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by
Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees.

10.2 Consultant shall procure and maintain the following types and amounts of
insurance:

a. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired, and
leased vehicles. Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01
or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage. If necessary, the policy shall be
endorsed to provide contractual liability coverage. This insurance shall have a minimum
combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident.

b. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on ISO
occurrence form CG 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage and shall

Professional Services Agreement

Page 4 of 8



cover liability arising from premises, operations, independent contractors, personal injury, and
advertising injury. This insurance shall be written with limits no less than $1,000,000 each
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate.

c. Workers’ Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance
laws of the State of Washington.

d. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to Consultant’s profession,
with limits no less than $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit.

10.3 The Automobile Liability, Commercial General Liability, and Professional
Liability insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

a. Consultant’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance vis-a-vis the
City. Any insurance, self-insurance, or insurance pool coverage maintained by the City shall be
excess over Consultant’s insurance and shall not contribute with i,

b. Consultant’s insurance shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be
cancelled, except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt
requested, has been given to the City.

10.4 The City shall be named as an additional insured under Consultant’s Automobile
Liability and Commercial General Liability insurance policies with respect to the work to be
performed for the City pursuant to this Agreement.

10.5 Insurance shall be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not less
than A:VIL

10.6  Declaration pages issued by the insurance carriers for the policies mentioned in
this Section 10 showing such insurance to be in force shall be filed with the City not less than ten
(10) days following both parties signing this Agreement and before commencement of the work.
In addition, the City may request, in writing, a full copy from Consultant of any insurance policy
Consultant must procure and maintain pursuant to this Agreement and Consultant must provide
such copy to the City within ten (10) days of Consultant’s receipt of the City’s request. Any
policy or required insurance written on a claims-made basis shall provide coverage as to all
claims arising out of the services performed under this Agreement and for three (3) years
following completion of the services o be performed. Tt shall be a material breach of this
Agreement for Consultant to fail to procure and maintain the insurance required by this Section
10 or to provide the proof of such insurance to the City as provided for in this Agreement.

11.  Assigning or Subcontracting

11.1  Consultant shall not assign, transfer, subcontract, or encumber any rights, duties,
or interests accruing from this Agreement without the express prior written consent of the City,
which consent may be withheld at the sole discretion of the City.

Professional Services Agreement

Page 5of 8



12. Independent Contractor

12.1 Consultant and its subconsultants are, and shall be at all times during the term of
this Agreement, independent contractors,

13. Notice

13.1  All notices required by this Agreement shall be considered properly delivered
when personally delivered, when received by facsimile, or on the third day following mailing,
postage prepaid, certified mail, return receipt requested to:

City: City Administrator
City of Black Diamond
P.0O. Box 599
Black Diamond, WA 98010
Fax: 360-886-2592

With a copy to: Chris Bacha
Kenyon Disend, PLLC
11 Front Street South
Issaquah, WA 98027
Fax: 425-392-7071

Consultant:

Fax:

14. Disputes

14.1 Any action for claims arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be
governed by the laws of the State of Washington. Venue shall be in King County Superior
Court, Kent, Washington.

15. Attorney Fees

15.1 In any suit or action instituted to enforce any right granted in this Agreement, the
substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its costs, disbursements, and
reasonable attorney fees from the other party.

16. General Administration and Management on Behalf of the City

Professional Services Agreement

Page 6 of 8



16.1 The City Administrator for the City, or his designee, shall review and approve
Consultant's invoices to the City under this Agreement and shall have primary responsibility for
overseeing and approving work or services to be performed by Consultant. Consultant
understands and agrees that any and all work to be performed pursuant fo this Agreement must
be approved in advance by the contract Administrator. No third party, including the project
applicant, shall have any direct control or influence over the services performed under this
Contract.

17. Extent of Agreement/Modification

17.1 This Agreement, together with any attachments or addenda, represents the entire
and integrated Agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations,
representations, or agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement may only be amended,
modified, or added to by written instrument properly signed by both parties. The parties
acknowledge the general contract rule that a clause in a contract, such as this one, prohibiting
oral modifications is itself generally subject to oral modification. However, in order to ensure
certainty as to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the parties waive this general
contract rule.

18. Conflict of Interest; Non-Collusion

18.1 No officer, employee or agent of the City, nor any member of the immediate
family of any such officer, employee or agent, shall have any personal financial interest, direct
or indirect, in this Contract, either in fact or in appearance. The Consultant shall comply with
all federal, state, and City conflict of interest laws, statutes and regulations. The Consultant
represents that the Consultant presently has no interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct
or indirect, in the project to which this Contract pertains which would conflict in any manner or
degree with the performance of the Consultant’s services and obligations hereunder. The
Consultant further covenants that, in performance of this Contract, no person having any such
interest shall be employed by the Consultant. The contractor’s officers, employees or agents
shall neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors or anything of monetary value from the project
applicant or any affiliate or agent of the project applicant.

18.2  The Contractor warrants and represents that the Contractor has not, nor has any
other member, employee, representative, agent or officer of the Contractor, entered into or
offered to enter into any combination, collusion or agreement with any person or entity to
receive or pay, and that he has not received or paid, any sum of money or other consideration
for the execution of this Contract other than the consideration offered pursuant to the terms and
conditions hereof.

Professional Services Agreement

Page 7of 8§



CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND CONSULTANT

By: By:
Rebecca Olness Printed Name: Daniel L. McReynolds
Its: Mayor Its: Principal
Date: Date:
Attest:
By:

Brenda L.. Martinez
City Clerk

Professional Services Agreement

Page 3ol 8



EXHIBIT A - SCOPE OF WORK

City of Black Diamond
Rock Creek Bridge Evaluation ~ Bridge No. 1018B

PHASE 1 - BRIDGE EVALUATION
Task 1 - Project Management and Support

Measurable Task Objectives

Parametrix (Consultant) will monitor the progress of the work tasks, staff work loads, and
milestones/deliverables with the project schedule, and will make adjustments as necessary to keep the
project on track. Consultant wilt work closely with the City of Black Diamond staff and provide project
management to ensure that the proper level of effort is being appiied to the project tasks.

Assumptions
The task assumptions include:

s The project will be completed within 3 months of the notice to proceed.
Deliverables

The deliverables will include:
e Meeting Notes (as applicable).

e Project Invoices and Status Reports,
Task 2 — On-Site Condition Evaluation

Measurable Task Objectives

Parametrix will conduct a site visit in order to evaluate the current condition of the bridge. Results of the
visual inspection will be provided in a technical memorandum.

Approach

The approach to the on-site condition evaluation will include the following;
@  (Obtain and review all available documentation on the bridge.
s Obiain and review previous inspection reports.

o Site visit to evaluate the existing condition of bridge,

City of Black Diamond 2714-3043-821
Rock Creek Bridge Evaluation — Bridge No. 10188 1 Janary 2012
Scope of Work



Assumptions

The task assumptions include:
e  Site visit will be limited to 4 hours on site,
¢  Site visit will be performed by two Parametrix employees.

s A representative of the City of Black Diamond Public Works Department will be on site during
the site visit.

e Aliobservations will be performed visually from the deck and creek below, No special equipment
(man lifis, etc.) will be used.

Deliverables

The deliverables will include:

o A technical memorandum summmarizing the site visit.
Task 3 — Perform a Structural Evaluation of the Existing Bridge

Measurable Task Objectives

The purpose of the structural evaluation is to assess the load-carrying capacity of the bridge. Parametrix
will perform a struchmral analysis, based on the record drawings and visual inspection, to measure the
bridge capacity for various loading conditions. The results will be summarized in a load capacity report.

Approach

The approach to performing structural evaluation will include the following:

e Perform an analysis similar to a load rating analysis incorporating the condition of the structure
observed during the site visit to determine a reasonable load capacity.

¢ If load restrictions are required, prepare a bridge load rating report summary.
Assuniptions

The following assumptions apply to determining the toad capacity:

¢ Load capacity determination will be in accordance with WSDOT’s Bridge Design Manual
Chapter 13 and The Manual for Bridge Evaluation, 1st Edition with 2010 Interim Revisions.

o Only the superstructure will be rated in accardance with WSDOT,

e If load restrictions are required, rating trucks will be limited to legal truck loads (Type 3,
Type 352, Type 3-3). Rating vehicles are defined in WSDOT’s Bridge Design Munual
Section 13.1.5.

e Resistance factors will be reduced based on the bridge condition described in the latest inspection
reports and the existing conditions observed during the site visit.

o The resulis of this load capacity determination will set the basis for further recommendations.

City of Black Diamond 214-3043-821
Rock Creek Bridee Fvaluotion — Bridge No. 10188 2 January 2042
Scope of Work



Deliverables

The deliverables will include:
e Load capacity report and sumimary.

e Structural calculations.

Task 4 ~ Investigate Rehabilitating/Widening/Replacing the Existing Structure

Measurable Task Objectives

Parametrix will investigate alternatives for rehabilitating, widening, and replacing the existing bridge. The
study will also examine the feasibility of adding a sidewalk fo the bridge. Results will be summarized in a
technical memorandum, including conceptual drawings, permitting requivements, and an opinion of
construction cost.

Approach

The approach to rehabilitating/widening/replacing the existing structure will include the following:

e The results of Task 3 will set the direction for the most cost effective solution (i.e., rehabilitate,
widen, or replace).

o Identify up to three alternatives that will provide for a 28-foot roadway and 2 minimum of a
6-foot-wide sidewallc on one side of the roadway.

o Prepare conceptual drawings for each aliernative.

e For each alternative, identify permitting issues and requirements.

e  Prepare an estimate of life expectancy for each alternative.

e Develop a design, permitting requirements, and opinion of probaBle construction cost estimate for
each of the alternatives,

Assumpiions

The following assumptions apply to rehabilitating/widening/repiacing the existing structure;

e Tor a replacement alternative, a cursory hydraulic analysis will be performed to determine if the
span length needs to be increased.

a  For the rehabilitation/widening alternative, foundation capacities will be based on conservative
values of the existing soil conditions. No geotechnical investigation will be performed at this
time.

Deliverables

The deliverables will inciude:
* @ Conceptual drawing of each alternative.

s  Pennitting requirements for each alternative.

e  Opinion of design and construction costs for each alternative.

» Technical memorandwn with recominendations, including life expectancy of each alternative.

City of Black Diamond 2{4-343-82¢
Rock Creek Bridge Evaluation — Bridee No. 10188 3 Sanuary 2012
Scope of Work



Task 5 - QA/QC
Measurable Task Objectives
Comply with all applicable QA/QC Standards and Procedures,

Approach

Quality is a critical element to the reliability and success of the planning and design effort. Our goal under
this task is to ensure that we commit to quality, and through a systematic utilization of checks and
balances, deliver a project that is fully in conformance with both the standards of our profession and

expectations of the Client.

Utilizing the standards and procedures established by Parametrix as a base, we will internally develop an
appropriate plan for quality, to ensure proper documentation of process design, peer and senior staff
review, and other factors, as appropriate.

City af Black Diennond 214-3043-321
Rock Creek Bridge Evafuation - Bridge No. 10138 4 Janucry 2012
Secope of Work



SLE0F'02% i1E1C], 108ioig

SLLLE 1|RJ0 [ asuacdxy
9g'6Y9 ELE
92'es LEX L pag g
EL0gL VEXSBAMTES
unowy Tondposeq

*$38NIdXT 103wd

00°00¥$  0Q'ZLES  00°002$  00'00r'z§ 00°006¢ 00°09ES  000DLZS 0O 0+Z €S 00-09E'6S 00°00¥$

¥ z T 2k 9 ¥ 0z ¥z 5 z ezi 00'ZEL023 's|ejo ) 10GET
. . . e " e | - 40 B L sesuadxy SQesInqiliay|
1 A T T 1 _qgk. " |oo0oFes 1 . 20/v0 S0 10
4 A2 .19 L R N - lesg T Jooodces ; SSIPMS SAELENY | 0 L0
) [E A 8" 8¢ 000k L b8 i AREdeg peoiswdmlg | 0| 10
. o NS IEk " [ocogi s ucieEnBAg BNg-UQ [ &0 10
[ 4 } A 8 4 gL |ogziees ) Mawabauspy 128013 10 _ Lo
|4 < 7 cl 9 ¥ 1Z ¥ 44 Z BZl [N 4] uopen|eny sBpiig 10
SINOH JogeT SIB|[0g J0qE uwopdliosag FECTN sseyd
00001 00'S8$  0000LE 00002 0005+ 00068  00GEl§ OUGELS OOOUBLE 00 00T ‘sEley peuRpIng
[ZRw FH HGAW O D f=diiw] w [0} m o) i) = o
$88 |Edzggse |BEs |3 355 |e ¥ 2 gz
@22 (2Ees7aga (g > g ha (5 & 5 m A
452 |Bap |Zda |ag g i @ 2 Q, o g
g3 z ze g 5 Fé g g S g
Q= = = 2 - = = 2
g = < = =
g [§335F [Fg |3 |FY (5% FF [FT I
& 8¢ slg 58 |&% EE - g3 FL =
< 223 |= = = - ad = =r &.® = 5
g ) & P N »  |F
B - = g

1Bz abplg 40 %00y Josioig
gldMxa puoweld ¥2eg Jo ALY el



Capital Improvement Plan 2012 - 2017

DESCRIPTION Rock Creek Bridge is on Roberts Road west of Morganville. Although the bridge is old the structure
appears to be in good condition. Additional structural analysis is needed to determing if the bridge
could be rated for truck traffic. Predesign work is needed 1o detarmine how the deck surface could be
changed for additional widih for vehicular and pedestrian traffic.

COMMENTS This preliminary work will aflow the City to position itself for grant opportunities and align city efforts
and needs with developer mitigation projects.

Capital Plan 2012 - 2017
Budgeted & Total $
CAPITAL PROJECT COSTS Funded Requested 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
2011 2012-2017

Preliminary Engineering 20,000 20,000

TOTAL COSTS - 20,000 20,000
Budgeted & Total $

REQUESTED FUNDING Funded Requested 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

2011 2012-2017
Other {Grant Matching) 20,000 20,000
TOTAL SOURCES - 20,000 20,000
Rock Creek Bridge
(”.1:’_ s
3, 5
%, =
i 3
] &
s Morganville €
B [+

Project Location




	Council Agenda 7-09-12
	AB12-050
	AB12-051
	AB12-052
	AB12-053
	AB12-054
	AB12-055

